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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Limited (hereinafier referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) its associate and joint venture comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31, 202 1, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financiaj information
of the subsidiaries, associate and Joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group, its associate and Joint venture as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated loss including
other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS F inancial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ jssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 2A of the Consolidated Financial Statements which describes the continuing impact of
Covid-19 pandemic, and its possible consequential implications, on the Group’s operations and financial metrics.

Qur opinien is not modified in respect of the matter.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon,

Qur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
=xpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

~ In conicétion with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
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information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materiafly
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associate and
Joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting  Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate and Joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records-
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associate and
Joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate and Joint venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associate and joint venture to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and Jjoint venture
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate and joint
venture. ’

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conselidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could réasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, desi gn and perform audit procedures Tesponsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is hi gher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal conirol relevant to the audit in order to desi gn audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
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the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate and joint venture to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate and joint
venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statemnents represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associate and joint venture of which we are the independent auditors and
whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the ndependent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail relationsh ips and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

(a)

(b}

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of six subsidiaries {(which
included the financial statements of step-down subsidiaries), whose Ind AS financial statements include total
assets of Rs 368,518.71 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total revenues of Rs 523,986.30 lakhs and net cash
outflows of Rs 37,015.20 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These Ind AS financial statement and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial
information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors,

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have andited these conversion
adjusiments made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements include unaudited financial staternents and other
unaudited financial information in respect of a subsidiary, whose financial statements and other financial
in{ormation reflect total assets of Rs 572.37 lakhs as at March 3 1, 2021, and total revenues of Rs 984.60 lakhs
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and net cash outflows of Rs 57.54 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements
and other unaudited financial information have been fumished to us by the management. The consolidated
Ind AS financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 6.66 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of a joint venture, whose
financial statements, other financial information have not been audited and whose unaudited financial
statements, other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the Management. Cur opinicn,
in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of this joint venture, and our report in terms
of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely
on such unaudited financial statement and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect 1o our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid conselidated Ind AS financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statemnent of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

[n our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March
31,2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, associate and joint
venture, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, its associate and joint venture incorporated in India
is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, associate and joint venture incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,
2021 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture
ncorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
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and according ta the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors
on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries, associate and joint
venture, as noted in the *Other matter” paragraph:

i.  The conselidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, its associate and joint venture in its consolidated Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 37 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 21 and 32 to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

iit.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Invesior Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associate and joint venture incorporated
in India during the year ended March 31, 2021,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Regjstration Number:; 101049W/E300004

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: Z1210934AAAADI6999
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 15, 2021
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Contrals under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and iis subsidiary
companies and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Contirols

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and jeint venture, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Conirels Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasenable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating ¢ffectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company, insofar as it relates to these four subsidiary companies and one joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the anditors of such subsidiaries and joint venture
incorporated in India.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Bharath N S

Parmer

dMembership Number: 210934
UDIN: 21210934AAAADI6999
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 15, 2021
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
i amotmts arve in Idian rupees (3 lakfs except share date and othenvise stated)

Note As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

ASSETS
Not-current assets
Preperty. plant and equipment 13 34.50:.82 3648544
Capital work-mn-progress 1.573.94 820,64
Goodwill l6 45 904,45 45,442 40
Other intangible assets 16 22,882.65 23.88].62
Right-of-use assets 168 95.427.50 97.38%.11
Equity accounted investees 17 10.050.52 371596
Financial assets
Investmenis 19 20,60 26151
Trade receivable 24 632,46 .
Deposits and other receivables 20 4.743.88 4.361.96
Other financral assets 21 1.224.27 74846
Deterred tax assers (net) 14 1241270 7.316.19
Neon-current tax assets (net) 7.416.76 827046
Other non-current asseis 22 250.2% 719,92
Total non-current assets 2.37.044.03 2,20.613.67
Current Assets
Inventeries 23 22.765.53 16.982.18
Financial assets
Investments 19 133562 1.061.29
Trade receivables 24 1.12,798.68 1.30.727.56
Cash and cash equivalents 25 33.696.24 28461.28
Other bank balances 26 371597 2621652
[.oans 27 - -
Dreposits and other receivables 20 6.673.36 5.334.80
Other tinancial assets 21l 20.968.25 24.836.04
Current tax assets |net) 418713 [.118.23
Other current assets 28 17.634.75 14.292 01
Assets classified as held for disposal 45 587196 6.348.89
Total current assets 2,58,667.49 3.15,399.24)
Total assets 4,95,711.52 5.45,012.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capiral 29A 3.176.21 3.176.21
Orther equity 298 46.0:32.80 47.903 46
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 49,229.01 £1,079.67
Nen-centrolling interests 18 3.996.89 7.982.42
Taotal equity 53.225.90 59,062.09




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
tAH cmomens are i badion rupees (3 lakhs except shave data and othervwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 30 05, 102.81 9592394
Lease liability 16B 87.436.16 91.757.66
COther financial liabilities 32 2371351 3.629.92
Provisions 33 3359902 1.836.74
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 12,254.28 9131.01
Other nen current liabilities 34 - 155.16
Total non-cwrrent liabilities 2,141,969.58 20245443
Current liabilities
Financial liabwlities
Borrowings 30 55.547.51 1.16.265 2|
Lease liability 16B 29.102.70 2648598
Trade payables 31 1.12,167.19 1.01.2538.21
Other tinancial liabilities 32 20433.29 20.973.09
Provisions 33 325103 2.464.92
Current tax liabilities (net) 207.63 146,58
Other current liabilities 35 1577574 10.997.75
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 43 503093 4904 61
Total current liabilities 2.41,516.04 2.83.496.35
Total liabilitles 4.42,485.62 4,85,950.78
Fotal equity and liabilities 4,95,711.52 545,012.87
The notes from | to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial siatements.
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
Firm Registration Number : [01049W / E300004 TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Chartered Accountants

phoods UL\MLT R, el

Bharath N § $ Mabalingam R Dinesh
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No. 210934 DIN: 00121727 DIN: 00363300

Place : Chennai
Date . 13 June 2021
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Ravi Yiswanathan S Ravichandran
Joint Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 08713910 p DIN: 01485845

We

‘|
|§al\fi Prakash Bhagavathula P D Krishna Prasad
Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place Singapore

Place : Chennai
Date : |5 June 2021




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(A qunotants are in Indiens rupees (39 lakhs except share dota aned otherwise stated)

Nofte Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Mavrch 2020
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 5 6.93.359.69 6.60.434.9
Other income 6 6.609.39 18,821 40
Total income 6,99.969.08 6,79,276.34
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 7 245937 2.872.00
Purchase of stock-in-trade 8 G5.828.75 8793660
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 9 (4.363.34) 160.90
Emplovee benefits expense 10 1,79.900.43 1.80.4 16.05
Finance costs il 17,559.81 2311891
Depreciation and amertisation expense 12 44.328.21 4445015
Other expenses 13 3.80.863.64 3.04.700.80
Total expenses 7.16,578.67 70367550
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items, share of profit / {16.609.5%) (24,399.16)
(loss) of equity accounted investees and income tax from
continuing operations
Exceptienal items {refer note 16 and 17) 521448 -
Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees {net of 17 {6.66} 21898
income tax)
Profit / (loss} before tax from continuing operations (11,401.77) (24,180.18)
Tax expenses
Current tax (1.687.62) 2.635.75
Deferred tax (2.484.28) (2.0F3.10)
Total tax expenses 14 {4,171L.90) 622.65
Profit / (lnss) for the year from continuing operations {7,229.8T) (24.302.83)
Discontinued operations
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations before tax expenses {24397 4335
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Curvent tax - 1.62
Profit / (Juss) after tax from discontinued operations {(243.97) 2.73
Profit / (loss) for the year (7A73.54) {24,800.10
Other comprehensive income
frems that will rot be rectassified subsequently to profit or foss
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 149.37 146.41
income tax relating to above (43.94) {6140
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified 105.43 $3.01
ftems thar will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange gain / {loss) in translating financial statements of foreign operations 87247 {1.327.8%)
[ncome tax relating o above - -
872.47 {1.327.8%)
Effective portion of cash flow hedge (776.34) .
Income tax retating to above - -
{776.34) -
Items reclussified subsequently to profit or loss
Etfective portion of cash flow hedge - 33732
Income tax relating to above - 196.90}
- 440.42

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified 96.13 (887.47)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 201.56 (362,46)

(7,272.28) (25.602.56)

Total comprehiensive income for the year




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 202)
r Al amonnis are in Indian rupees (T) fukhs except shere data ond otherwise stated)

Note Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 202¢

Profit / {loss) attributable to:
Chyners of the Company
Men-controlling interests
Profit/{lass) for the year

Other comprehensive income atiributable to ;
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to :
Qwners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings / (loss} per share () for continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings / (loss) per share (%) for discontinued operations
Basic
Diluted

Earnings / (loss) per share (3} for continuing and discontinued operations
Basic
Diluted

The notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Finm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

Bharath N 5

Partner

Membership No. 210934
Place . Chennai

Date : 13 June 2021

§ Mabalingam
Chainnan
DIN: 00121727

E&u U aszradtp (v

Ravi Yiswanathan

Joint Managing Director

DIN: 08713910

Place : Singapeore

Ra\/fl Prakash Bhagavathula
Linfup Chief Fiitancial Officer

(7.273.58) (19.253.67)
18 (200.26) {3.566.43)
(7473.84) {24,800.10)
(70.23) {634.34)
18 271.80 (168.12)
201.54 (81246}
(7343 81} {19.868.01)
18 71.53 (5.734.56)
{7,272.28) (25,602.57)
26E {2134} (60,143
(21.34) {60.14)
26E (0.74} 0.0l
(0.74) 0.01
29E {22.08) 60.13)
{22.08) {60.13)

Sor and on behalf of the board of directors of
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

R Dinesh
Managing Director
DIN: 00363300

(L P S

S Ravichandran
Whole-tine Dvirector
DIN:; 01485845
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Krishna Prasad
Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date : 13 June 202 |
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated Seatement of cashflows For the vear ended 315t March 2021
(Al anrownts are i bidian rupees (3) lakis excepr share data and sthenvise stated)

Cash flow from / {used in) operating activities

Profit / {loss) before tax from continuing operations
Profit / (loss) before tax from discontinued operations
Adjustments for:

[nterest income

Provision no longer required written back

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Write off of intangibles

Gain on termimation of lease centract

Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets measured at FYTPL
Forcign exchange differences (gain¥loss

Bad clebis written oft’

Provision for doubtful financial assets and Hitigations
Provision for impairment on investments

Share of (profity/loss of equity accounted investees

Gain on deemed disposal of investiment in joint venture
Share based payment expenses

(Profit¥loss on sale of property plant and equipment. net
Gain on sale and lzase back

Operating profit / (loss) before changes in operating assets

Change in operating assets and liabilities

tIncrease) / decrease in inventories

{Increase) / decrease in trade receivables

{Increase) / decrease in other current and non-curtent. financial and non-financial assets
[nerease / (decrease) in trade payables

Increase / {decrease) in provisions

[ncrease / (decrease} in other current and non-current financial and non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net of refunds
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from / (used in} investing activities

[nvestment in bank deposits having an original maturity of ntore than three months
Payments for property. plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment

Redemption/{Investment) in mutual funds

Investment in bedy eorporate

Paynmient of consideration pavable and deferred consideration

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Interest income received

Net eash from / (used in} investing activities

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

{11, 401.77) {24,180.18)
(243.97) 4.35
11.162.39) (113657
(LO42.43) {1.043.40)
17.560.10 23.120.03
44.333.63 44.465.99
1.27552 -
(340,111 (L3013
- 1.209.76
786.04 461.33
951.25 1.763.59
2.698.47 4,163.85
161.78 -
6.66 {218.93}
(6.490.00) -
1,902 98 8sir.61
56.32 621.87
- 16.717.535)
48,851.88 38,744.71
14.366.15) 146.74
18.283.84 (9.818.12)
(913514 {1.682.21)
8.821.94 736.36
31387 (432.53)
§.720.99 (3.073.39)
71.490.23 24,621.56
277.45) 5.591.30
71,212.78 19.036.26
2313517 (22,9739
(11.651.95) 112.439.80
34081 46423
- 1,170.32
(20.00)
{15.005.39) (3.282 24y
{1.475 86) -
318.90 753.08
6,337.69 {36.312.72)




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of cashflows for the vear ended 31st March 2021
CAH amonnts are in Indien rupees (3) lakhs except shave data and otherwise stetfed)

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Finance lease pavments

Proceeds from sale and lease back transaction {refer note 16Bie))
Proceeds from compulserily convertible preference shares. (nety
Proceeds from jssue/exercise of share warrants

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests by subsidiaries including Dividend Distribution Tax
{Repayment of) / proceeds from short term borrowings, net
Proceeds from long tenm borrowings

Payment of transaction costs related to botrowings

Repavment of long terny borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities

Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial vear

Less: Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations

Cash and cash equaivalents at the end of the financial year from continwing operations#
# For details of restricted cash, refer note 25.

The notes from | to 48 torm an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

RN =

Bharath N § S Mahalingam
Partner Chairman
Membership No. 210934 DIN: 06121727
Place : Chennai

Date - 15 June 2021

K)&L‘ M‘—;N‘ﬁr\.eﬁ‘&ﬁ“

Ravi Viswanmathan
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 08713910

Ravi Prakash ;&hagavalhula
Grpyp Chiet Financial Qfficer
Plate : Singapore

Year ended
31 Mareh 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

{37.089.97)

137.203.98%,

- 28.075 81

- 17.143.30

. 676.88
£12.00) (4267)
(64.382.11) 6347483
4329 95,173.29
(653.11) 12.893.53)
(5.393 84) {96.110.68)
(9.037.63) 112,644 35}
(1,16,725.39) 55,652.90
(39.174.92) 38,370.44
88.968.30 47,936.80
404761 2.66106
53,840.99 88,968.30
144.75 507.02
53,696.24 88.461.28

Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

R Dl

R Dinesh

Managing Director
DIN: 00363300

M
AAN

S Ravichandran
Whole-time Director
DIN: 11485845

7y {/\Z\:_( v\,—"
P 1Y Krishna Prasad

Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date - 15 June 2021



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial séatements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
(Al comounts are in Indian rupees (3) lukhs except share duter und othenvise stated)

1 Reporting entity

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (“the Company”} is a Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 16 November 2004, These
consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries {referred to collectively as "the Group®) and the Group's interest in
associates and joint ventures. Refer note 46 for the list of subsidiaries and note 17 for the list of associates and joimt ventures, The Group is
primarily involved in providing the entire basket of supply chain management services including outsourced supply chain management services.
lastmile tulfilment delivers services. infercontinental movenient and other related services.

2 Basis of preparation
A Statement of compliance and going concern assessment

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) to comply with the
requirements preseribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act’) read with the Companiss {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015 as amended from time to time.

In view of the matters as mentioned in Note 2.F. the Group has assessed the continuing impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
on availability of liquidity in its businesses and its abilitv to repay its obligations bath in respect of borrowings and other liabilities as and when
they are due.

Across the world. fockdown rules have been substantially reduced while in India. there are tempotary restrictions in movement of people and
resources aftecting the business operations. The management is confident that business will resume with robust growth in the near future, The
Group also believes the pandemic is not expected to have any material medium to long term impact to its business prospects.

The Group has made a detailed assessment of its liquidity position and has considered the possible impact of Covid 19 on the tinancial
projections and commitments psing available information. estimates and judgements.

In borrowing arrangements, the Group has not defavlted and the Group had obtained the waiver for compliance with certain key financial
covenants till March 31. 2021. In addition. the Group has restructured certain key financial covenants of the existing facility agreements upto
March 31. 2623 which would enable it to continue servicing the loans as per the existing repayvinent plan. The Group is confident that it would
meet the revised commitments with the lenders for petiods subsequent to March 31. 2021,

Based on the foregoing and necessary stress tests considering vartous seenarios. management believes that the Group will be able to pav its
obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly. the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 15 June. 2021.
Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B Functional and presenéation curvency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). which is also the Company’s functional corrency. All amounts
have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs. unless otherwise stated.

¢ Basis of measurement

These conselidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Ltems Measurement basis
Certain linancial assets and liabilitics (including derivative instruments) Fair value
Net defined benetit (asset)/ liabitity Fair value of plan assets less present value of detined benefit

obligations

D Use of estimates and judgements

En preparing these consolidated financial statements. management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities. income and expenses. Actual resules may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates are recognised prospectively




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
AN canounis are in Indian rupees (31 lakhs except shure duta and otherwise stuted)

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting pelicies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

= Note 3 {(K) & 5 - Recognition of revenue

= Note 3 (D). (E) & (G). 5 and 16A - Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets ~ usetul lives and impairment

- MNote 3 (C). 24 & 43 - Allowances for credit losses for rade receivables

= Note 3 (G) (i) & 16A - Impairment testing for goodwill

= Note 3 (H). 36 - Assets and obligations relating to emplovee benefits

= Note 3 (L). 16B & 38 - Leass classification. termination and renewal option of leases

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a matetial adjustment in the vear ended 31
Mazch 2021 is included in the following nofes:

= Note 14 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of fimure taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be nsed:

= Note [6A - Impairment testing for goodwill

- Note 36 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions:

= Note 43 — impairment of financial assets,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
LA ctronnines e am fodiom rupecs €33 il except siuare daier amd otfiernise steted)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
E Measurement of fair values

A number of the Gronp's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both tinancial and nen-financial assets and
liabihnes.

The Group has an established control fiamework with respect to the measurement of fair values The Group tegularhy reviews significant
untebservable inputs and valuation adjustiments. 15 thied party information is used 16 measure fair values. then the Group assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to suppart the conclission that these valuations meer the requirements of Ind AS. including the Jevel m the far value
higrarchy in which the valuations should be classified. -

Fair values sre categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as tollows;

= Level I: quoted pices funadjusted} in active markets for 1dentical assels or liabilihes.

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices in¢luded in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (1.6.. as pricesy or indirecthy
{i.¢.. devived from prices).

- Lavel 3. inpots for the asset or liability that are nat based on observable marker data (unobservalle inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. 1T the inputs used to measure the
tair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is categonised in ifs entirety in
the same level of the fair value hietarchy as the lowesl Jevel tput thot is signiticant 10 the entire measurement, The Group recogmses iwansfer
betsween Jevels of the fair value hierarchy ai the end of the repoiting period during which the change has occurred.

Further informatien about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 39A - Business combinations
= Note 43 = financial instruments

F  Estimation of uncertaintics relating to the global health pandemic frem COVID-19
COVID-19 pandemic {declared as such by the World Health Organisation on March 11, 2020). had contnbuted to widespread volatihry and
decrease 11 ¢conomic activity acress geographies meluding Indian markeds m 2020 [v's Impact contmyes in 2021 across countries and economies.
particularly in emerging markets. This pandemic has led 1o distuphions to business opeartions During the vear. various govermments imposed
lockdewns over a period of time depending on the severity of the outbreak. This has led to an uncertainty in the Group's ability to return io full
capacity in its operations.

A detailed assessment has been carried out by the Group for each business segment with regards to impact on revenue. costs and other financial
statement metrics. Impact due o any extended credit terms. cancelled orders. change in conteoctual terms. Price CONCESSION request. onerous
obligations etc. were comprehensively evaluated for any risk due to Covid-L9 on revenue recagnized and collzctability thereof: No material impact
has been noted in this impact assessment.

In assessing the receverabality of its assets including receivables. property. ptant and equipment, intangibles. investments, goodwill ¢te.. the Group
has considered internal and extemnal information up to the date of approval of these financial statements mcluding economic forecasts. The Group
has pertormes] analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Group expects to recover the
carrying amount of these assets. While the Group expects to address all challenges from the pandemic. it continues to monitor these mariers and the
estimates and fudgements used in the preparation of these financial statements. Given the dvnamic and avelving nature of this pandemic. these
esfimates are subject to uncertainties and may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic and consequential impact on the economy.

3 Significant accounting policies

A Basis of consolidation
i. Business combinations
Business combmations otficr thuan commot controf business combinitions) o or fier § Junpary 2011
The Growp has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS, viz. lnd AS 103, Business Combinations. retrospectively to those business combinations that
accurred on ar after 1 January 201 1. In accordance with [nd AS 103, the Group accounts far these business combmations vsing the acquisition
method when control 15 transterred to the Group. The consideration transfened for the business combination is generally measured ar fair value as at
the date the conirol is acquired (acquisition date). as are the net identifiable assels acquired. Any goedwill that anises is tested annually tor
impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capilal reserve if there exists clear avidence of the
underlvitig reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly in equiry as
capital reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the sentlement of pre-existing relationships with the acquivee. Such amoonts are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fai value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent consideration that meets the
definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity. then it is vet remeasured subsequently and settlement is aceonnted for within equity,
Other contingent consideration is 1 d at fair value at each reporting date and changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recopnised in profit or loss

[ share-based payment awards (replacement awards are required 1o be exchanged tor awards held by the acquiree's emplovees (acquiree’s awards).
then all or a portion of the amount ot the acquirer's replacement awards is included in measurmg the consideration wansterred in the business
combination. The determination of the amount to be included in consideration ranstermed is based on the market-based measure of the replacement
awards compared with the market-based of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate t0 pre-combination
service.

Ii a business combination is achieved in stages. any previously beld equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or lass or OCI. as appropriate.




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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3 Significant accaunting policies (¢ontinued)
A Basis of consolidation {continued)
Bustiexs contbiitions prrog to 1 fanuery 201 1

In respect of such business combinations, goadwill represents the amount recogmised under the Group's previous accounting framework under
Indian GAAP.

Ot Comired BRSECSE ComPaniotiony

Business combinations arising fram transfers of witerests m entities that are under the control of the sharehalder that controls the Group are
accounted for as if the acquisition had eccurred at the beginning of the earliest comparatrve period presented or. if later. at the date that common
control was established: for this purpose compatatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised ol their carrving amounts.

i Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an antitv when it is exposed to. or has rights 1o, variable remins from its
invelvement with the entiry and has the ability 1o affect those retums through its power over the entity. The tinancial statemenis of subsidiaries are
incloded in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

iif. Non-controlling interests (INCI)

An entity lias a choice on a combination-by-combination basis o measure any NCI that represents present ownership interest in the acquiree at
either faiv value o1 the proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets. Inv respect of business combinations affected so far. the Group
has elected one of the two approaches on a combination by combination basis.

Changes in the Group’s equify interest in a subsidiary that do not result in g loss of contral are accounted for as equity transactions.

iv. Loss of controf

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary. it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary. and any related NCI and other
components of equity. Any interest ietained in the former subsidiary is measwed at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or
loss is vecognised n profit or loss.

v. Eigtiity acconnted investees

The Group's mierests in equity accounted investees comprise intetests in associates and joint ventures.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has sigmficant influence, but not control ot joint control, over the financial and operating policies. A
Joint venture is an amangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights te the net assets of the arrangement. rather than rights to its
assets and abligations tor its liabilities,

Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounied for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes tansaction
costs, Subsequent to initial vecognition. the consolidated Financial statements inglude the Group's share of profic or less and Other Comprehensive
[ncome {OCT) of equity- accountied investegs untif the date on which signiticant intluence or joint control ceases.

vi, Qbraining control aver existing investment
The difterence between the fair value of the initial interest as the date of obtainmg control and its book value has been rec grised w the statement
of profitand |oss.

vi. Fransactions efiminated on consolidution

Intra-group balances and wansactions. and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group wansactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising trom transactions wiih equity accounted investees are eliminated aganst the invesiment to the extent of the Group's imterest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gatns. but only 1o the extent that there is-no evidence of impairment.

B Foreign currency
i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inio the respactive functional currencies of the Group companies at the exchange rates at the dates
of the fransactions or an averaye rate it the average rate approximates the actoal rate at the date of Ihe transaction

Monetary assets and Kabilities denominated in toreign currencies are franslated into the functional currency at the exchange rate al the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that ate teasured at fair value in a foreign currency are franslated into the functional currency at the
exchange 1ate when the fair value was determined. Non-mwnetary assets and liabilities thar are measured based on historical cost in a forgign
cuirency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the tcansaction. Exchange differences are recognised in mrofitor loss.

ii. Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign eperations {subsidiaries. associates. joint amangements} including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition. are translated imto INR. the functional currency of the Company. at the exchange rates at the reporung date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated into INR at the sxchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approxnnates the
actual rake at the date of the transaction.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entwery or partially such that control. significant influence or Joint control 35 lest, the cumulative
amount of exchange differences related to thar feretygn operation recognised i OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. If the Group dispases of part of its interest 1n a subsidiary but retains control. then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount s re-
allocated to NCL When the Group disposes of only a part of its interest in an associate or a Jomnt venture while retaining sigaificant influgnce or
Joint control, the relevant praportion of the cumulative amount is reclassifizd to profir or loss.
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3 Significant aecounting policies (continued)
€ Financial instroments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Tranle receivables and debt securities issued ure witiglly recognised when they are orfginated. Al other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the insirument

A financial assel or financial liability is initially measured al faic value plus. for an item not at fe value through profit and luss (FYTPL).
wansiction cosis that are directly anribable ko its acquisition of issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On imtial recognition. a tinancial ssset is classified as measured at

- amertised cost:

- FYTPL

Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition. except 1Y and in the peiicd the Group changes its business mode] for
managimg financial assets.

A financial asset 1s measured at amortised cost if it mests both of the followinyg conditiens and is mot designated as at FYTPL;

= the asset 15 held witiin a business model whose obyective is to hold assets to collect comractual cash fows: and

= the contractual rerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are selely paviments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

All financial assets not classified as measured at omortised cost as described above are measured at FYTPL. This includes all denvatve financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may arevocably designate 2 financial asset that orherwise meets the requirements 10 be measured at
amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing se eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise

Financial assets: Subsequent ement and gains and losses
Financsal assets al FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Nei gains and losses. including any interest or
drvidend income. are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets st amortised cost These assers are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ¢ffective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment Josses. Interest income, foreign exchange moins and losses
and impairment are recognised m profit or loss Anv ain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subscquent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-ading. or it is a derivative o it is designated as such an injtial recogninion. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and lesses, including any interest expense. are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilines are subsequently measured at
amoriised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchunge mains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any zain
or loss on derepognition 1s also recozmsed in profit or lass.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flaws frem the financial asset expire. o1 it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transacton in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
vansferred or in which the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewaids of ownership and does not retain control of
the financial asser.

[ the Group enters inte ransactions wheveby it transfers assets recogmsed on its balance sheet, bt retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the fransferred assets. the transferred assets are not derecognised

Financial liabilitics

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are moditied and the cash tlows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case. a new financial bability based on the modified terms is recognised al fair value. The difference benveen the canying aneunt
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial Liability with moditied terms is recognised in profit or Joss,

iv. Ofifsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are ofTset and the net amount presented in the balance sheer when. and only when. the Greup currently has a
leyally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on 3 net basts or o realise the asset and settle the liabaliry
simuitaneously,

v. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses denvative Ffinancial instruments, such as forward CULTERCY CONFACIS. inferest rate.cToss chitfency swaps efe to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instcuments are Taitially recognised a1 fuir value on the date on which a derivative
contract is enlergd inte and are subsequently 1e-m d at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financral assets when the fair value is positive and
as Ninancial habilities when the fair value is negative,

Amy gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatves are taken directly to profit or loss. except far the effective portion of cush
flow hedges. which is recognised m OCT and later reclassified fo profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or neated as busis
adjustment it a hedged forecast ransaction subsequently reswits in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability {refer note
30ALN & 430w
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued}
€ Financial instruments (continued)
For the purpose of hedge accounting. hedges are classified as:
{iy Farr value hedges when hedging the expasure 1o changes in the fair value of a vecogmsed assel or liabrliny or an unizcognised tirm commitment

Gy Cash How hedges when hedging the exposure o varability in cash flows that is either attributable 1o a particular nsk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or 2 highly probable torecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecozmsed finm commitment
(i Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Al the meeption of a hedge relationship. the Group formally designates and decuments the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes o apply
hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the group's risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedys, the hedging economic relationship. the hedged item or ransaction. the nature of the risk
being hedged. hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectivensss of changes in the hedging instrament’s fain valug in offsenting the
exposure o changes in the hedged item’s Fair value or cash lows atributable to the hedgzad risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongaing basis to detemmine that they actually have been highly
eftective throughout the financial reporting periods tor which they were designated,

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedye accounting are accounted for. as desenbed belosy:

{i) Fair value hedge

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recogmised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs The change in the fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the conving value of the hedged item and is also recogmised in the statzment of
profir and boss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges refating (o items carried at amortised cost, any adfustment o cammying value is amertised through profit or loss over the
remaining tevm of the hedge usmy the EXR method. EIR amortisation may bewin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedyed
item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value artrihwiable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised. the unamortised fair valuz is recognised immediately in profu or loss When an unrecognised firm commitment
ts designated as a hedged item. the subsequent cumuiative change in the fair value of the firm commitment athibutable to the hedped risk is
recognised as an asset of liability with a cortesponding gain o loss recognised in profit and Joss.

{ii) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recogmsed in OCH in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion
is recognised immediaely in the statement of profit and less,

The Group also may separate forward element and the spot element of a forward contract and designate as the hedgimg instrumient only ihe change
i the value of the spot element ef 3 forward contract.

Amennts recognised as OCT are ransfered to profit or loss when the hedged fransaclion affects profit or toss, such as when the hedged financial
nceme or financiol expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged stem is the cose of a non-financial agset or non-financial
liability. the amounts recognised as OC are transterved 1o the initial camving amount of the non-financial asset or Habitity.

When an entity separates the forward element and the spot element of a Forward contiact and desigrates as the hedging instrument only the change
in the value of the spot element of the forward contract, sych amount is recognised in OCT and accumulaied as a separate component of equity under
cost of hedging reserve. These amounts are reclissified to the statement of profit or loss account a5 a reclassitication adjustment in the same period
or periods during which the hedged cash Hows aifect profit or less or when the hedged itein is a non-financial assel or non-financial Nability, the
amounts tecognised in cost of hedying reserve aie transferred to the initial canving amount of the non-financial asset or Liability.

It the hedging instrument expires or is sold. terminated or exercised without veplacement or vollaver {as part of the hedging strategy). o it us
designation as a hedge is revoked. or when the hedge no longer meets the critenia for hedge accounting. any cumubative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCL remains separately in equity until the forecast Iransaction occurs or the foreign curency fitm commitment is met.

(iii) Hedgas of a net investmani

Hedyes of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge af a monstary item that s accounted for as patt of the net mvestment. are
accounted for in a way similar 1o cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedie are
recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating 1o the ineffective portion ate recognised in the statement of profit ot lvss. On disposal of the
fereign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is seclassified to the statement of profit or loss (as a
reclassitication adjusiment ).
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)
D Property, plant and ¢quipment

i. Recognition and measurement

liems of propery. plant and squipment are measured at cost. which includes vapitahised borrowing costs, less accumulated depeeciation and
accumulated impainment losses. iFany

Cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including impert duties and non-refundable purchase 1axes. afier
deducting trade discounts and rebates. anv directly atibutable cost of bringing the item to ns working condition for its inlended use and estimated
costs of dismaniling and removing e rtem and restoring the site on which it is lacated,

It significant paits of an wem of propeety, plant and equipment have difierent uszful lives. then they are accountad for as separate items | major
components} of propety. pland and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of on item of property. plam and equipment is recognised in profit or loss

il. Subsequent expenditore
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iti. Deprectation

Depreciation 15 calewlated on cost of items of property. plant and squipment less their esnmated residual values over their estimated wsetul lives
using the straight-line method. and is generally recognised in 1he statement of prafit and loss. Assets acquired under fmance leases are depieciated
over the shorier of the lease reem and their useful lives unless it is reasonably cerain that the Group will biain ownership by the end of the lease
term. Freehold land is not depreciated

The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipnient for the current and comparative periods are as fellows:

Management estimate of useful

Assel life {in vears)
Buildings 30t 60
Plant and Machinery 02 ta 30
Furnitare and fixtures 01to 10
Vehicles 03w 10
Office equipment RGN It
Computer equipment U3 w0 1
Leaschold improvements *

* Leasehald improvements are umortised on a straight ling bosis over the useful life of the assot or the lease petiod whichever is lower.

Depreciation method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each financial vear-end and adjusted it apprepriate Bused on techical
evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful fives as given above bess represent the peried over which
management expects (o nse these assets and are diffecent from those preseribed in Schedule 1 of the Act.

Deprecration on additions (disposalsy is provided on a pro=rats basis .e. from fupio) the date on which asset is ready for use idizposed of.

E Goodwill and other intangibles

i. Gondwill

Fur measurement of roodwill that arises on a busingss combination see note 39A. Subsequent measurement is al cest less any accumulated
impairment losses.

In respect of business combinations that occurred prior to | January 201 1. goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cast. which Tepresents the
amownts recorded under previous GAAP.

ik Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Group in a business combinativn are initially measured ar cost. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulared impairment losses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitolised only when it increases the future econamic benelits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurned

iv. Amaortisation

Gaodwill is not amortised and is fested for impairment annually.

Amodtisation is caleulated 1o wiite oft the cost of intangible assels less thew estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated usetul tives of itetns of intangible assets for the cutrent and comparative periods are as follows:
Management estimare of useful

Asset life (in years)
Patents and teademarks 3 to 10
Customer refationship and others 03w 10
Bramds Uit 10
Computer saltware [ERCRTH

Amorisation method. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of ench Gnancial vear and adjusted it appropriate.
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Significant accounting policies (eontinued)
Inventories

Inventaries consist of packing materials. stores, stock in irade and spure parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of inventories is based on the firstin first-out formulz, and includes expenditure incurred in aequicing the inventorics and other costs incued
in bringmyg them 1o their present location and condition.

Net realisable valoe is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value 1s ntade on an item by item basis.

Impairment

i, Impairment of financial instruments
The Group tecognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
- financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date. the Group assesses whether financial assets carried 2t amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit -
impaired” when one or more events that have a demmental impact on the estimated Future cash flows of the Financial asset have occ uved,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial ditficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- abreach of contract such as g defaulr.

- the restructuring of 4 loan or advance by the Group on tenms that the Group would rot consider otherwise:
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or ather financial reorganisation. or

- the disappearance of an active marke1 for a security because of Fnancial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances based on smplified approach, at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses. except for the following.
which are measured as 2 month expected credic losses:

- debt securities that are determined (o have low credit risk at the repotting date; and

» other debt securities and bank balances for which credit tisk (i.e the risk of defauly occtiring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has
not increased skmificantly since initial recognition.

Less allowances for trade recervables are alwayvs measured al an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expecied credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument 12 month sxpected credit losses are the portion of expected credrt losses that result from defaull events that are possible within 12
menths after the reporting date (or a shotier period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 manths) In all cases, the maximum period
cosidered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum conractual penod over which the Group is exposed to credir risk.

When deternmning whether the credit risk of a financial assel has increased signiticantly since initial recogmtion and when estumating expected
credit Josses. the Group considers reasonable and supportable intormation that is relevant and available without undue cost or sffort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Group's historical expenence and informed credit assessment and including
forward - leoking tnfarmation.

The Group censiders a financial asset to be i default when the borrower is unlikely 1o poy its credit obligations to the Group in full. without
vecourse by the Group te actions such as reaiising secutity (if any is held).

Measirenent of expected credit fosses

Expected credit losses are a probabilify-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls {i.e.
the difference benween the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,

L'resentatin of ullonrance for expected credit losses i e balunee sheet

Loss allowances for fnancial assets measured ar amortised cost are deducted from the Lross canving amount of the assets.

Wirere i

The gress carrving amount of a financial asset is writlen off feither partially or in fuli) to the extent that there is no realistic progpect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group detetmines that the debtor does not have assets or sourees of incomne that could generate sufficient cash
flows te repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject 10 enforcement activities in
order 1o comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of smounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's nen-financial assets. other than inventories and deferred tax assets. are reviewed at each vepotting date 16 determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. It any such indication exists. then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested for mpairment
annually.

For mpairment testing. assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating wnits (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are targely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUS,

Goodwill ansing from a business combination is allecated to CGUs or groups of CGUSs that ate expeeted to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
G lmpairment {continued)

ii. Impairment of non-financinl assets (continued}

The recoverable amounnt of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the highet of its valuz in use and its fair value less costs to sell, Yalue in use is based
on the estimated Future cash flows, discounted to their present valug using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specitic to the CGU for the assel s,

The Group's corporate assels do nat generate independent cash intlews. To determine impairment of a corporate asset. recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs 10 which the cotporate asset belongs.

An impainnent loss is recognised it the carrving amount of an assel or CGLJ exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recagnised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment Joss recognised i respect of a CGL is allocated first to reduce the canying amount of any
zowhwill allocated to the CGU. and then 10 reduce the camying ameunts of the other asseis of the CGU for group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An 1mpairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of ather assets for which impairmagnt loss has been recognised in
prior periods. the Uroup reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impainent loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates nsed t determing the recoverable amount. Such o reversal is made only 10
the extent that the asset’s camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been detarmined. net of depreciation or
amortisation, it no fimpairment loss had been secognised.

H Emplovee benefits

(i) Shart-term emplovee benefits

Short-term emploves benefit abligations are d on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability 15
recopnised for the amount expected 1o be paid ¢.g.. under short-term bonus. if the Group has a present legal or consiructive obligation to pay this
amaount as a reselt of past service provided by the employee. and the amount of ebligation cait be estimated reliably.

{il) Share-based payment transactions

The grant-date fair vaiue of equity-settled share-based pavment awards granted to emplovees 1s generally recognised as an emplovee benetit
expense. with a corresponding increase in equity. over the period that the employees uncenditionally become entitled 1o the awards. The amount
recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount vltimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the relaled service and
non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions. the grant-dale fair valve of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is na true-up for differences benween expected and acoual oulcomes.

{iii} Pefined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employmem benzfit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions ino a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation 1o pay further amounts, The Company and its subsidiaries in various geographies make contributiens, generally
determined as a specitied percentage of emplovee salaties. in respect of qualifying employees in accordance with the lacal laws and regulations in
the respechive counfiies which are defined comribution plans, Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans gre recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit os loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by emplovess,

{iv} Defined beneflt plans

A detined benefit plan is a post-emplovment benefit plan other than a definad contribution plan The Group's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of Future benefit that emplovess have earned in the cument and prior
petiods. disceunting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Group. the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits. consideration is given to any minirmum tunding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabifiny. swhich comprise actuarial gains and losses. the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
eftect of the assel ceiling (if any. excluding interesty, are recognised in OCE The Group determines the net interest expense (incame on the net
defined benefit liabhry (asset) for the period by applying the discount vate used to measure the defined benefit obl igation at the beginning of the
annual penod to the then-net defied benefir liability (asset). taking into account any changes in the net defined benefic liability (asset) during the
perivd as a result of contributions and benefit pavments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benetit plans are recognised in
profit or foss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (*past service cost” of
"past setvice gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment 15 recognised immediately 1n profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the
seltlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
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Significant aceounting pulicies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

{v) Other long-term emplovee benefits

The Group's pet oblization in respect of long-term etnployee benetits other than post-employmen benefits is the amount of future benefit that
emplovess liave eamed in refum for their service in the current and prior periods: that banefit is discounted to detsrmine its present value. andl the
fair value of any related assets is deducted. The abligation is measured on the basis of an annual independeat actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. Remeasurements mains or losses are recognisad in prafit or loss in the period in which they arise,

Provisions (other than for emplovee benefirs)

A provision is recognised if. as a result of a past event. the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to sefile the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expendiure required ta seitle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) ot 2 pre-tax
rate thal reflects current markel assessiments of the time valve of money and the risks specitic to the liability. The ynwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost. Expected tuture operating losses are not provided for

i, Oneraus contracts

A contract is considered 1o be onerous when the expected economic benefils to be derived by the Group from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision For an onerous contract is meassred at the present value of the lower of
the expecied cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the comtract Before such a provision is made. the Group
recegnises any impaiyment loss on the assets associated with thar contracl.

Contingent lixbilities and contingent assets

Contingent liahility 15 disclosed for all:

- possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the conrel of the Group {or}

- present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable thal an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the abligation cannot be made,

[n espect of contingent assets for which inflow of economic benefits are probable. the Group discloses a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets ot the end of the vear. and. where practicable. an estimate of their financial effect.

Revenue

i. Rendering of services

Revenue from conmracts with custemers is recognised when control of the services are transferred 1o e custorner at an amounr that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects 1o be eniiled in exchange for those services. Such revenue is recognised upon 1he Compam’s
performance of its contractual oblizations and on satisfving all the following conditions:

(1) Punties to the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform their respective obligations:

12) Such contract has specificd the respective rights and obligations of the parties m connection with the transfer of goods or renderng of services
{hereinafrer the “Transter”y.

{3) Such contract containg specétic pavment terms in relation 16 the Transfar:

(4) Such contract has a commercial nature. namely. it will change the risk. time distribution ar ameunt of the Company s future cash flow.,

(3) The Company is likely to recover the consideration it is entitfed to for the Transfer to customers.

Revenue is recognised when ne sigmiicant uncertainty exists regarding the eollection of the consideration. The amount recognised a5 revenue 1s
exclusive of all indivect taxes and net of returns and discounis.

Performance Obligations:

a) Supply chain management

The Company’s supply chain management segment generates rervenue from services fo its customers such as providing freight and other
transportation services. warchousing. packaging. kitting. reverse logistics and inventory managerent contracts ranging fiom 2 few manths to a few
vears, Certain accessorial services may be provided to customers under their hransportation contracts. such as unloading and other incidental
services. The Company’s performance obligations are satisfied over time as cuslomers simultangously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company’s services. The confracts contain a single performance obligation. as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over
time and possess the same pattern of ransfer. The transaction price is based an the consideration specified in the conmract with the customer and
contains fixed and variable consideration. In general. the fixed compenent of a contract represents amounts for facility and equipment costs incurred
1o salisfy the performance obligation and 15 recognized over the term of the contract.

[n the case of transportation services. performance obliyation is created when a custamer under a transportation contract submits u shipment note for
the transpeit of goods (rom otigin 1o destination. These pertormance obligations are satisfied over the periud as the shipments move from oririn to
destination and revenue is recognized proportionally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred, Performance obligations
afe short-lerm. with transit days less than one week. Generally. customers are billed either upon shipment of the freight or on 3 monthly basis. and
remit paviuent according to approved pavment rerms. The Company recognizes revenue on a net basis when the € ompany does not control the
speaific services.
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3 Significant accounting policies {continued)

K Revenue (continued)
b} Telecommunication:
Telecommunication conteact revenus arses from construction erection of towers for some af the Company’s ¢ s n the Telec ications
segment. These towers are constructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with custemers by oulsouremg the activities 1o sub-contractors,
Transaction price mcludes the initial amount agreed in the confract plus any variations in contract work. claims and incentive pavments. to the
extent that it is probable that thev will resnlt in revenue and can bz measured reliably. 16 the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably. contract
revenue is recognised in profit or loss over the period in proportion fo the stage of completion of the contract The stage of completion iz assessed by
refzrence 1o survevs of work pesrformed fontput method). Otherwvise. contiact revenue is recognised only to the extent ol contract ¢osts incuired that
are likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are recogmised as expenses as meuried unlass they ¢reate an asset related 1o future contract activine. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised immediataly in profit ot loss,

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in aceordance with the contract terms but not billed. Revenue is measured at fair value of
the consideration received or recervable. after deduction of any trade discounts. volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
goverument such as gooads and services tax_ efe. Accumulated expenence is used to estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue
15 only recognised to the extent that 1t 35 ighly probable a significan reversal will not accur,

c) Integrated logistics:

In respect of contracis where the Company provides a significant service of integrating two or mate goods or services inta a combmed ouiput (that is
the specitied good or service for which the customer coniracted) and the inputs 1o the combined output is comrolled by the Company. the Company
cottals that specitied good or service before it is wansferred to the customer. Revenues from such conracts are tecognized upon substantial
fulfilment of obligations under (he contract.

d) Sale of goods

Revenue trom sale of traded goods including telecommunication goods is recognised when the connol of the same is wansferred to the customer.
genevally on delivery of the goods and it is probable that the Company will collact the consideration to which it is entitled for the exchanged goods.

e) Commission;
When the Company acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transactien, the revenue recognised is the nel amounr of revenue
earned bn the Company.

Variable consideration:

Generally, the Company’s centracts contain provisions for adjustments to pricing based on achieving agreed-upon performance metrics, changes in
volumes. services and market conditions. Revenue relating to these pricing adjusiments is estimated and included in the consideration if it is
probable that a significant tevenue reversal will not occur in the future. The estimate of variable consideration 1s deternuned cither by the expected
vilue or most likely amount method and factors in current. past and Torecasted expenience with the customer. Customers ate billed based on terms
speeitied in the revenue contract and remit payment accarding o approved pavement terms.

Contract balances:

a) Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services tansferred (o the customer, I the C. ompany performs by transferring
200ds U Services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract asset is recognised tor the eared
consideration that is conditional.

k) Contract habilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received censideration (or an amount of
consideration 13 due) from the customer. If a customer pavs consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer. a contract
liabltey is recognised when the payment is made or the pavment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabihities are recognised as wevenue when
the Company perferms under the contiact,

L Leases
Group as lesses

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contyact is. or contains. a lease. That is. if the contract convevs the right o control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies a singlz recogntion and measurement approach for all leases.
except for shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises Tease Liabilines 10 make lease pavments and tight-ot-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assels.

(i) Right~ot-use assets

The Group recognises right-ot-use assers at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset s avaitable for use). Right-of-use
assels are measured ar cost. Jess any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease Liabilities recognized. iniual direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or befors the
commencement date less any lease incentives veczived. Right-uf-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 1he lease term.

I awnership of the leased asset transfers 1o the Group at the end of the lease tenn or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase optien. depreciation
is caleulated using the estimated useful lite of the asset. The right-of-use assets are subject to impairement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i} Lease liabilitics

At the commencament date of the lease, the Group tecagnises lease liabiliies measured a1 the present value of lease payments io be made over the
lease term. The lease pavinents include fixed pavments fincluding insubstance fixed paviments; less any lease incentives recenvable. variable lease
pavments that depend on an index or a rate. and umounts expected to be paid under resulual value guarantees. The lense povments alse wnclude the
exercise price of 4 purchase option reasonably certain o be exercised by the Group and payments of penaltics for terminating the lease. if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to termnate. Vaciable lease pavmeits thal do not depend on an index or a eate are recognised as
expenses tunless they are incurted 10 produce nventoriest in the period in which the event or condition thay riggers the pavment occurs.

[n calenlating the present value of lease payments. the Group uses its incremental bormowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
Interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitizs is increased to reflect the
accrenion of inferest and reduced for the lease pavments made. In addition. the camying anount of lease liabilites is remeasured if there iy a
modification. a change n the kease tern. a change in the lzase payments ¢ ¢.g.. chnges to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to detenmine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option 1o purchase the underlving asset.

(i) Shorit-term leases and leases of lew-value assets

The Gronp applies the shori-tetm lease recognition axemption ta its short-lerm leases fi.e.. those leases that have a leose term of 12 months or less
from the conmencement date and da not ¢ontain a purchase opton). It also applies the lase of low-value assets recognitan exemption to leases
that are considered to be low value. Lense payments on short-term leases and leases of low-valne assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lzase tepn.

tiv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under business combinations

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease pavments as at the acquisition date as if the acqmred lease were a
new lease as at shat date. The Righi-of-use asset is measured a1 the same amount as the lease liability plus or minus any asset or Jiability previously
recognised m the original business combination accounting for the faveurable ar untavourable lease terms.

(v} Key matters involving significant judgement

(a} Determining the lease term of contraets with termination options — Group as lessee

As per I AS (16, fermination options are to be considered in determining the non-cancellable period. The pevod covered by the termination
aption is included if the lessee is not reasonably certain to exercise the aptien. Lease term 15 the nen~cancellable period of a lease. together with any
optienal penods that the iessee is reasonably cerfain to nse, The nomcanceflable petiod of a lease is any period during which the lessee cannot
terminale the contract. Consequently. any non-cancellable period in effeel sets a minimum lease term, This is usually 1eferred as “kack-in” penod
the lease contract Generally, the lease contracrs are cancellable once the ~lock-in™ period is over. and, in most vases. the lenmnation option is
mutvally available with mmimum notice period requirements ander the contract,

In general. since Group has made sigmficant inveshments in each of the warshouse in the form of leasehold improvements. rackimyg sguipment etc.
and he terminanon would lead ro additional expenses (losses) for dismantlng and would lead to business disruption. the management m general
has concluded thar there is economic disincentive For the Group to discontinue * terminate any anangement. Accordingly. applyving Para B34 of Ind
AS 116, exvept for specitic cases, the Group concludes that nonscancellable period venerally includes the lease period covered by the option 1o
terminale.

(b} Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options — Group as lessee

As per Ind AS 116, the period covered by extension option is included if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option.

As reasonable centainty is a high threshold. the group believes in most Teases where the lease term is sreater than 3 vears assunting reasotiable
certainty on bease commencemens date may not be appropriate and must be evaluated on a case fo case basis, considering Factors such as investment
in the property. renewal lease rates. specific modifications te property o meet customer requitements. importance of the location and impact an
overall business distuption eic.

Recognition of dividend incume, interest income or eXpense

Dividend income 5 recognised in protit or loss on the date on which the Groups right 1o receive pavment is established.

Intetest income or ¢xpense is recognised using the effective intersst method.

The “effective interest rate” is the rate that exverly discounts estimated future cash pavments o receipes throwgh the expacted life of the financial
instrument to:

- the gross carrving amount of the tinancial asset. or

- the amortised cost of the financiad Dabiliry

In calculating interest income and expense. the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carryving amoum of the asset (when the assel is not eredit-
impaired) ar te the amortised cost of the liability, However, tor financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition.
interest income is calculated by applying the effective inferest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. It the asset is no longer credit
impaired. then the calcuiation of interest income reverts 1o the ross basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income rax

Income tax compnises current and deferred tas. It is recognised 1 profit or loss except to the exient thar it relates to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income

E Current tux

Current @ax comprises the expectzd 1ax pavable or receivable on the txable income or loss for the year and any adjustment 1o the tax pavable or
1eceivable in respect of previous years. The amotnt of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid of recerved after
constdermy the uncertainty. it any, related o income taxes. It is measnred using tax rates (and rax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporimy date.

Current tax assels and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is tegally enforceable 1ight 1o set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended
To realise the asset and seitle the liability on a net basis or simylfaneously.

ii. Deferred oy

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabibities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits,
Deferred 1ax is not recognised tor,

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in o transaction that 15 not a business cambinativn and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profic or loss ot the time of the fransaction:

- tempuorary differences related to investments in subsidiaries. associares and Joint arrangements to the extent that the Groop 18 able 1o control the
tining of the reversal of the temporary difterences and it is prebable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. and

- taxable remporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

[incertainty over Income Tux Treatment
Tax treatment of an item is considered as uncertain when there is uncertaint whether the relevant taxation authority will accept the tax reeatment of
that item oy not.

IF therz is uncenamty over fax treatment of an item:

L An entity should determine an approach or methad that predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. Based on the approach. tha amity shall
determine whether to consider gach uncertain tax treatment sepatately of together with one or more other uncertain tax trenhmelts.

2. It shall assess whether it is probable that the taxation authority will aceept the uncertaint tax treatment. assutning that the authority has

full right eo examine the treatment and has full knowledge of all related nformation.

3.1f it 15 probable that the taxation authority will accept the rax treatment, there will be no 1mpact on the amaunt of raxable profits’losses. tax bases.
unused 1ax losses credits and ax rates. In viceversa case, the entrty shall show the effect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment on
amount of related atoresaid items by using zither the most likely outcome o the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

Deferred 1ax assets are recoznised to the extent that ir is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised. are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised. reduced to the extent that it is probable’
no Jonger probable respectively that the related rax benefit will be realised.

Deterred tax is measuved at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the Dability is settled. based an the
lavs that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects. at the reporting date.
to recover of settle the carmving ameunt of its assets and liabilities.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are otfser if there is a legally entorceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets. and thev relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax autherity on the same taxable entity. or on different tax entities. but they intend to seitle current tax liabilities and assels
on a net basis or their tax assets and habilites will be realised simultaneousty.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are intevest and other costs including exchange differences relating to foreign currency botrowings to the extent that they are
tegarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in conection with the berrowing of funds. Borawing costs directly attributable 1o acquisition
or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to wet ready for their intended use ae capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other bormowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at hanks including short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or Jess,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash equivalents with a
maturity period of more than three mauths are classified as other bank balances,
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Significant aceounting policies tcontinued)
Cash flows

Cash flows are repored using the indirect method. wheveby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of ransactions of a non cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future eash receipts or payments, The cash flaws from regular revenue generating. financing and im esting activioes
of the Group are segregated.

Gaverpment grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assucance that the grant will be received. and all atrached conditions will be complied
with. When 1he grant relaies to an expense item. it is recognised as income on a svstemiatic basis over the periods that the elated costs. for which it
15 intended to compensate, are expensed. When the wrant relates to an asset. it is 1ecognised as income in equal amounts over the expected uselul
lite of the related asset

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a mamer consistent with the inrernal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker The Kev

managerial personnel comprising the Managing Divecter and Deputy Managing Director assess the financial performance and position of the Group.
and make strategc decisions and have been together identified as being the chief operating decision maker ('CODM'}

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit athibutable to the equity holders of the Company by the welghted average
numbet of equiry shares outsianding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the nef prafit attributable to the equiry
helders of the Company by the weighted average member of equity shares considerad for deriving basic earings per equity share and also weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of such significance and nature that
separate disclosure enables the user of the financial stat o und d the impact in @ more meanngful manner.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Amendments to lind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 Zuidance on lease modification accounting for rem concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Cavid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient. a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent cancession
from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting From the Covid-19
related rent concession. the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, (I the changes were not a lease modification,

The amendments are applicable for annual repording periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020, This amendment had no material impact e lhe
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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4 Segment informration

A. Basis for segmentation

The Group is primanily involved in providmg the entire bosket of logistics services. The information relating to this vperang sesment is reviewsd ragularly by the
Group’s Key managenal peesoninel CRMPY {Chief Openting Decizion Maker) to make decisions about resources to be allocated and t agsess i3 performance.  The
accounting principles wsed in lhe preparmion of the consolidated fi ol stak s are conzistently applicd to vecord revenue and expenditure in the sepment. and
are as set aur i the significant accounting policies.

The Group has faor reportable segments identified on the geographical basis). as desciabed below, These business units ofter different services, and are managed
separately. For each of the reportable segments. the Group's KMP reviews mternal management reports ou a penodic basis.

B. Information about reportable segnents

[nformation regarling the resubts of each reportable segment is mcluded below Perfonmance s meastred based on segment peofil {before tax), as included m the
intzmial inanagement reports that ave reviewed by the Group's KMP. Segmenit prolit is used o measwre performance as management believes that such information is
must redevant in evaluating the results of certain seyments relative to other entities thay operate wilhin these industries.

Year ended 31 March 2021 Reportable seements
India Europe # S Asia® Total Eliminations Total
reportable
segments
Segmient revenue
- External revenue 132,036 90 30149988 4736699 21208592 69335960 - 79335269
- fneer-sgument revene 1.116.27 18.96 40,26 3.731.22 4936 71 1493671 -
Total sesment revenue 13315517 3411, %48.84 47, 40725 21578714 6,958,196, 40 (4.9346.71) 6,93,359.69
Segment profitf (loss) before income tax (39321 240360 (5R16.a8) H627.90 t17.871 00 6,221 90 {11649 104
Segmcid predis foss g hefre miceme fax malides:
Interest incoma®* 204290 63,02 - 4661 2,152,533 11632000 494 92
Interest expenses 6298 46 9.570.938 173330 EX- o 4.1 2147333 39153 H) 17.339.81
Depreciation and amortisation 1239247 15.343.69 332697 15120 87 18600 142.21 4132821
Share of profit {loss) of equity accounted {6,651 - - - 16.63) - 15 &)
IAVEStEes
Exceptional items - - (1375350 - 1137352y [ES (T 521408
Seument asseis 2,02,693.1% 24407930 25.460.23 1.19,015.69 591.280.42 (95,540.90) 4.95.710.52
Newnpcnt ussers oty
Discominune) vperations 387196 - - - 387196 - 5E71 96
Investments sccoumted for using equity L.030.32 - - - 10,050 32 - 100532
miethod
Capital expenditure during the vear 3.306,79 365002 11576 Ryt 9,541,932 - gA2083
Sesment liahilitiey L2LITTAS 2,05 585,74 3378748 1.34.028.64 496, 779,31 (.293.69) 4,42, 48%,62
Searmeint fahilities sy
Discontinued operations 203093 - - - 3.030,93 - 543093
Year ended 31 March 2020 Reportable seaments
India Europe # LsA Asia® Total Eliminatiens Total
reportahle
segpienis
Segment revenue
= External revenue 160 864 68 277228 %0 18,556,536 1.73.804 %0 4549 - 660,454,949
~ Inter-semnent revenue 641.93 70.16 350,05 2 8238.43 2903539 13,905 5% -
Total seoment revenue 1.61,506.51 1.77.305.06  J8.915.561 1,76,633.25 6,64.360.53 (3.905.59) 6.60,454.94
Segment profiv/ (lass) befure income tax 233478 4.689 51 15.970.48) {18.130.30) 121814625 123630 12418618
Seimtertt profit ffossy befine tcome tax e
Interest income** Jod8 13 PT16.69 218.51 169w 74 928309 18 AR .42} 30247
Interest expenses 7.942.28 12.127.93 2.944.98 723519 30.250,38 17.131.46) 2311892
Depreciation and amortisation 12.675.80 13.707.36 177502 13.149.77 44,307 95 142.20 ALA5013
Shave of profit flass) of equity aceounted - - . - - - -
mvestees
Seoment nssets 2.36.719.57 28290147 31.618.30 1,13,488.69 6.64.727.63 (1.19,714.76) 5,45.012.87
Negieitd ossers ptcfiede
Dhscontinued operations 6348 89 - - . 6,343 &9 - 6,348 89
Investments accounted for wsing equily 356698 148.98 - - 3171596 . 37139
method
Capital expenditre durmg the vem 415938 71421 311289 1870 %) 15806378 - 15.863.78
Secment liabilities 1.48.217.06 246, 140.35 FLI%.67 127,902,458 5.60,171.53 (74,220.75) 4,85.950,78
Seghinend fuibifttivs wcluede
Discontinued opetations 490 61y - - - {4.90d4.61) - SRR

* Includes results of TVS SCS Global Freight Swlutions Limited {Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services Linited). India which s considered as
part of Asin iu the results reviewed by the CODM.

% Includes results of SPC International India Private Limited. India. SPC Interational [ne . USA.and Rico Lowstics Limitzd. Austratia which is considerad as part
of Europe in the results reviewed by the CODM.
** Ingerest income includes all interest income recorded wnder effeclive miterest rate method.
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4 Segment information {continued)
C. Geographical informartion

The geopraphical information analyses the Growp's nevenues and non-coreent assels by the Group's country of domicil (i.c. ndia} and other countries. In presenting

Reveane 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2021
lndia 1.539.789 16 L& B2
UR 2049.712.89 219,405,353
UsA 180 o0 31516,85
Thailand 1039857 1226472
Australia S6.N4G .00 3388721
China 513002 DT85z
Spam 62 52579 82935 59
Stngapore 35,342 50 01478
New Zealand 457500 J185.04
Rest of world 82.025.71 471700
6,93.359.49 6,60, 454.94

Non-current assets

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

tdia 5896798 5388020
Uk 3L 97 2728172
UsSa 1147535 16.821.87
Thailand 8.267.37 &, 580 90
Australia 7300335 6,502 88
Spain 638022 51,920,235
Singapare 301147 42.583.83
Rest of world 199025 2068 34
1,10,593.96 200,655, 10

Naom=current assets exclude financial instruments, deferned rax assets. non-current tax assels and post-emplovment henefit assets,

D. Infarmation about services rendered by the Group

Revenues from external enstomers in respect of each catesory of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenue 31 March 2021 3 March 2020
Lastmile folfilmeant 1.70.033.00 152 167 88
Owisoureed supply chain management 3054489, 14 RERE: kil
[nter-continental movement 2110713 172233 53
Orbers 6, 766.2] 137126

6,43.359.69 6.060,454.94

{asimife fudfedment; Relates to tme bound last milz deliven: including technology spare parts kogistics. express deliven . ete,
Cutscmiroved supply choi maragemend. Relates to iategrated supply chain solwions inclwding transportation. management, warehousing and material management.

Pater-cotitiented sovement: Relates o integrated ocean’ air freight services.
Oehrers: Relates to services rendered other than thase menticnad above,

E. Muajor customer

The Group dees not have any customer that individually accounted For mare than 10% of he revenues in the vear endad Mareh 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,
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Revenue from operations (refer note 40}

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Sale of products 1.01.866.11 1,10,570.72

Sale of sexvices

Income from supply chain management services 38217642 53911298

[ncome from telecom servives 3.840.26 10.320 43
591.016.68 549.633.41

Other operating revenue

Scrap sales 36133 7314

Others 11555 175.67

176.90 250.81

6.93,359.69 6,60 .454.94

Other income Year ended Year ended

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 156.23 511.62
Secunty deposits carried at amortised cost 30571 253.00
Investments in debentures carried a1 amortised cost 3601 30.82
Other items in finance income | 87 7.04
Income from finance lease 193 85 112.04
Interest income on income tax retund 324.73 220.96
Gain on sale of property. ptant and equipments. ner 36.81 -
Gain on sale and lease back (refer note 16B(e) - 6.717.55
Gain on termination of lease contracts it Lo 13
Net gain on sale of investments 047 8504
Provision no longer required writren back 940.18 4.332.59
Exchange difference gain net 251973 3.998.19
Government grant 1.245.39 -
O1her nen operating income 308.20 154242
6,609.39 18,8214
Cost of materials consumed Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2019

[nventory of packing materials at the beginning of the vear 28146 4146
Add Purchases 2.360.92 311249
Less  Inventory of packing materials at the end of the year (183.01} {281 46
2459.37 2.872.09
Purchase of stuck-in-trade Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2019
Purchase of stock-m-trade 05.828.75 87.636.60
95.828.75 87,956.60
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade Year ended Year ended

Inventories at the beginning of the year

31 March 2021

31 March 2019

Stock-in-irade 1653147 16.205.30

Inventories at the end of the year

Stock-in-trade 2236872y {16531 4%)

Exchange dilferences on translation of foreign operations 1.473.71 487.08
(4,363.54) 164.90




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2021 {continued)
(Al aments are in indian rupees 12) {akhs except share date and otherise stated)

14

11

12

13

Employee benefits expense

Salaries. wages and bunus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 36)

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans {refer note 36)
Expenses related to compensated absences

Share based payments (refer note 36)

Staff weltare expense

Finance costs

Interest expenses

Finance cost relating to firance lease obli gations

Costs incurred relating Lo settlement of erstwhile consortiumm loan {reter note 30Ax)
Amortisation of transaction cost on borrowing

Other borrowing costs

Drepreciation and amertisation expense

Depreciation of property. plant and equipment
Amortisation of Right of use asset
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

Freight clearing. forwarding and handling charges
Sub-contracting costs”™

Material handling charges

Casual labour charges

Consumption of steres and spares

Staff ransportation charges

Power and fuel

Rem. leasing and hiring charges

Rates and taxes

[nsurance

Repairs and maintenance

Advertisement and business promotion

Travelling and convevance

Communication costs

Printing & stationery

Bank charges

Factaring charges

Payment 1o auditors #

Legal and professional tees

Security expenses

Sales commission expenses

Prentium on derivative instruments designated for hedge
Loss on foreign carrency transactions and translations
Bad debts written off

Provision for doubtful financial assets and litigations
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipments, net
Loss on financial instruments measured at FVTPL
Provision for impairment on investments (refer note 17)
Costs incurred relating 1o settlement of erstwhile consortium loan (refer note 30AL))
Miscellaneous expenses

* Includes cost of sub-contracting in respect of services relating to installation and commissioning of telecom towers,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢
1.48.648.73 1.4%.366.17
17.942 83 17.809.98
362,635 558.23
320,49 30096
.92 98 850.61
1(¥.522.33 11.490.08
1,79.904.43 1,80.416.05
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
7.369.89 11.246.01
7.844.00 7.297.05
- 4353372
1.181.72 -
1.164.20 22213
17,559.81 23,118.91
Year ended Year ended
31 March 202t 31 March 2020
9.418.06 8.867 89
30,194 24 306323
4.715.91 4.519.03
+.328.21 44,450,185
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2.08.707.82 1.89.179 82
80,192 43 74.112.81
1.373.96 1.555.53
2412133 24.604.22
3,146,635 3.501.94
1.303.72 1.436.66
6,104.81 7.502.67
6.774 .34 6.321.09
354534 3.966,12
239204 220522
9.73829 §,958.68
742,37 938.73
1.5338.09 4.177.41
2,766,897 2.7%96 87
1.267.60 1.304.95
682 89 332,81
506.62 636.94
204,20 193.70
[1.026.09 049503
3.377.58 362172
- 304,37
tL2s -
3.230.88 4.373.12
951.25 1.763 39
2.368.76 333354
93.13 62187
691.79 1.209.76
161.78 -
- 2864210
134346 324942

3.80,865.64

70080




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021 {continued}
AN comonants ave i fndian ripees (30 lakhs except share detier and atherwise stated)

13 Other expenses (continued)

# Details of payment to auditors Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2024
As audivor
Audit of standalone & subsidiaries' financial statements 38.935 37.00
Audit of consolidated financial statements 4790 38.00
Audit of subsidiaries for consolidation PUFposes* 63.00 70.00
Audit of subsidiaries for financial statement pumposes 14.75 19.70
Tax audit of the company and other subsidiaries 4.60 575
Certification fees 1400 7.23
Other matters - Audit procedures in connection with Ind AS 115 /116 Globally 15.00 -
Re-imbursement of expenses - 100
In vther capacities
Other services - 15.00
204.20 193.70

* Audit fee of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes includes T 2.5 lakhs relating to earlier vears
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nates by che ¢ lickaded fi ial st nits for the vear ended 30 March 2020 (continged)
AR nmmnistts core e hodien epees 13 ek e shire oo atied othennise saptedy

17 Equity acconnted Investees

The Group's interest in equity aceounted invesiees vomprises of the Following Nyte 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Enterzat in joint veneures® A 13,050,352 3.566.98
Interest in assvciate = - 145,98
11,050,322 3.715.96

The Greup's share of profil tloss) in Squity aceounted investess are 43 follows Noge Year ended Yeur ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Share oF profit {lvss) in joint ventures associate ® A {6 061) 218.9%
(6.66) 218,98

* During the year, the Group's share of nci assels in TVS Induswial & Logisties Park Pyt Limited {TVSIL P} tioim venhure)r was diluied from 50°, to 31.2%4 as
consequence of primavy jwvestmem by CDC Group PLC in TVSILP. This decmed dispasal has been accounted For in accordance with lad AS 28 and the
consequenit gain of 7 6.390 lakhs has been disclosed in the financial a an exceprional item. The Group continies 1o reat its investment 10 TVSILP 45 a
Joint venture on the basis of its rights a0d power under the new shareholders agreement with the other investors.

# The investent in Montara Verpacken mit Systemn GmbH has been folls impaired as at 31 Mareh, 2027 and it aoount of £ 161.78 lakhs hag been taken to the
starement of profil and loss account.

A, Joint ventures
The financial mformation of the Jeinr ventures and thye carrvirrg amount of the Group's iuterest in Joint veniures is as follows -
31 March 2021 T¥S Indusirial & Logistics Park P, Total
Limited (Formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private Limited)

I
Non-corrent assets $1.183.15 BI.IB3.15
Current assets 22407 51 2240751
Non-=cuerent linbilities (36,385 3% (50,385 30y
Current liabiliries (15673 9%) [15.673.98)
Net assers 3135028 3153128
Group's share of net assets 983776 983776
Add : Assuined soodwill 890 8400
Carrying amound of interest in joint ventures as at 31 March 2021 {refer note below) 9.922,66 9.922.66
For the year emled 31 March 2021
Revanue L8500 585004
Profit {21.33}) (21.33)
Total comprehensive income (21.33) {2133y
Group's share of Profit {6, 662) (B.56)
Chioup's share of O] . -
Group's share of total comijwehensive income (6.66) 16, 66)
¥ Shave of net assets protit computed based on diluted basis
Note - Certain adjusiments in the reserves of the joint venture have not been idered m the « lidated financial of the Gronp in line with hnd AS
28
31 March 2020 TV¥S Industrial & Logistics Park Pvi. Total
Limited (Formerly known as TVS
Infrastruciure Private Limiced)
S0.074,
Nui-current assets 57304189 57, 300,89
Currant assets 508464 5,084.04
Mon-gcurrent liabilities (42,2906 (42,2906
Current linhilinies 113,130.75) (13.150.75
Net assets 6,964,14 6,964,141
Group’s share of net assets 3.482.07 3.482.067
Add ;A | goodwill $4.90 8490
Carrving of imterest in joint venture as at 51 March 2020 3.366.97 3.566.97
A. Joint ventures {continned) TVS Industrial & Logisties Park Pvi, Total

Limited {Formerly knowa as TVS
Infrastructure Frivate Limited)

For the vear ended 31 March 2020

Revenue 553428 554428
Profit 437.96 437.96
Total comprehensive income 437.% 437.96
Groug's share of Profic 218.9% 218,98

Chroup's shiaee of OOT .
Group's share of total comprehemsive i 218,98 218,98
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TVE SCPPLY CHALN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nokes to the ¢ lidated financial stab ts for the vear ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

AN oot et Indunt rapoees (2 ks except stvre dusat oivd otherwise siutods

12 Investments
A, Non-current investiuents

Unquored investment in body corporate at fir valuc

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

TN Apex Skilt Develapment Centre For Logistics 20,000 -
2000581131 Mareh 2020 | Nily equity shaies of 2 10 cach
HL -
LUnquoted invesh in deh o5 earried at amortised cost
Prasanna Purple Mobility Solubons Private Limited*++ - 153,30
{31 March 2020 1580 Series 1 NCD. 0 1% Unsecured Non-Convertible
Debentures of T 1000 each
Prasauna Purpte Mobility Sotutions Private Limited* 3% - 105 21
31 March 2020; 14490 Series 11 NCD. 17 Unsecured Non-Convertible
Debentures of T 1000 cach —
- 261.51
Unquoted investment in prefercuce shares carvied at amortised cost
Cargowings Logistics Limited 2.500.00 2.500.00
25000000 (31 March 2020 25.000.000) redeemable preference shares
¢"RPS™) of T 10 cach fully pand wp
2,500.00 1.500,00
Frovision for decline in fair value of investments
Unquoted investnients in preference shares
Cargowings Logistics Limited t2.50EL00 2300004
12,300,001 (2.500.00}
Tatal non=current investients 20.00 26151
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 23000 2.761.51
Aggregale amount of impairment in the value of investments 250000 2 A0.00

B. Current investments

Unquoted ipvestment in debentares carvied at amortised cost

3 March 2021 31 March 2020

Prasanna Purple Mobiline Solutions Private Linnited**# 23397 94,29
2540131 March 20200 9.600) Series | NCD. 0.1%2 Unsecured Nun-
Convertible Debentures of ¥ 1900 each
Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited**+ 01 63 16200
0650 t3) Mareh 2020 162000 Series 11 NCD. 0,1, Unsecured Non-
Convertiblke Debentures of ¥ 1006 each
Prasauna Purple Mobilite Solotions Private Limired - B0 00 B ot
BURIO 131 March 2020: 80,0001 Optionally Convertible Debentures of 7 1000
auch
1.355.62 1.061.29
Total current investments 1.358.62 1.061.29
Aggrepate value of unquated investments 1.355.62 1.061.29

TeR Sertes | NCD. 1% Unseeured Non-Convertible Debentuves and Series 11 NCD. .12 Unsecured Nuu-Convertible Debentures carries Inferest af 9. (% paand

redecmable over a period commencing from July 31, 2016 as stated below ;
Series | NCD

Amount  Series 11 NCD Amount

31 duly 2009 textended ol Septamber 2021 L3500 30 November 2019 1extenided (ill September 2021 9 G4
30 July 2020 textended till Septambey 2021 6.0 30 November 2020 rextended &l September 2021 162,00
31 duly 2021 2300 30 Novembsr 2021 45.00
254.00 J06.90

“ * The Opuenally Convertible Debetitures t*OCC"y which carties minimum 20% IRR. is either redeemable or comvartible jine equity shares of Prazanna Purple
Mobilin: Solutions Private Limited as per the tarms and conditions set out i dhe shareholder's agreement berween TVS Commutation Solutions Limited and Prasanna
Purpke Mobility Solutions Private Limited. The redemption’ conversion shall be dene in ivo vears from 91 March 2016 {date of issuance). The redemption  comversion

has been extended il Sepramber 2021




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITEDR
Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021 (continued)y
A anmennts are i D rapees (24 fakis eXevpt whure duta vand oHerse stated

20 Deposits and other reccivables

Unsecured. considered yood 342008 183305 3R ST 34792
Unsecurad, considercd <doubttul - - 12192 80,92
Provision for doubtful secunity deposits - - 1121.92) (96,92,
342008 2.833.65 3.9M48.37 3.947.92
Security deposit to related parties
Unseeured. considered good o 461 83 33611 - 145 ¢4
464.53 33601 - 145.94
Other receivables
Loans and advances Iy emplovees - - 1.596.69 42320
Finaice lease receivables rrefer mute 15 and 38) 43897 L1920 30253 273557
Receivable from others
Unsecured. considered good - - 82577 54217
Unsecured. considered doubiful - - 180.74 186,74
Praviston tor denbtful receivables - - 18074 (130.70
838,97 1,192.20 272499 1.240.94
+.743.58 4,361.96 6.673.36 3.334.80
21 Other fimancial assets Nonscurrent Current .
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured considered good - - 300.97 18571
. . 300.97 185.71
Unbilled revenue - - 20.461.79 22376 58
Margin money deposited with banks - [32.52 13714 -
Derivative assel tvefer nole 43vn 61717 - - -
Deposits with banks with more than 12 months matuein - 10,50 - -
literest acerued on investments IR N 40344 . -
Others .66 - 49.83 24275
- [.224.27 T48.46 29,968,125 24.8%6.04
22 Other nom current assets 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prepaid expenses 1553 1.1
Advance for supply of goods and services
Unsecured, considered good 140.07 156.80
140,07 153680
Capital advances
Unsecured. considered wood 04.68 361,08
Unsecured. considers doubtiyl 4.06 420
Provision for deubtful receivables (.06 (4,20}
94 68 561.98
250.28 719.92
23 Inventorbes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Securlty deposits

ivalued at lower of cost or net reatizable value)

Nen-current

Current

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Packing materials 183.0] 28146
Stock-in-trade 12.508.72 1655148
Stares and spares 213.30 169.24

2276553 16,982.18
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24 Trade receivalles

Gross trade receivables
Secured. considered good
Unsecured, considered wood

Doubitl

Loss allowance
Bt ful

Net trade receivables
Non-cusrent
Currant

25 Cash and cash equivalents (refer note below)

Cash on hatd
Chegues on hand

Balance with banks

O current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Note:

3 Murch 221

31 March 2020

11333114

08654

1.30.727 0

7.473.38

1.23.296.55

1.38.201.34_

(986511 {(7.473.38)
(986541 1747338
11343114 1.30.727.9%6
63246 -
11279868 1.30.727.96

31 March 2621

31 March 2020

6524 74.58
507 14.50
.41 39.08
33.097.57 87.878 41
32B.26 491.79
53.625.83 8837220
33.696.24 88.461.28

As per the facility agreement under the refinancing amangement trefer noke 30A0H, the Group s required ko manwitam minimuim cash and cash cquivalents balance of

USD 20 Million.

26 Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months Jess than 12 mwnths

27 Loans - Current

Loan to ethers
Unsecured. considerad doubitul
Provisien for doubtiul loans

28  Other current assets

Advance related to supply of goods and services to Parties other than related parties
Unseeured, considered good

Unsecured. considered doubtsul

Provisian for doubtful receivables

Advance related to supply of goods and services to related parties
Unsecured. considered good

Balances with statutory authorities
Unsecured, considered good

Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Others

31 Murch 2021

31 March 2020

371597

26216 52

3.713.97

26.216.52

3 March 2021

31 March 2020

100163
(1.004.63)

LOg463
(L0063

31 Muarch 2021

31 Murch 2020

416110 241976
1.710.60 171046
(1.710.64) 1710460
416110 241976
136.46 -
136.46 -
3.631.13 329293
363113 319295
9.262.78 BatLdu

443.28 67.90
17.634.75 14,292.01
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224 Share capitasl 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Asthorised share capital

34800000 ¢ 3] Mareh 20020 34.800.000, couity sharex of T 10 each AABG00 348000
L2G0000 €31 March 2020: 1,200,400 preference shavas of € 10 each 120000 124 0
LAGRO0G 131 March 2020: |, (40000, preference shares of % 100 each 1 100,00 11000
Issued

Fyrmne shares

13810401 t3) March 2020 - 13810401 b equity shares of ¥ 10 2ach m par 1.38104 138104
3006800431 March 2020 5.066.300) equiny shares of 7 10 each ar a premium of ¥ 185,72 per share 306,08 306.6%
3223394031 March 2020 - 3.223.190) cquity shares of T 10 each at a premium of 7 183 per share 32232 31252
275800131 March 2020 273,800 2quity shares of ¥ 10 each a1 a premium of T 63 per share 27.58 37.58
4A36.816131 March 2020 : 4.156.816) cquity shares of & 10 ¢ach at 3 premium of ¥ 424,02 pper share 443 68 44568
1.798.60% (31 March 2020 . 1.798.607) £quiny shares of 210 cach at a premiwm of Z 683 per shaye 17%.86 179,86
3163515031 March 2020 - 3.163.513) quity shares of T10 zach at a premium of F 940 per share 316,35 3e.33
83000 ¢31 March 2020 ; 93 000 equity shaves of 210 each at a premium of ¥ 940 per share - 4.50 950
Total issued capital 3.189.01 3.189.01

Called, Subseribed and Paid wp
Fyarinn shraros

31.730.133451 March 2020: 31,730,133 equity shares of 2 10 each 317301 EN KR
Add: Amownt paid up on 160,000 (31 March 2020: 160000+ 2quity shares forfeited at 2 each 320 3z
3.076.21 3.176.21

# 13351 ¢31 March 2020; 15351, 0.00019, comulative, redeemable. non-convertible, participating preference shares have been classitied as a financial labiline {see
uote 300

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the Leginning and at end of the reparting period

31 Mareh 2021 - H March 2020
Nos 2in lakhs Nos T in lakhs
Equity shares
At the beginuing of the vear 317.30.133 31730 31635133 316331
Movement during the vear - - 95000 8.50
Quistanding at the emdt of the year I X b1 8 X ) 3.173.0m 30730133 3.173.H

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company bas ene ¢lass of equity shares having tace value of 7 10 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled o one vofe per share. The Company declares
amk pays Jividend in Indian tupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders n the ensging Annual General
Meeting {"AGM",

¢ Terms/rights attached to preference shares#

The preference shares shall be cumulative, redeemable. non-convertibie. participating preference shares preference shares'. The preference shares shall cany g
preferential right o dividends over the equity Shares, The preference shares shall carny a tixed rate of preferential dividend at the rate of ¢.0G01"s per anmum, In
addition to the fixed rate of dividend, the preferenwe shareholders shall, ai their discretion. be envtled w additional preferential dividend and carry a preferantial right to
dividends over the equity shares . The preference shares shall be redeemed. from time to time as may be raquired by the preference shareholders ar face value plos the
tedempion premivm payable thereon no later than 26 years from the date of allonment or longer period as may be preseribed by Jaw.

The holdsr of preference shares have a right fo vote only on resolutions placed betore the company which directly af¥ect the righis attached to preference shares and. any
resefution for dhe winding up of the company or for the repayment or reduction of its equity or preference share capital and voting right on a poll shall be in propottion
te the share in the paid-up preference share capital of the company. On winding up or repayment of capital, the preference shareholders shafl cany a preferential nght of
repayment,
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29B

Share capital (continuedy
d. Details of shareholders holding more than 8% shares of a class of shares
31 March 202] . 31 March 2020
Number of “a holding Number of %o holding
shares shares
Equity shares of 2 10 each, Tully paid up
T ¥ Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limited 107.27.343 3381% 1.007.27.343 3381
CDPQ Private Equity Asia Pre Lid 1.21.36.892 38250, 1.21.36.892 3825,
Dinvam Logistics Services LLP - LR 1l 29,82 J64 9400
Omega Te Holdings Pre Ltd. Singapore 15835847 3.00% 23.68.863 TA4T%
DRSR. Logistics Services Private Limited 3750214 11.82% - .00,
0.0081% Cumuolative. redeemable, nm=cenvertible, participating preference
shares of T 10 each, fully paid up
Tata International Limired 7677 SO G1%, 7677 30.01%
Tara Industries Limired 7o 49 990, 7.674 19008,
0.0001%% Now- cumulative, participating, compulsorily convertible prefercuce
shares of T 10¢ each. fully paid up (Series A)
Mahogany Singapore Company Pte Lid 10.23.350 100 G, 10.23 330 100.00¢ 4
0.0001% Non- Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsorily Convertibke
Preference Shares of € 10 each, fully paid up
David Robbins 39.998 2105, 39.998 21.05%,
W5 krishnan 0092 3.20%, 9,492 5.26%
Suehow Pty Lid 12004 6.32%, 12,004 6327
R Dinesh 2,996 1.38% 2.994 [.58%
Sanjive Sharma 40,002 21.03% 40,002 21.05%
Tarun Khanma 43,006 23.60%, 43,006 23.60%,
Andrew Jones 40,002 21.05% 40002 21.05%,
Other equity

Securities preminm
Securities premium is wsed o record fhe premium received on isste of shares. Wis utilised in accordance with the provisions for e Companies Act. 2013,

Cupital reserve
During prior years. the Cowrpany had reissued the shares forfeited The profit on reissuz of such forfeited shares has been transferred 10 capital resenve.

Capital redemption reserve
The Company has redeemed preterence shares issued 1o Taw Mternational Limited and Tata Industries Limited. out of profits of the Company. A sam equivalent to the
nuiminal amonne of the shares redeemed has been transferred to capital redemption reseive in aceordance with the provisions of the Companies Aer. 2013,

Share warrants

a preferential basis for a aggregate consideration of 7 902,50 lakhs with a vight to apply and get ailotment of equity shases of the Company ranking pari-passu with the
eXISHNE squity shares. in the ratio of {11 within & petied of 18 months trom the date of issue of share warrants or earler at the option of the Board. Dwring the vear
ended March 31, 2012, the Comparny had received ® 223 63 lakhs (25 of the issue price as at balance shaer date), During the previous vear ended March 31,2020, the
compairy had received T 67687 Lakhs (balance 75% of the isstie price) and accordingly the company had alloted 95,000 equiny stiares at a fape value of T 10 per share
at ¥ 940 per share premicin.

Share options

The Company has Management Incentive Plan {MIP} scheme under which share options are sranted o emplovees which has been approved by the shareholders of the
company. In aecordaike with the terms of the plan. eligible emplosees may be granted options to purchase equily shares of the company if they are in service on
exeicise of the grant. Each emplovee share OPROD converts o one equity share of the COmMpany’ 6n exercise at the exercise price as per the scheme. The OpTION Carry
neither rights io dividend nor votrug rights. Options can be exercised at any bme from the date of vesting to the date of theis eXpiny.
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Other equity (continued)
Conpulsorily convertible preference shares

On June £, 2008 and August 22, 2018, the C empany has allotied 13,340 and 23,660 Nuon- Cumdative, Non-Participatg, Compulsorily Convertibie Preference Shares
"CCPS™y of 2 10 each respectively., at a premiom of T 940 each to identified persons on a preferential basis for a consideration of 2 126.73 lakhs and T 243.77 lakhs
rexpechvely. COPS earty a dividend of 0.041% per anmam and the dividend tights are non- cumulative. On November 20, 2018, the Company has issued bonus shares
of 151001 to the shareholders of CCPS in the ratio of 1:3.87 and the securilies preium accoumt was wilised 10 the extent of T 15,10 lakhs for the issue of said bonus
shaves. The preterence shares 1o be converted o cqual number of equity shares ranking Parkpassic with the existing equin shares, afier the end of four vears from the
date of issue or carlier at the uption of the Board. In the event of hquidation of the Compam before conversion of preference shares. the hwiders of preference shaves
wiil have pricvity over equity shares in the repaviment of capital.

On February 7. 2020, the Company has alloed 10,23, 350 Series A Compulsanily Commvertible Preference Shares CCPS™) of ¥ 106 2ach, a1 a prewmanm of ¥ 16190,07
cach to Malogany Singapore Company Pre, Ltd 1CCPS Holder ™ on A preferential basis. for a consideranion of approx. T 173 Crore. Each CCPS carnes & minimum
preferential dividend rate of 0.0001% and in addition 1o aid after payient of such preferential dividend. te CCPS Holder would be entitled 1o participale pari-passu in
any dividends pasd to the holders of shares of niy other class tincluding equny sharesy or series on a pro rata. as-it-comverted basis Ench CCPS would be converted into
fully paid-up equiry shares ranking pari-passy with the existing equity shares. in the tatio of 1:1 tsubject to such adfusinents as contemplated in the sithscription
agreement dated January 22, 2020 executed by and amongst inter alia the Company and the CCPS Holder ~$5A™ ). on the earlier of 11) expiny of a period of 13
icightzen) menths fiom the chosing date tas defined under the SSA tFebruary 7. 20200 and iii) the dare when 2 prospective shavcholder 1as detived under the $§4)
imeluding such prospective sharehalder's affihates) acquires equity shares or equiny securities comverlible inte equity shares representing. in the agyregate. at least 7,
Seven percent) of the then share capital of the Company fon a fully Jiluted basis) 1in one or more Irangactions).

Other items of OC!

Remensuremnents of defimed henefit liabilitv/iassen 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 12802 11303
Remeaswrements of definad benefi liabiliry 1 asset) {net of taxes) 115,43 83.0]
Closing balance 7741 (28.02)
R of deffncd benefit linbilin/(usset)

Remeasurements of defined benetit labilin: 1 usset) comprises actuarial gains and losses and refn on plan assets {excluding iterest income),

Capital management
The Group's policy is o mamtain strong capital base 3o as to matiain investor and creditor confidence and T sustain future development of the business.

The Group monitors capital nsing a ratio of “debt 1o ‘equiny”. For this purpose, debt is defined as tolal debr, cUmprising interest-bearing s and borrowings amd
ubligatinns under fince leases, Equity comprises all coinponents of equirn.
The Gronp’ s debt 1o equily vatio is 4s follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Total current and nokecortent borrowings L3650 32 212180103
Curtent iarwities of lang-term bomrowings 60.222 04 63824
Dbt 156,872, 36 2,14,571.3%
Total equity 53.225.90 062,09
Debt te equity ratip 2,45 3.70
Earnings per share

Basic and diluted carnings per share
The ealculations of profir atvibutable ta equily sharehulders and weighted mverage number of equity shares ourstaiding for purposes of basic and dilured carnings per
share calcukaion are as follows

(i} Profit (loss) antributable to equity sharehoblers 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prafit tlossy for the vear, anributable 1o the equity holders hom continuing operalivns (7029611 ([9.236.40)
Profit tloss for the year, attributable to the aquity holders from discontinued operativns 24397 273
(i) Weighted average number of equity shares 3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Weighted average number of equiny shares outstandmyg during the vear 30730133 31647311
Add « Nwnber of shares relating to compulsoriby conventible preterence shares 12.13 350 33819
Weighted average number ol equity shares used in the caleulation of basic efimings per share 33943483 3.19.85.301
Adjustments for dilutive effect

~ Number of shares relating te Management Incentive Plan 1.32,552 60.7238
- Number of shares velating 1o share warcants 1.380 1203

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the caleulation uf diluted eamings per share 33077415 32047432
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30 Borrowings

{4) Noh-current borrowings

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Secured renn loans from banks D408 97 Q4ULIR 76

Secured term loans from financial institutions 0.90 225

Secured loug terin oblizations under finance leases 11894 1.882.90

Total non-current borrowings _ 9510281 95.923.94

{h) Current borrowings

Term lpan from financial institution

Secured - 7.020.00

Unisecurel - F080.00

Term bewn from hanks

Unsecured - 1. 20000

Cash eredit from banks

Secured 18288 526190

Unsecurad - 2303

Bills disconnting

Uisecared B34 17 4.353.568

Revolving credit facility

Secured 2917595 43.163.16

Loans repavable on demand

Secured - 10.308.22

Unsectred 2398145 3533363

Redeemable prefevence shares (unsecured) 891.60 89160

Other shott term loans

Secured 121,16 1.287.43

Unsecured. relaed parrs 3L 34000
55.547.51 11626521

Current portion of long term borrowings

Secured term loans from banks 160,78 506923

Secured term loans trom financial instintions - 63633

Secnred finance lease obligations 161,26 670,86

622204 6.382.44

61,.769.55 1.22.647.65

Less: Amount meluded under ‘Other financial Liabilities' 16.222.04) {6382 4.4

Total current borrowings 55.547.51 1.16,263.21

Intormation about Group's exposure 1o interest rate and liguidity risks 1s included m note 43

A. Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of autstanding barrewings are as follows:
Carrvimg amount as at

Trt fukchs o INR Currency Neminal  Year of maturity 31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
[nterest rate

Secwred term loaun from banks

DBS Bank. Axis Bank Limited & Standard USD ' GBP 2175+ | momth 2022 < 2025 9892328 53.874.69

Chartered Bank (refer niote (i3 & (i) below} LIBOR

HDFC Bank INR 85070 - 6,359, 2023 32047 23330
pa. _ =

99,243.78 94,107.99
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30 Borrowings {continued)

A. Terms and repayment schedule tcontinued}

o Carrving t a5 at
Tor fuakhes oo INH Currency Neminal  Year of maturity 3t Mawch 2021 31 March 2020
Interest rate
Unsecared ternt loan fromt bunks
Axis Bank Limited INR 9.10% 2020 - F000.00
HDFC Bank Limited INR T30 -8.33%, 2020 - 120000
- 6.200.00
Sectived term ipan from financia Institntions
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 10.25% kLixgt - 623.01
Tata Capital Finaucial Services Limited INR. 1L.30% 2020 - TA20.00
Sundaram Finance Limited MR Q.75% - 10.96°, 20210 - 1363
Other thnancial institurions INR .50 -
099 7.658.64
Unsectired ternt loan from Financinl institutions
Tata Capital Financiat Services Limited INR 1150% 2021 - 3.880.00
- 5.080.00
Secared finance lease obligntions
Sundlaram Finance Limted iINR 10 200, 2021 - 4.39
Asset Alliance Limited GBP 0.0% 10 14% 021 1.871 44 204733
Other banks 20876 30804
2.080.20 2,559.76
Secured cask crediv facilities from banks
Endian Overseas Bank INR Folt s - 3758
Yes Bank INR MCLR + 2,250, 182,88 197.99
pa
ANZ Loan AlUD 4.0d4%, o - 3.026 30
182,88 226196
Unsecured cash credit facliifies from banks
Axis Bank Limited INE T.5%« 7 8% - 23.65
- 23,65
Unsecured bill discounting
Axis Baok limived INR TR0, - 3.237.76
TREDS - Invoicemart INR 6,950 7957 41412 -
DBS (Pavig Agent) INR. .30 44033 -
her Bank SGD 200", - 1095 80
854.47 4.3%3.56
Sectired revolving credit facitior
DBS Bank, Axis Bank Limired & Standard USD . GBP 1.80% + 1 month 1017595 45.163.16
Charterad Bank (refar nate {i) below) LIBOR
29,175.9% 45.165.16
Secureif foans repayable on desmand
IDFC First Bank Limited INR 10.50% - 150.00
Bankia EUR 3.10% - 1.131.83
State Bank of India INR. 748°-8.73%, - 300000
DRBS bank INR 750708000 - .000.00
Batice Santander EUR 2000, - 309.01
Banc Sabadell EUR 2,000, 121 16 ¥3.77
LaCaixa EUR 2.00% - 80.05
Bankinter ELIR 200 - 026 5%
Ibercapa EUR 2,00 - 188.01
121.16 6.5649.26
Lusecured loans repavable on demand
Standard Chartered Bank INE 70168200, 540000 14004030
Axis Bank Limited INR 778 ¢-8.00% G.380.00 9.850.00
DBS Bank INR 7.530%-0.00% - 4.0300.00
HDFC Bank Limited INR 7.50%-8.35%, 13.650.00 12.500.00
IDFC First Bank INMR 7.00% 1.530.00 -
QOthers INE 143 10.02

2398145 40.360,02
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M) Borrowings [confinued)

A. Terms und repavment schedule continued}
Carrving smount as st
o deabehis ot INR Currency Nominal  Year of matnrity 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
[nterest rare

Redeemable preference shares

Unsegured INR. 89160 Bal.60
7160 BIL60
Orher short terns loans (1 ‘nsectred)
Cholamandalam Investment and Finanee Cempany Limited INR 5.10% 33000 34000
341100 340.00
 1.56.872.36 2.18.571.61
Note:

) On March 26, 2020. the Group has refinanced the existing bank term loan of USD 1.00).6] lakhs & GBP 204,60 lakhs i from a Consortium of Basks finanical
mstiutions) with a Fresh tenm loan of USD 300 lakhs and GBP 783 92 lakhs and vevolving crednt faciling of GBP 49311 fakhs. from DBS, SCB & Axis Bank. The term
loan is repayable between March 2022 and March 2075,

it During fhe vear. the Group antered into hedging contracts 1o hedge the foreign curtency tisk ou the pringipal fean amount of the term loan that was refinanced on
March 26. 2020. The Groey has adepted hedge accounting tor these hedging contraets trefer note 43w

B. Secured loans

Seeured term loan from banks

USD - GBP term loan fiem DBS Bank. Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Supply Chain Solerions Pte. Lid, tFarmerly known as TVS-
Astaries Supply Chain Selutions Pre. Limited) and it subsidiaries is secured by guarantee previded by TVS Supph Chain Solutions Limtted.

USD  GBP term loan from DBS Bank. Axis Bank Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Limited and its subsidiaties is
seewwed by & charge on its shares. its other assets and is alse secured by guaraniee provided by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited.

Term Joans from HDFC Bank Limited are secured by hvpothecation of vehicles acquired our of the loan,

Working capital loan fiom Yes bank is secured apaist e present & future current assets of Flexol Packaging (India) Private Limited,

Secured rerm loun from financial instingions

L. Term Loan at 10.23%0 interest rate from Tata Capital Financial Services Limmted was secured by an exclusive mortgage of smmovable proparty located at Mumbai anc
first and exclusive charge by way of hy pothecation on identified movable fixed assets. This has been repaid in the curcent vear.

2. Term leans trom Sundaram Fmance Limited are secired by hypothecanon of vehicles and equipiments acquired out of the loan. This has been repaid in the current
vear,

3. The Term Toan of 11507, was fiom Taia Capinal Fittancial Services Limited. The tota) Eaeility was tor R3 200 crore of which Rs 80 crore was secured against the
cempany’s planl and machinery. fumitore and fixtures. computer squipements and office equipments. Thés has been repaid in the current vear.

Finance lease obligations
Fmance lease obligations are secured against the respective assets taken on fmanice lease.

Cash credit facility from banks

Cash eredit from ANZ bank availed by TVS Asianics Australia Prv. Limited was secured by fived and tloating charges over all present and future assets. undertaking
tineluding gowdwill) and unpaid or uncalled capital of TLF Holdings Pty. Limited, corperate guarantee and indemnity unlimited by TVS Asianics Australia Pry.
Limited. This has been repaid in the current vear.

Cash credit from Indian Overseas bank was obtained by SPC Intemational India Private Limited and it was secured agains the fixed deposits This has been repaid in the

CUITEnt vear.

Revolvimg credit facility

GBP revalving eredit facility from DBS Bank. Axis Bank Limitzd & Standard Chartered Bank avaked by TVS Supply Chain Selutions Pa. Ltd (Fermerly known as
TVS-Asianics Supph Chain Solutions Pie. Limiteds and its subsicliaries is secured by suarantee providel by TVS Supply Chain Solutivns Limited

GBP revolving credit facility fiom DBS Bank, Axis Bauk Limited & Standard Chartered Bank availed by TVS Logistics Investments UK Linited and its subsidiarias
is secared by a charge o ifs shares. its other assets aud is also secured by puarantee provided by TVS Supply Cham Selntions Limited.

Loans repavalile on demand from banks

The term loan from IDFC First Bank Limited was secured by hvpothecation charge on entive current assets of TVS Tovota Tsusho Supply Chains Selution Py Lid,, This
has been repaid in the cureent vear.

The overdrati facility from Bankia was availed by Eltee TT Services $.L.U and was secored by the lefter of comfort provided by RICO Logistics Limtted. UK. This has
been repaid in the cwrrent vear,

Wortking capital loan from State Bank of India was secured against the debiors of the company. This has been refraid ity the currenr vear.

Workmg capital loan from DES Bank was secured upin Rs. 10 evore against the debiors of the company This has been repaid in the current vear,

Loan from Banco Santander. Banc Sabadall, La Caixa, Bankinter. Ibercaja were availed against the secumity of current assets of TVYS Loyistics Iberia 8.1

C. Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has cumulative, redecmiable. non-convertible, participating preference shaves. These preference shares have been classibied a3 a limbiliey. Fox rights,
preferences aid restrictions attached to prefecence shares attached to these preference shaves refer note 2%
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31 Trade payables 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables to related parties 2522 11996
Other nade pavables 1.11.935 97 1.01.138.25

LIZI6T19 10123821

32 Other financial liabilities

Nom=current portion Current partion
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Dernvative labrlity trefer note 43rvy) 1398 08 - - [.265.60
Fonvard purchase obligation - - - 383441
Amount due 10 employees - - SR ERL:S N7 94
Current matutities of kon 8 term borrowings - - 36078 570358
Current imaturities of finance lease obligations - - L.o&1.26 67686
Interest accrusd but not due on borrowings - - 12892 482,43
Pavabte to factor - - 443 76 Bod 47
Security deposiis pavable 1.078.22 1.057.0% B4 -
Deferved consideration® - 975,57 1.334.09 12500
Capital creditors 101 01 1.397 26 1.381 21 1403594
Others - - 622.03 428.88
2.577.31 3,629.92 20.433.29 20,973.00

* Deterred consideration includes pavable towards acquisition of shares in TVS SCS Logistics Management Co. Ly (Formerly known as TLM Logistics Mauagement
Co. Ltd.y amounting ta T 994.01 Lakhs (31 March 2020 ¥ 973.57 Lakhs). in T.LF Holdmwgs Pry. Lid . Austraha amounting to T 340.08 Lakhs i 31 March 202¢- 2 281,72
Lakhs) and TVS SCS Intemational Ercight  Spain) SLU 1 Formerly known as Nadal Forwarding 8.1y, Spain amoumting 1o Z Nil {31 March 2020- Z 269.22 Lakhs).

33 Provisions (refer note 37) Non-current portion Current portion
31 March 201 31 March 2020 3 March 2021 31 Muarch 2020

Provisions for emplovee benvfits

Liahilty for retirement benefit obligarions 664,84 .31 T27.8G 32372
Liabiline for compensated absences 33262 306,19 245418 166273
Other provisions
Provision tor dilapidation 260156 43621 - -
Provision for warraniies - - 1494 1944
Provasion for tivigations - - 69.04 23833
3.599.02 1.836.74 3.251.08 2,464,92
Movement in other provisions Dilapidation  Onerous contracts Cthers Total
Balance as at 1 April 2009 5£36.38 446,42 71449 1.697.79
Assumed m 2 business combination 108,18 - .88 109 {16
Provisions utilised during the period 1220, 50) 1432.17) 134223 11.114.99y
Foreign exchange adjustments 11.77 573 3.33 2285
Balance as at 31 March 2020 436.24 0.00 278.47 TI4.71
Provisions made duritig the period 2.503.09 . 3282 253591
Provisions unilised during the period (BRI - 122231 {631.12)
Forgign exchange adjustmenns 7104 - - 7104
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2.600.56 0.40 84.98 2.690.54
34 Other non-current liabilities 31 March 202{ 31 Mareh 2020
Deferred rent - 155,16
- 155.16
35 Onher current liabilities 3t March 2021 3 March 2020
Deterred revenue 268211 1.974.65
Statatory dues 10.521.91 621714
Advances from cushomers 960,74 115276
Others 1.604.9% 1.306.70

1577574 10.997.75
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36 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Company and its subsidiaries in varions geographies make

Defined benetit plans

Provisions ot retirement benefit
obligations

For details about the related emplovee benefir expenses. see note 10,

Dretails of retirement benefit obligations

The Company and its subsidianes in lndia have 2 defined benefit grawiry plan in India ithe
emplovees, who have rendered at least five vems of continuous servic
excess of six months. based on the rate of wages last drawn by the em
Growp in Korea, Thailand and Indonesia have retirement benefit plans

contribubions. generally determined as a specified percentage of employee
qualifving smplovees in accordance with the Tocal Taws and regulations in the respective country which are defined contribution plans. The Gr.
other than 1o make the specified contbutions. The contributions are chatged o the statement of profit and loss as they
towards such defined contribution plans for the vear agaregated o T 17.942.85 lakhs (3| March 2024- 7 | 7.809 0§ lakhs)

salaries. 1 respect of
oup has no obligaions
accrue. The amount recognised as an expense

Current

©. Lo gratwity af the rate of fiffeen davs wages
pioyee at the rine of retirement.

31 March 2021
72789

These defined benefit plans expose the Group t actuarial risks. such as longevity risk. curreney risk. intersst rote risk and market {investment) risk.

A. Funding

The grawity plans of the Company and certain subsidiaries in India is a funded
nsurance companies, The retirement benefit plans of the overseas subsidiaries noted above are unfunded.

B. Reconcilintion of the net defined benefit (asset) lia hility

The foliowing table shows a reconeiliation from the opening balance

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

plan with the Group making

s 16 the closing batunces for the net defined benefit tasser) [

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
523.72

Plany. governed by the Pavmens of Gratiny Act. 1972, The Plan entitles
fot every completed vear of service or part therzol in
death or termination of emplovment Furiher. certain enfriies of the
in accordance with the requirements of their respective local laws.

penedic conributions o a fund managed by certain

ability and s components;

31 March 202 LR

Balance at the beginning ot the vear 3.037.66 273917

Benefits pawgd 1285 %y (38549
Current service cost 309.99 476,47

Interest cost 152.36 135,30

Puast service cost 272 323

Actvanial tgains) losses recegnised i other comprehensive income

= changes in demographic assumptions 127.39) {36.40;
- changes in financial assumptions 4214 2770
- experience adjustments (175.02) {61.31)
Exchange ditferences 37.7% 18542

Bakince at the end of the Year 3.294.29 3.037.66

Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the vear 1.709.63 1.282.29
Contributivns paid 20227 72617
Benetits paid 119185 {385.49)
Interest inceme 10242 43575
Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income (1090) 11.96
Balance at the end of the vear 1,901.56 1,710.63
Nt defined henefit {asset) / liability 1.392,73 1.328,03
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Employee benefits {continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

31 March 2021
C. Expense recognised in profit or loss

31 March 202¢

Current service cost 50999 476,47
Interest cost 13236 135.50
Pasr service cost 272 3203
litterest income (102 42 (85.?5]_
562.65 538.25
Expenses relating v discontinned operarions . .
Expenses relating to conienuing eperations 562.65 §58.25
D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gan {loss) on defined benefit abligation {160.27) {14543}
Actuarial fgainy  ioss on plun assets 14.90 1.96)
{149.37) (146.41)

E. Plan assets 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Plan assets comprise of the following:

Insurer managed funds 1.90i 56

1.709.63

1.961.56

1.709.63

F. Defined benefit abligation

i Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

P'riscrput eactieriol USENRHIONS af Hre reportinog dhte were:

Discount rate 278150,
Future satary growth D= 100
Aftrition rate 0%e-38.00%

Expected retven on plan assets 413766957,

ii. Sensitivity analysis

5007 7,500,
201007,
58,

3330199,

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant acluarial assumptions, bolding other asswmptions constant, weuld have affected the delined

benefit obligation by the amounis shown befow:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Increase Decrease Tncrease
Discount rate {1% movement) 134.98) 38.62 (128 87}
Future salary growth {1°s movement} 71 136.92) 12520
Attrition rate (17 movement) {3329 20.65 {24.08)

Decrease
140,72
{117.25;
3Lz

Although the analysis does not 1ake account of the full distribution of cashfiows expected under the plan. 1t does provide on approximaiion of the sensitivity of the

assumptions shown

Share based payments

The company has Management Incentive Plan (MIP) scheme under which share options are granted to emphlovees which has been approved by the sharehaldess of the
company. [n accordance with the terms of the plan. eligible employees may be granted eptions to purchase equity shares of the company if thev are in service on exercise
of the grant. Each emplovee share option converts into ane equity share of the Compaity o exercise al the exercise price as per the scheme. The Option cany neither rights

to dividend nor vating rights. Gplions can be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date of their expiry.

The following are share based pavmenl arrangements;

Option series

Eair value at grant

(Refer note below) Number Grant dute Exercise price date

MIP 1 11.69.791 2-Now-18 3000 964.00
MIP {1 - Pool A & Pool B 3.97.008 20-Novy-18 G50 00 26100
MIP 11 - Pool A & Pool B 1.11.984 16-Mav-19 930,00 1.193.80
MIP [l - Pool A & Pool B 14.768 01-Jul-19 33000 1.193.80
MIP I 1.75.000 14-Fab-20 930.00 1.531.50
MIP| 82.460 20-Now=20 950.00 L4890
IR | 13.537 09-Feb-21 930.00 141890
Note;

Under MIP 1. the vesting of options granted is linked to time.
Under MIP Il « Pool A & Pool B. shares vest on rarying dates with an option life of § years after vesting,
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Fair value of share options granted during the year

The weighted average fan volue of the stock options granted during the financial year is 2 618.8 (MIP [) (Previous vear: TH30.9 (MIP [} & ¥ 276 ¢ (MIE Ly, Options
were priced using 4 Black Scholes option valuation model & Monte Carlo simulatien madel for MIP | and 11 respectively. Where relevant, the expected Jite used in the

model bas been adiusted based on managements best estimate for the

volatility is based on the historical share price volatilin of suideline companies in developed and developing countries.

[puts in te the mode|

MIP I MIP 1

MIP] MiIPI

eftects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expecied

MIPIL-Pool A

MIPH-Pool A&k AMIPIE-Pool A &

& Pool B Pool B Pool B
Grant date share price * 964 00 1.331.50 1.418.90 141880 964,00 1.193.80 1193 80
Grant date 20-Mov-18 14-Feb-21} 20-Nov-20 U9-Feb-21 H-Nov-18 6-Mav-19 tH-Jul-19
Exercise price 50 00 5000 5000 930,00 930,00 Q30,00 930,00
Expected volatilny 32%, 36% 323% 32.3% 33100, 36.23% 36.23%,
Option life 2.36 vears L3 vems 1 year 1 year 3.61 vears 3.13 vears 3 years
Bividend vield 0.15%, 000" o M) B, 0.13% 0.0, (L.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.28% 3.i0% 3.80% 3.80% 7.50% 644", 6,44%,
* Before adjustment for Jack of marketability
Movements in share options during the vear
Year ended - .
March 31, 2021 Weighted Year ended March Weighted average
MIP I avernge exercise 31, 2020 . .
Number of . exercise price
. price Number of options
fptions
Opening at the beginning of the vear 13.34.883 93} 11.69.791 950
Granted during the vear 95997 930 1.75,000 930
Lxercised during the year - - - -
Forfeited and expired during the vear 18,957 @50 908 950
Balauce at the end of the vear 14,11,923 950 13.34.583 950
Year ended -, .
March 31, 2021 Weighted . Year ended March Weighted average
MIP T average exercise 31,2020 X X
Number of . , exercise price
price Number of optiens
options
Opening at the bagiming of the vear 10.23 76( 30 9.39.838 950
Granted during the vear - - 1.26.828 930
Exercised during the year - . B -
Forfeited and expired during the year 93.631 B30 45906 330
Balance at the end of the vear 925,129 950 10,23,760 950
Share options vested but not exercised during the vear - Nil
Share optiens outstanding at the end of the vear- MIP [« 14,11,923 & MIP 1) - 925,129
The share options outstanding at the end of the vear had a weighted average exercise price of 2 950 and 2 weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.19 years.
37 Capital commitments and cnntiilgent liabilities
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations operations
Estimated amounr of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of 687.12 - §83.64 -
capital advances) and not provided for
Contingens liabilities:
Employee related matters (refer note ¢ijy below} 218359 17.58 2.204.91 1758
Income tax related marters - 251 -
Bank guarantaes issved 140935 7710 6852 9772
Service tax related marners L.190.33 H160.87 Rl346 10.160.87
Sales tax related matters 116,55 2.601.07 11r1s 1.8d0.16
GST relared matters 28537 - 38537 -
Claims not acknowledged as debt ¥ 352,74 13.62 0644 13.62




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financisl statements for the yenr ended 31 Maurch 2021 {continued)
L amtonnts arc i i rupees (8 hakhs exeept share deta and oileewie stoted)

37

Capital commitments and coutingent liahilities (continued)

Mote:

From time to tine, the Group is involved in claims and legal maters arising in the ordinary course of busimess Management is not curcently aware of anyv matters that
will have & matenal adverse ei¥ect on the financial position. results of operanons. or cash flows of the Group.

{iy The Company's wholly owned subsidiary. Drive india Enterprise Solutions Limited (DIESLy (Discontmyed operations; has VAT and Service tax matters oulstanding
with authorities at various lavels amounting 10 ¥ 12.761.94 lakhs (31 March 2026 12.001.03 lakhsy. As per the Share Purchase Agreement dated May 22, 2015 with the
erstwhile shareholders, majority of these amounts are covered under the specific and general indemnity. As per the agreement. there is no expiry period tor claiming
specitic indemnity, however period for claiming weneral indemnity ends on Awvgust 2023 (8 years from the Closing Date as per the agieement)  Therefore, the
managemenl is in the process of claiming such ameunts from the erstswhile shareholders. Whilst the Company is eligible to claim majority of the sum as indetnity. the
Group has disclosed the entire amounts as contingent liabilities in the financial statements on a cautionary basis Based on evaluation of the technical position s well as
legal advice abained from expeits. management has concluded the compaivy”s hiability to be possible have accordingly been disclosed under this note.

{ii) The Company has chiallenged the demand orders from Provident Fund authorities amounting to € 2.183.59 Lakhs for the periods Apil 2011 10 Februar 2013 on the
Lrounds that provident fund on certain alivwances need not be included (or calculation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the same is not universally paid to gli the
employees of the Company.

The Hon'ble Supreme Cowrt of India by their order dated February 28. 2019 set out the principles based an which allowances paid 1o the emplovees shonld be ident fied
for anclusion for the purposes of computation of the Provident Fund contribation, Consequently. the Company has filed a review petition o Regional Provident Funed
Commissioner to review the demand arder in the light of the Supreme Court decision. The Company has alse obrained an interim mjunction from Honourabile High Court
of Madras pending disposal of he Company’s petition. Based on legal advice obined. the Company is of the view that no provision is required for the dispute in the
financials as af March 31, 2021

(i} Disputes with minority shareholders
{a) Arbitration with erstwhtle Chief Executive officer and minority sharehoider of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte, Lid. { Fermeriy known as TVS-Asianics Supply
Chain Solutions Lirited )

TVS Supph Cham Solutions Pte. Lid, ( "TVS GFS") and the Company are part of an ongoing arbitratron at Singapore Intemational Arbitration Centre {SIAC) with
former CEQ of TVS GFS who és also o minarity shareholder in relation 10 amouns payable benefits dus under the then employnent conteacts and also in relation fo
shares hetd by him m TVS GFS. The Company had terminated the services of the CEO for cause in 2019 and has sccrued For approprizte costs 1ill the date of termmation
based an internal review and legal advice and believes ne further adjustments are considered necessan o these financiai starements pending resolution of the
proceedings at SIAC. The proceedings ut SIAC are on woing presently,

{by T.LF Holdings Pty. Limited i*Transtar zroup™)

TVS GFS Group is part of an ongoing litegation with the erstwhile sharehuldars of the Transtar group with respect e amounts payable for the acquisition of the batance
winority sharcholding {45°,) computed as per the terms of the share puichase agreement (second e plation ts). The Company believes that the amounis paid
together with the fiability accrued in the books fairly represents the amounts pavable to the erstwhile shareholders under the terms of the shareholders” agreement and no
torther moterial adjustments ro these amounts would be required. The dispute 15 pending with the Supreme Court of Victoria,

{¢) TVE 5CS Singapore Pre, Lid tFormerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pte. Lid)

The erstwhile shareholders of the TVS 5CS Singapore Pte. Lid are claiming fop-up payment in connection with the acquisition The Group believes that having regaid to
the amoents accrued in the boaks already there are no further amounts pavabls fo the erstwhile sharehoiders under the terms of the sharcholders” agreement. and no
furiher material adjustments to fivese amounts would be required.

* Claims against TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt, Limited tformerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Lid) not acknowledged as debts (refer note 17):

(). Maharoshtra Industrial Development Corperation { “MIDC) has served a notice of claim dated November 6. 2006 as development charges of € 94.08 lakhs (Clam™;
against 6 hectares and 12 Ares of land belonging te the Company (“Land™). The Company Itas contested the Claim as the Land does ot fall within the puiview of MIDC
and the Company has filed a Suit viz. Regular Civil Suit No.26:2007 before the Civil Tudge. Tuntior Division. Khed. at Khed. in Pime against MIDC. The Hon'ble Couer
by and Order dated October 17. 2007 has granted a stay against the Claim. Thereafier in the vear 2010, the Company has received a letter dated July &, 2010 from MIDC
increasing the Claim amount to 2 [ 17.44 lakhs, The Company has filed appropriate reply to the said letter (Claims against the Company not acknowledyred as debt in
P.Y. 211744 lakhs}.

(1 A demand of 7 368,50 lakhs was raised by the Income Tax Department w's 143(3 » during assessment proceedings of the AY 2014-15 against whigh Company had
preferted an appeal before CITAA). Mumbar, Afrer giving effect of CIT{A) order dated February 28, 2018. demand was reduced to 2 32724 lakhs vide order dated
October 24 2018, The said demand was further reduced 10 ¥ 264.71 lakhs after considening rectification of apparent ervors. The Company further paid T 101 Jakh under
protest after which demand reduced 1o 2163.14 lakhs, Futther. refund of AY 2017.18. AY 2018-19 & 201920 of 2 1331 lakhs, ¥ 72.49 lakis and ¥ 77.34 lakhs
tespeciively. has been determined w.s 143 L} and adjusted wis 245 of the come-tax Act by Income Tax Department - CPC. Therefore. net tox payable is Nil. The
Company has preterred an appeal befare The Income Tax Tribunal (ITAT). Mumbai and is pending.
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Lenases
Finance leases as lessor

The reconeiliation between the pross investment in the fease at the end of the reporting period. and the present value of minimum lease pavmenis recervable at the end of
the reporting period are as follows: falso refer note 13)

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Gross investment in the lease 159233 1.962.7¢
Uneamed finanee income (430 83) (49502
Net investiment in the lease 1,161.50 1,467.77

Asat 31 March. the gross investment in the lease and the present value of the mmimum lease pavments receivables under non-cancellable fisance leases are as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Gross investment in the lease

Receivable within one vear 468.07 422 96
Receivable between one and five years 1,068 89 1,399 73
Recervable after five vears 35.37 140, 1¢
Total 1,592.33 1.962,79
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable

Receivable within one vear 30233 275,57
Recenable between one and five vears 806,13 1036.02
Retervable after five vears 5282 15618

Totx! 1,161.50 1.467.77
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3% Business combinations

A.There is no business combination during the year ended 31 Murch 2021,

B. Business combinutiony dering the year ended 31 March 2020
There is no business combination during the year ended 31 March 2020 The Group had revised the Purchase price allocation (PPA} for Eltec and
Triage which was acquired during the year ended 31 March 2019,

i. Acquisition of Eltec - ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition based on revised
Purchase price allocation:

I lakhs of IR Revised PPA Original PP A
Net Praperty. plant & equipment 149.44 149 44
Intangible assets - Others 12042 12142
Intangible assets - Clignt relationship 2.346.73 3.593.65
[ntangible assets - Trade nume 614.90 79392
Inventories 113.64 11364
Trade receivabies 232731 2.527.31
Cash and cash equivalents 241.29 241,29
Borrowings 13.967.26) {3.967.26)
Trade payables (4,749 30) (4.749.50)
Deterred tax liabilities (740.21) {1096 .70y
Other cuerent liabilities (156.45) {136.435)
Total net identifiable assets sequired {3,198.69) (2,429.24)
Goodwitl

In fklis of INR Revised PPA Oviginal PPA
Consideration transferred - -
Earr value of net identifiable assets 3.498.69 242924
CGoodwill 3.498.69 2,429.24

ii. Acquisition of Triage - [dentifiable assets acquired and liahilities assumed
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and Lighilities asswmed on the date of acquisition based on revised
Purchase price allocarion:

In bukhs of INR Revised PPA Original PP 4
Net Property. plant & equipment ig.10 1816
Intangible assets - Client relationship 908 38 998 85
Intangible asscts - Trade name 148.38 148.38
Other non-current assets 462,33 462.33
[nventories 12395 12395
Trade receivables 317.52 517.52
Cash and cash equivalents 19.00 19,00
Cther current assets 653957 639,57
Trade payables (28519 {28319
Deterred tax liabilities (277,76} {294,954
Other current liabilities (403.52) {403.52)
Total net identifinble assets acyuired 1.892.76 1.966.04
Goodwill

it lerkchs of INR Revised PPA Original PPA
Consideration transferred 2.860.84 2.860.84
Fair value of net identifiable assets (1.892.76) {1.966.04)

Goodwill 96808 894.80
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40 Diselosure purseant to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™;
A. Disaggregated revenue information

Segment 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

India Outside India Total India Outside India Total
Tvpe of gaods or service
Revenue from supply chain management services 1.59.789. 16 5.33.570.53 6.93.359 69 1.86.802 .64 4.73.652.3¢ 6.641,454.94
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1.59,789.16 5.35.5370.53 6,93,359.69 1.86,802.64 4.73.652.30 6.60,454.94

Revenues from external custemers in respect of each category of services rendered by the Group are as follows:

Revenne 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Lastmile tul filment 1.70.033.00 1.52.467 8%
Outsourced supply chain management 3.05.489.14 3,34.182.27
Inter-continental movement 21167131 1.72.233.53
Others 6,706,24 1.371.26
4.93.359.69 6,60,454,94
C. Summary of contraet balances
Particulars J1 March 2020 31 March 20240
Trade Receivahles 1.23.296.55 1,38.201.34
Contract assets {(Refer note (a) below) 2046].79 24.376.5%
Advance from Customers 966.74 1.152.76
Note:

a. Confract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from supply chain management services as receipt of consideration is cenditional on successfyl
completion. Upon completion and aceeptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables,

D. Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of productsiservices with the contpacted price

Purticulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 6.93,635.17 66131852
Less: Trade diseounts, volome rebates ete. 27548 863.58

Revenue as per statement of profit and joss 6.93.359.69 6.60.454,94
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41 Transfer pricing
The Company and its subsidiaries each have international and domestic fransactions with related parties. The management confirms that it
mainming documents as preseribed by the respective laws and regulations of the varous jurisdictions in which the Group operates to prove thar the
iternational and domestic transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid laws and regulations will not have any impact on the financial
staterents. particularly an the amount of fax expense and that of provision for taxation upto and for the vear ended March 31, 2021,

42 Related party disclosares

A. Enterprise having significant influcnee TV Sundram [vengar & Sons Private Limited
CDPQ Private Equity Asia PYE. LTD

B. Subsidiaries of T V Sundvam Iyengar & TVS Motor Company Limited
Sons Private Limited Sundaram Clayton Limited
Lucas-TVS$ Limited
Sundaram Industries Private Limited
Lucas Indion Service Limited
Sundaram Auto Compaonents Limited
TVS Autonobile Solutions Private Limited
Sundram Fasteners Limited
TVS Electronics Limited
Sundram Precision Compenents Limited
TVS Training and Services Limited
TVS Distribution & Services Middle East FZE

C. Joint Ventures TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pst. Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pvt, Lid.)
D. Associates MontaraVerpacken mit System GmbH.Germany

Subsidiaries of Momtarelbrpacken mirSvstent Gmb . Germany
Montara North Americg Corporation, USA
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42 Related party disciosyres {continued)
E. Joint ventures of A S1 Airsprings Private Limited (formerly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited)

F. Key management personnel ¢ KMP) M. R. Dinesh. Managing director
Mr. Ravi Viswanathan, Joint managing director
Mr. 8. Ravichandran, Whole-time director

G. Entities controlied by KMP / relatives of KMP of the Company  Dinram Logistics Services LLP
DRSR Advisory Serviees LLP
TVS Srichakra Limited

Transactions during the yenr Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2024
[ncome from logistics services
Lucas-TVS Limited 1.157.95 1,394 34
Sundaram Clavion Limired 9642 22112
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 129.43 140.76
Sundram Fasteners Limited 122,30 [27.94
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 604 61 961.80
TVS Industrial & Legistics Park Py, Limited 56.54 1.82
TVS Motor Campany Limited 8.330.09 TA42.65
TV3 Srichakra Limited 6.063.7) 6.001.33
TVS Training And Services Linited 947 4239
St Airsprings Private Limited {formterly known as Firestone TVS Private Limited) - 5433
Lucas Indian Service Lemited 4.93 62.95
Sale of Goods
Sundaram Clavion Limited 9.99 -

Reimbursement of expenses from
T ¥V Sundran lyengar & Sons Private Limited 644 kN

Purchase of spares, fuel, others

T ¥ Sundram fyengar & Sons Private Limited - 369
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 4941 43,19
Sundram Fasteners Limited - 01l
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pat, Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infiastrocture Pyt Ltd) 30.09 0.22

Freight, packing and forwarding expenses
T ¥V Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limifed 3330 243
TVS Electronics Limited 0.47 .69
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42 Related party disclosures (continned)

Transactions doring the year {continned) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Rent

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pyvt. Limited {Formerly knovwn as TVS Infrastruciure Pyt L) 919,44 893,14

TV Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 174,93 176.43

Lucas-TVS Limited 1,80 180

Repairs and maintenance
T V Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited . 4.93
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pxv1, Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyl Lid) 3.52 6.25

Expenses incurred by and reimbursed to

TV Sundram [yengar & Sons Private Limited 2043 24602
Other ¢xpenses

TV Sundram Tyengar & Sons Private Limited - 73.22
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pvt. Limited {Formerly knewn as TVS Infrasiructure Pyt Led) - 3270

Parchase of fixed assets

TV Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limited 13.99 -

TVS Motor Company' Limited - 14.82
Sundaram Fasteners Lymited 11.82 7.57
Lucas India Service Limited 342 6.27

Purchase of Leasehold [Improvement
TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Pyt. Limited ¢ Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Py Ltd) 135 40.58

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries. wages and bonus to whale-time director {including contribution to provident and other funds) 192.7% 457.65
Salaries. wages and bonus to joint managing director (including contribution ro provident and other Ho 62 22056
funds) (we.f. 4th Feb 2020}

Remumeration to managing director 200.00 40000

1. As the future liabilities of graruity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial hasis for the Company as a wheie. the amounts pertaining 1o the
KMFP is not ascertainable separately and theretfore not included above.

2. Total emplovee stock compensation expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 includes a charge of ¥ 136526 lakhs and 2
298 43 lakhs, towards KMP respectively,
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42 Related party disclosures (continmed)

Year end balances: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Receivables

Lucas Indian Service Limited 72.23 21.89
Lucas-TVS Limited 21.94 12293
Sundaram Clavten Limited 2y L84
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 67.01 8203
Sundram Fasteners Limited 19.3) 2871
TV Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 24 86 37001
TVS Motor Company Limited 1.467.77 83308
TVS Srichakra Limited 139,93 75094
TVS Training And Services Limited .18 2937
SI Airsprings Private Limeted tformerly known as Firestone TVS Private Linited) i0.53 6.90
Sundaram Fasteners Limied 1.34 26.09

Other receivables - Unbilleq revenue

Lucas TVS Limited 2583 2343
Lucas Indian Service Limited - 381
Sundaram Clavton Limited 543 B.U0
Sundaram Fastners Limited 2.09 233
T ¥ Sundaram lyengar & Sons Private Limited 1094 113856
TVS Motor Company Limited 23677 19.76
TVS Srichakra Limited 867.23 131 60

Security deposits (based on transaction value, not discounted)
TVS Industinal & Logistics Park Limited | Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Led) - 762.43

Advance for Supply of Goods & Services

TVS industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerly known as TVS Infrastracture Pyt Lidy 39.00 2843
TV Sundaram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 7746 2123
Pavables

Lucas-TVS Lintited 017 0.ia
Lucas Indian Service Limted 29 1.0
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 18 04 143
Sundram Fasteners Limited ise 219
TV Sundram Iyengar & Sons Privale Limited 3373 3521
TVS Srichakra Lid - 5697
TVS Industria] & Logistics Park Pyt, Lienited Formerly known as TVS Infrastructurs Pyt Lid) 98.36 10.34

Paynble to Key Managerial Personnel

Salaries. wages and bonus to Whole-time directar - 250,00
Salaries. wages and bonus 1o Joint managing divector 200.00 130100
Commission to Managing director 200.00 400 .04
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TVS SUPPLY CHALIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 202 (vontinued)
(AH] cmaitines are ut fidian rupees (3) fukles excopt share dura und otirerrise Steted)

43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
D. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure 16 the fol lowing risks arising from financia) instruments:
- credit risk:

- liguidity visk; and

= market risk

i Risk management framework

The Group's board of directors has overail responsibility for the stablishment and aversight of the Group's tisk management framework. The board of
directors along with the 0P management arg responsible tor developing and mon itoring the Group's risk management policies,

The Group’s risk manugement policies are established to identif and analyse the risks faced by the Grouwp, to set appropriate sisk limits and conrols
and to monitor nisks and adherence 1o limits, Risk management pohcies and svstems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group. through its waining and management standards and procecures. aims to maintain 3 disciplined and constructive
contrel enviconment in which all emplovees understand their roles and abligations,

i, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group i a customer or counterparty 1a a financial instrument fails to meet its contraciual obligations. and
arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers: teans and investinents.

The carrving amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exXposure.

Credit risk is managed through eredit approvals. establishing credit limirs and cotinuously monitoring the creditwarthiness of customers to which the
Group grants credit terms in the normal course af business, The Group establishes an allowance for doubttut debts and impairment tliat rgpresents its
estimate of ineurred losses in respect of the Group’s trade receivables. certain loans and advances and other financial assets,

The maximum expasure to credit risk for financial assets are as tollows:

Carrving amount
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade receivables 1.13.43] 14 130727 96
Investinents 1.375.62 1.322.80
Cash and cash equivalents 53.696.24 38.461.28
Other bank batances 31N397 2621652
Deposits and other receivables 1141724 9.696.76
Other financial assets 31,192 52 25,604 51
Total 21482873 28202983

Trade and other receivables
The Group's exposure to ¢redit risk is influeneed mainly by the ndivideal characteristics of each customer. The demographics of 1he customer.
including the default risk of the industry and country fiv which the customer operates. alse has an influence on credit risk agsessment.

Exposures 1o customers eutstanding at the end of each Teporting period are reviewed by the Group to determine incurred and expected credit losses,
The impairment loss at the reporting dates relates ta several customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Group and are not expected to be
able to pay their eutstanding balances. mainky due to ECONGINIC Circumsiances.

The Group determines credit risk based on a varfety of factors including but not |imited 1o the age of the receivables, cash flow projections and
available information about customers frem internaliexternal sources. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of
expected losses in respect of trade receivables,




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 {vontinued)
tAl unrciits are in bwdian FHpees (8) lakhs except slure date and otheryise stared)

43 Financial imstruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

D. Financial visk management {comtinted)

Cesh andd cash equividents and other bank balcices
The Group holds cash and bank balances of 2 5741221 fakhs as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: ¥ 1.14.677.79 lakhs). The credit werthiness of
such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management o an ongoing basis and 15 considered to he guod,

Deposits and other receivuabivs, fuvestments and other financial assets
The Group holds deposits and atier receivables. investments and other fingncial assets of T 43,985 39 lakhs as ar 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020 7
36.624.04 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such parties are evaluated by the Tanagement an an ongeing basis and is considered to be sood.

D. Financial risk Mmanagement {continued)

i, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficolty tn meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are sertled by
delivering cash or another financial ssset The Group's approach to managing liquidity 15 to ensure. as far as possible. that 1t will have sutiieient
tiguidity to meet its habilitics when they are due. under both normal and stressed conditions. without inewring unacceptabie losses or risking damage 1o
the Group’s reputation.

Exposire to tignidin visk
The faliewing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted. and include
contractual interest paviments and exclude the impact of netting agreaments:

Contractual cask flows

Carrving Tota! | year or less 1-3 years More than §
B amount vears
31 March 2021
Non derivative fimancial liabilitios
Current and nost-current borrowings
Secured term leans from banks fieter note 2A) 9924373 90 213 75 5160 7% 94,082 97 -
Secured term loans from financial institutions 0.90 090 .90 - -
Secured long term obligations under finunce leases 208020 2U80.20 106126 LG189g -
Secured cash credit from banks 182,88 182 3% 182 8% - -
Secured revolving credit facility 1917595 2917363 28175093 - -
Secured toans repavable on demand 12116 12114 121.16 - -
Unsecured bills discounting B34 47 35447 834,47 - -
Unsecured loans repavable on demand 23981.35 23981 45 23.981 .43 - .
Redeemable preterence shares 297,60 891.60 831 .60 - -
Unsecured otlher shore werm loans 340 00 34000 340.00 - -
Orhers
Trade payabies LI2167.19  L12167.19 L12167.19 - -
Lease liability 11633885 14266932 34,004 42 11.836.67 3782823
Orther financial liabilities 16,788.56 16.788.56 16,788 56 - -

402,366,096  4,28,497.43 2.24,730.62 1,65,938.58 JT.SZ&&

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Total 1 vear or tess 1-5 years More than 5
amount Years

31 March 2020
Noa derivative financial linbilities
Crvent and non-carven borrowings
Secured rerm loans from banks (refer note 2A) 84 10799 94 107,99 506923 89.038.76 -
Unsecured term boans from banks 6, 200.00 20000 6, 200.00 . .
Secured rerm loans From fnancial institutions 7.638.64 7.691.75 768788 339 024
Unsecured term loan from Financial institutions 5,080.00 508000 508000
Secured long term obligations under tinance Jeases 2.539.76 255976 676 86 1.882.90 -
Secured cash credit from banks 5.261 96 3.261 96 526196 - -
Unsecured cash credit from banks 2363 23.65 23,63 - -
Secured revolving credit facitity 45.163.16 45.165.16 4516516 - -
Secured loans repavable on demang 6.36926 6.569.26 6.569.26 - -
Unsecured bills discounting 4.353.56 433356 4.333.56 - -
Unsecured loans repavable on demand 4036002 40.360.02 40,360,02 - -
Unsecured commercial paper - - - - -
Redeemable preference shares £91.60 121.60 891.60 - -
Unisecured otber short term loans 340.00 34000 340.00 - -
Orhers
Trade pavables 1.01.258.7] 1.01.238 3| 10,2582 - -
Lease liability 1.18.243 64 1.32.5035.09 31012296 78.727.64 2363249
Other {inancial liabilities 13.220 56 18,2241 56 14.590 64 3,629.92 -
S f 356.20001  4,70,586.57 2.73.650.99 1,73.282.81 2365277
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43 Financial jostraments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange cates and interest rates will affect the Group's income or the value off ir's
holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk aranagement is (o manage and control marks risk exposures within acceptable parameters
and optinksing the returm.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to curreney risk o the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which revenues. pavables. receivables. ete. are
dencminated in a cumeney other than the respective functional currency of each of the emities in the Group. The Group does not hedge its foreign
currency risk in general except in case of certain pavables and receivables denominated iy foreign currency which are hedged through the nse of forgign
currency swaps and forwards, Reter note 43 (v} for further details on hedging activities and derivatives.

Sensitiviey analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the 2 against the respective currencies noted below at 31 March would have affected the

lcasurement of' tinancial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profiz or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables. an particular interest rates. rensain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases

Profit or (Joss) Equity, net of tax
Weakening  Strengthening Weakening Strengthening

31 March 2021

United States Dollar (1% movement 53.00 (55.09) - -
Euro (1% movenmen) 5131 {3131} - -
Great Britain Pounds { 1% movement) {434 .97) 434 97 - -
Australian Dollar { 1% movement) 72.28 (72.28) - -
Singapore Dollur { 1% movement 46.99 46,99} - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement} 1.58 {1.58) - -
Others (1% movement)* 398 i39%) . -
31 March 202¢

United States Dollar (1% movement {31.08) 3108 - -
Euro { 1% movenent) L7.45 {1145 - -
Ureat Britain Pounds (1% nEment) {480.69) 480,69 - -
Austratian Dofilor (1% MOvEment) 37.31 (3731 - -
Singapore Dollar ¢ 1% movemsnt} {9.39) 939 - -
Thailand Bhat { 1% movement) (1.2n 1.21 - -
Others (1% movement) 466.43 {46643} - -

The above table also includes sensitivity analysis on inter group receivables/ payables which are denominated in a foreign currency. Such nter-group
receivables and payables, though eliminated en consolidation give rise to currency risk and hence. the same has been disclosed.

*Others mainly inctude currencies such as Malaysian ringgit. Hong Kong doltar. indonesian rupiah, South Korean won, New Taiwan dollar. Canadian
dollar and New Zealand doflar,

Interest rave risk

demand loans.
Expostre to interest rage risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest=bearing financial instruments is as follows:
31U March 2021 3| Mareh 2029

Variable vate instruments
Financial liabilities

- Term loans from banks 98,923.28 35,074 69
- Cazsh credit from banks 132.88 5.28562
- Revolving credit facility 29.175.95 43.165.16
- Loans repayuble on dentand 22.430.00 39.350.00

- Bills discounting - 4.353.56
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43 Financial instruments - Fajr values and risk management (continued)

Fixed rate instruments
Financiaf assets
- Deposits with banks

Financial fiabilies

- Term Ioans from baiks

~ Term loans from financial institutions
- Finance lease obligations

- Loans repavable on demand

- Bills discounting

= Redeemable preference shares

= Other shert term loans

v, Market risk (eontinned)
Interest rate risk (coninmied)

Fair valne Sensitivity anafvsis for fived rate mstrimnents

4.244.23 2685332
32047 323350
- 12.738.64
2.080.20 2.559.76
1.672.61 7.579.28
854,48 -
38160 891.60
34100 340.00

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would not have any inipact on the reported profit or loss or equity

as these fixed rate instruments {(deposits
measurement,

Cash flow SeAsINY anatvsis for variable rore mstritments

A reasonably possible change of [00 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would hgv

anteunts shown below. This analysis assumes that alt other variables remain constant,

with banks) are carried at amortised cost, any changes

(Profit) or loss

106 bp decrease

100 bp increase

31 March 2621
Financigd liabitities

ih Tnferest rates are not considered for subsequent

€ increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the

Equiry
190 bp decrease 100 bp increase

- Term loans from banks {68923} 98923 - -
= Cash credit from banks {1.83%) 1.83 - -
- Revolving credit facilicy 1291.76) 261 76 - -
- Loans repayable on demand {224.30) 224,30 - -
= Bills discounting - - - -
Cash Aow sensitivity (net) (1.507.12) 1,507.12 - -
31 March 2029

Financial tiabilities

- Term loans from banks (950.75) 930.75 - -
- Cash credit fram banks (52.86) 52.86 - -
- Revolving credit tacitity (451.63) 451.63 - -
- Loans repayable on demand (393.50) 393.50 - -
- Bills discounting (43.54) 43354 - -
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {1,892.30) 1.892.30 - -
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43 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
v, Hedging nctivities and derivatives

The Graup is exposed 1o cermain risks relating to us ongoing business operations. The mrimary visks manpged vsing deivative instruments are toreign
currgney sk and interes rage risk.

Derivarives nor destonated oy hedving instrsnents
e e BRI AT
During the previous vear. the company had entered into forward contracts with HDFC bank for the loans given by the company to s whelly owned

subsidiary and these are not designated as hedges. The company has recogmzed a loss of  691.79 [akhs ¢2 1209.76 as at March 31, 20201 and derecognised
the derivative liability in the current vear on receipt of the loans given (rafer note 323

Derivatives desionated a8 hiedeina instrarments

Eerivanves desienared af hedoing instramrenrs

Cash flow hedges

The Group is exposed o cash fow volatitity risks due ro the difference between the functional currency of the Group and the borrowmg currency.

Fuoreign currency risk:

Variability in principal liability on the loan atiributable to movements in foreign currency exchange rate, To hedge changes in the fareign currency exchange
rate whitle making principal repayments. the Group had entered mio Principle only Swap (PoS) doring the year ended 31 March 2021, The hedge results in
fixed cash Mows

There 15 an economic relatienship between the hedged iterns and the hedging instruments as the critical terms of the hedged item are closely aligned with the
hedging instrument from the inception of the hedge till termination. The Group has assessed hedge effectiveness and established an economic relationship al
the inception of the hedye and across the tenor of the hedging relationship

The Group held the following hedging instruments as at 31 March 2021;

1to 6 Months & to 12 Months More than 12 Total
Maonths
Principle only Swap
Mational principal amount {In IMR Lakhs) - 2.367.64 44.985. 10 47.352.73
Average Forward Rate (SGDFGBP) - 1.76 1.76 1.76
Average Forward Race (SGD-USD) - 1.37 1.37 137
Average Forward Rate ({GBP:USDy - 1.26 .36 1.26

The impact of hedging instroments on the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2021 was as follows:

Notional amount Carrving amount Line item in the Change in Tair
statement of  value used for
financial position measuring

ineffectiveness
= for the period
Priniple only swap 3434240 617.17 Other financial 61717
assets
Priniple only swap 13.010.33 1.398.08 Other financial 1.393.u8
habilities
The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income was, as follows:
Total hedging  Ineffectiveness  Cost of hedging Amount Line item in the
gain/{loss) recognised in recoghised in  reclassified from  statement of
recognised in profit or loss oCT OCItaprofiter  profit or loss
o1 toss
Year ended 31 March 2021
Principle only swap 4927 - (776.34) 49.27  Other expenses
The impact of hedged item on equity:
Cash flow hedge
reserve
As at 01 April 2020 -
Effective portion of changes in fair value anising from swap arrangements 49.27
Amount re-classified to profit or loss 49.27)

AS at 31 March 2021 .
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the consolidated finsncial statements for the year ended 31 March 202 {continued)
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43 Disclosure pursvant o lnd AS 105 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations™:

A. The group has following non-current assetshlisposal group recognised s held for sale as on 31 March 2021

Asset/Disposal group Reportable seament

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited Indix
B. The proposed sale is expected to be completed within 1| year from the respective reporfing dates
€. Financial performance and cash flow information

The results of Drive Indix Enterprise Solutions Limited for the yeur are presented below:
31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

Tetal Revenues (includes ather income) 68142 1.515.89
Expense 673.87 [.559 44
Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 5.55 43.3)}
Tax (expensesfincome:

Tax relating 10 carlier periods - 3.99
Profit/(loss} Tor the vear from a discontinued operation 5.55 (33.50)
Earnings per share:

Basic .02 (A
Dituted 0.02 -
The net cash flows incerred by Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited are, as follows:

Net cash inflow/outflow) from operating activities 17848 605,73
Net cash intlow/(outtlow) from investing activities {117.76) {350.36)
Net cash inflow/ vutflow) trom financis £ activities {2.96) .
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash generated from discontineed operation 57.76 55,38

. The major classes of assets and liabilities of Drive India Enterprises Sofutions Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2021 are, as

follows:
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Group(s) of assets classified as held for sale:

Right-oi-use assets 0.77 2.8
Other intangible assets 2014 21890
Other financial assets - Non-current 437.52 466.37
Non-current tax assets {net) 3950 87.08
Other aon-current assets 447 46 692,76
[nventories 137.57 102 .42
Trade receivables (Non-corrent & current) 347754 3.435.81
Loans - ¢urrent - -
Cash and ¢ash equivalents 144,75 50702
Other bank balances 42003 -
Depaosits & other receivables - current 1134 1.17
Other financial assets - Current 388,14 34247
Other correns assets 127.2) 442 91
5.871.96 6.348.89
Liabilities associated with group(s) of assets classified as held Tor sale:
Provisions - Non-ctrrent 2,38 2.63
Borrowings - Current 492,87 492.87
Trade payables (Non-current & current} 3.69925 3.554.51
Other non-current liabilities 3139 3473
Other tinancial liabilities - Current 1922 7149
Provisions - current 1.11 115
Currens tax {izbilities {net) - -
Deferred tax liabifities 6369 65.69
Other current liabilities 438 82 Hil.54
5.030.93 4.904.61




TVS SUFPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Nutes to the consolidated financiad statements for the Year ended 3 March 2021 (continued)
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46 List of subsidiaries

Ownership interest

Conntry of
incorporation 3 March 2020 3| March 2020
Name of direct subsidinries of the Comp Ny
TVS SC5 Global Freight Solutions Ltd {Forenerty known as TVS Dynamie Global Frgight Services Limuted) India G000 85 00
Duwve Tndia Enterprises Solutiens Limited india T00.00% 10HL 10
FLEXOL Packaging i)ndia) Limited India 88.11% (7 i3,
TVS Packagmy Solutions Private Limited India [RUERE 1N JRUEX D
SPC intermational india Private Limited India T, 160 0ne,
TVE SCS rSiam} Limied (Formerly kiown as TVS Logistics SIAM Litmited) Thaitand 100.00°%, L. 007,
TVE Logisties Investment UK. Limited United Kingdom 100000, 100,00
TVS Logistics Investinents USA Ing. USA 100,000 5 IR EX
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pre. Lid, (Formerly known as TVS-Agianics Supphy- Chain Singapore 33.50% Q3.31%
Solutions Pre Limited). Singapore
TVS Tovota Tsushe Supply Chain Solutions Limited India SR 60,009,
White Data Svstems Indig Pvt Lig India 5100, FL00%
Name of step-down subsidinries
Subsidiarices of TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00°, 106y 00
Subsidures of VS Supphy Chuist Seditions 1 innted, T8
MSys Software Selutions Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00% 10,0075
Multipart Limited. UK United Kingdom 100.00%, 100000
Lintox TYS Solutions Pty Limited United Kingdom 100,000, 10000,
Peter Thomas & Ca( Refurbishing) Limited, UK United Kingdom 100.00%, 75000
TVS Logistics Iberia S.L. Spain Spain 100.00%, L0G.(0°
TVS Autosery GmbH. Germany- Germany 31 00%, S 00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions GmbH. Germany Germany 100,000 IRUIXE
Rien Logistics Limited. UK United Kingdom 97.47% 97.47%
Srbsuclteries of Rico Logisves Lmted, T8
Ricochet Spain 5.L. Spain Spain 100.00°¢ 100.00%
Stebsreltories of Kuwnchet Spain 5.7, SN
Eltec IT Services SL U 100,009, 10,600
Rico Logistique. France France 1000, 180110,
Rico Logistics Limited, Australia Australia 100,000 LO0.G0%
Circle Express Limited, UK United Kingdom GR00% 8500
Tri - Tee Computer Support Limited. Northerm Iveiatd Northemn Ireland 10000 100,00,
Tri - Tec Support Limited, Ireland Irefand 100600 100 G0
TVS SCS Rico Italia SRL [taly 106,000, 100.00"y
Triage Holdings Limited Uimted Kingdom 100.00% RCHRE Y
Sethsicliiries of Trecge Holdings favited
Trage Service Limited United Kingdom 106.00% 100.00%
OrderLogic Limited Untted Kingdom 100.00% LCIRTTE
SPC International Limited. UK United Kingdom 100000, 63.06%
Subswliuries of SPC nrernationat Eavited, {E
SPCINT Limned. UK United Kingdom 100,000, 100.06%,
SPC International { Engineering} Limited. UK United Kingdom 104.00%, 108.60%
Pitcomp 171 Limited. UK United Kingdom 100.00% 160.00%
SPC EBT Trustzes Limited. UK United Kingdom 100.00%, 0000,
SPC Internationa! Inc.. USA usa 100,000, [LLIR{TE
SPC Intemational 5.a,5. France France 100,00% 100100° o
SPC International s.r.0 . Slovakia Shovakia 100.00% L0000 o
Subsidiaries of TVS Logistics Tnvestments USA Tane.
TVS Ametica Inc.. USA usa [LIRel P 100,007
TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America Ine.. USA US4 100010 o 100.00%%
Subsidicrnes of TV Supph Clan Solntions Novth America fnc., 54
Waintrans LLC, USA Usa 100N, Loo.0ue
TVS Supply Chain Solutions De Mexico $.A4 de C V. Mexico Mexica 98000y 99.00%,
TVS Packaging Selutions Inc, US Usa 100 00%, [RCHRHN




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Notes tu the consofidated finaacial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021 {cmtinued)
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46 List of subsidiaries (contimued)

Subsidiaries of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pre. Ltd,

TVS SCS Intermational Freight {Spaim) SLU  Farmerly known as Nadal Forwarding S.Ly, Spain Spain 160 DUt [LETRVIELY
Swbsuclniries of TVS SUS laterist i Frerght £5pam) SEL Spas
Lineas Regulares XX1. S L Spain 90 750, 94 750
TVS SCS International Pre Led ¢ Formerly known as Pan Asia Lagisues Internarional Pte. Lidy Singapore 1060.04% 100.00%
TVS 8CS Singapore Pre. Ltd {Fornierly known as Pan Asia Logistics Singapore Pie. Led) Singapore 100 005 100.00% 5
Subsufivrivs of TES 80N Singipore Pre. Lad
Pan Asia Logistics Limited, Shanghat China 160 ane, 160.00%
TS 8CS (Kereas Ltd {Formerly known as Pan Asta Logrstics Intemational | Korea) L) Korea [{UER 11 11600
TVS5 SCS Logisties t Thailand Limited 1 Formerly known as Pan Asia Logisties  Thailand 1 Lrdy Thadand 49.00% 48,000
TVS 3CS tHong Kong Limited {Forierly known as Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics Hong Konyg L)
Heng Kong 1000412, 100 Dy
Pan Asia Container Line Pre Lid, Hong Kong Hong Kong 100,000 160100°
TVS SCS Deustsehland Grabh ¢ Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Deutschland GmbH) Crrmanm 1006507 108 B
Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malavsia 100002, 100.00%
TVS 5CS Vietnam Coepany: Limited {Fomerly known as Pan Asia Layisties Vietnam Company Lid} Viemam 93.00% 95 00%,
PT Pan Asia Logistics Indonesia Indencsia MO0, S0.00%
TVS SCS Taiwan Limited {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logisties Tanvan Lid) Taiwan 100000, LO%.60*
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics India Pyt Lid Indsa Q0G0 9950,
TVS Supply Chain Solutions { Thailand} Limited (Fernterty known as TVS Asianics). Thailand Thailand 1001.00%0 1L, 06)%
Substdunies of VS Supply Chnr Sofuions Thheifondy Limted
TV3 3CS Logistics Management Co. Ltd {Formerly known as TLM Logistics Management Co.. Lid) Thailand 100,004 106.00%
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Australia Holdings Pev Ltd (FormerTy known as T¥S-Asianics Anstraliy Holdings
Pty Lid) Austealia 100.00% 100 (0%,
Subsidtaries of PVS Suppt- Chain Solutiens Avstratrg Huldings Prv Lid
T.LF Holdings Piy. Lid.. Australia Austealia 100.06%, 100.00%,
Substcharies of 101 Holclmgs Proc Lad, Ausivalie

TVS8 SCS (Aust) Pty Ld. (Farmerly known as Transtar interational Freight (Aust) Pty Led}, Australia Australia 160 00°, 1000410 o
TVS SCS Mew Zealand Limited {Formerly known as Transtar International Freight Limited).

New Zealand New Zealand [O0.00% 100.000,
KAHN Nominees Pty Lid. Austratia Australia [RUERE (FY 100,005
Transtar nternational Freight Limired. Hong Kong Heng Kang 160 (i@, 100 017 o
TVS 5CS International Freight (Singapore} Pte. Ltd (Fomerly known as Transtar tntemational Freight

(Singapore) Pte. Limited). Singapore Singapore [LHRTTEN [IE(REE
Transtar laternational Freight { Shanghai} Limited. China China L00.007 1U0.00%
TVS SC8 International Freight 1 Thailand) Limited {Formely known as Transtar International Freight

{Thailand) Limited), Thaitand Thailand 100,00%, LTERY LY
Transtar International Freight ¢ Malaysin) SD Bhd. Malaysia Malasvsia 100,60 100.50%

47 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that have occuried after the reporting period fil! the date of these ¢ lidated financial stat 5.

48 Prior vear comparatives
To conform to this vear's classification, certain previeus vear figures have been veclassified'reurouped wherever HECessan,

As per our report of even date attached
For 8.R. Batliboi & Associntes LLP Jor and on behalf of the boasd of dircctors of

Firm Registration Number - 101049% / E300004 TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Chartered Accountants

b R. Dol

Bharath N § 5 Mahalingam R Dinesh
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership Na, 210934 DIN: 00121727 DIN 00363300

Place : Chennai

Date 15 June 2021 f{‘\t.. M—_\ml\.ﬂﬂ""‘ﬂv 13 chem

Ravi Viswanathan 5 Ravichandran
Joint Managing Director_ Wholestime Director

DIN: 08713910 ' DIN: 01485845
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P D Krishna Prasad
Goup/Chief Finaficial Officer Company Secretany
Pl Ice_;'l.' Singapore

Place . Chennai
Drate - 15 Jone 2621




S.-R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Fine) B, o, 51ock

Rajiv Gandni Salai
Chartered Accountants Taramani, Chennai - 600 113, India

Tel - +21 44 6117 9000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of TVS Supply Chain
Solutions Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responstbilities under those
Standards are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements® section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ‘Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS fipancial
statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2A of the Standalone Financial Statements which describes the continuing
impact of Covid-19 pandemic, and its possible consequential implications, on the Company’s
operations and financial metrics. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors™ report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financiaf statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cormection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
/the “oifier, information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially

S.R. Ballibol & Associates LLP, a Limiteg Llabitity Partnership with LLP Jdentity No. AAB-429%
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block *B', 3rd Floor, Kokata- 700 01&
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inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

‘The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fajr
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes marntenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Com pany’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso-

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi gn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financiaj
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
vstimates and related disclosures made by management,
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2* to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 3 1. 2021 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone Ind AS
tinancial statements:

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iitl. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Com pany.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

|2

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 21210934 AAAADI9878
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: June 15, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in our report of even date

Re: TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (“the Company”)

() (a)

(b)

(c)

(i)

(i) (a)

)

(©)

(v}

)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which. in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of jts assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property, are held
in the name of the Company except for one immovable property comprising land and
building acquired pursuant to demerger of the third-party logistics services business of a
subsidiary amounting to a gross book value of Rs. 2,857 lakhs, for which the Company is
in the process of registering title deeds. Also refer note 12 of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the vear. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such physical verification.

The Company has granted loans to four parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. [n our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted to companies covered in the register maintained under section
189 of Companies Act, 2013, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated. Having regard to the amendments made to certain of these agreements
in the current year, we are informed that there has been no default on the part of the parties
to whom the money has been lent as the repayments / receipts were to the extent of amounts
demanded.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for
more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including
entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments
made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
products/services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, em ployees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax are not applicable to the Company.



SR BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

{c)} According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, valve added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

| Name  of | Nature TAEuF pmam?‘ Period  to| Forum  where the |
‘ the statute ‘ of the | (Rs in (Rs in | which the | dispute is pending |
dues | lacs) ‘ lacs) ‘ amount relates |
e B R il
Income-tax | Income | | High Court of
AY 2011-

‘ Act, 1961 ‘ tax dues 209.09 ‘ - oll-12 ‘ Judicature of Madras
—_—
! Income-tax | Income Income Tax Appellate ‘

‘ AY 2012-13

‘Act, 1961 taxdues‘ 143.88 | 122.28 | Tribunal |

' Income-tax Incae—( |
‘ Act, 1961 tax dues ‘ 14.71 ‘

rlncome_-téx_— Income | - Income Tax prellate
2015-
Act, 1961 | taxdues | 46.68 | AY 201516 Tribunal |

Tocomerax [Teome | ———————1

Act, 1961 | tax dues | 137.36 AY 2016-17 ‘CIT(Appea'S) |

AY 2014-15 | CIT (Appeals) |

" sors T Aprit 2014 to | Additional
Finance ‘ Service ‘ ‘ | April 20 o | Additiona

September | commissioner, CGST ‘
t . 72.

Act, 1994 | tax dues ‘ 80.12 84 | 5015 | & Central Excise |
I == — - |

*Net of?mcﬁﬂs—paid under prc?est_

(viti)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution
or bank. The Company did not have any loans or borrowing dues to government or
debenture holders during the vear.

{(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management

and audit procedures performed by us, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way
of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x}  Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(xi}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvails mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Scheduie V to the Companies Act, 2013.

{(xi))  In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii} of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accountin g standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company
and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors Or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and eXplanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Com pany.

For S.R, BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATESLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W / E300004

per Bharath N §

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 21210934AAAADI9878
Place of signature: Chennai
Date: June 15, 2021
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATFE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 3 1, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
[based on the internal control over financiai reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accountin g records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial informati on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, includin g the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
tinancial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the. policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICATI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Bharath N S

Partner

Membership No.: 210934
UDIN: 21210934AAAADI9878
Place of signature: Chennai
Date; June 15, 2021
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standulone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
(401 ainstines are e dndran ripees (3) kakhs except share date and othentise statedd)

Note Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property. plant and equipment 12 14.560.73 13.248.31
Capital work-in-progress Hy7.27 191.77
Goodwill 134 328790 3.28790
Other intangible assels 13B 53455 748.96
Right-of-use assets 13C 2365077 25.141.86
Financial assets
[nvestmenis 14 42 296,40 41.437.00
Trade receivables 20 6326 -
Deposits and other receivables 16 T7.880.56] 3.302.08
Other financial assets 17 605,44 61304
Deferred tax assets (net) 1 6.399 97 562936
Non-current tax assets {net) 5.95997 0.372.95
Other non-current assets 18 249.26 71698
Total non-curvent assets 1,08,465.33 1.03,113.14
Current assets
Inventories 19 176.03 130.51
Financial assets
Investments 14 1.335.62 1.038 .40
Trade receivables 20 2881934 3938286
Cash and cash equivalents 21 101.531.93 ROI3.14
Qther bark balances 22 27001 249 .40
Loans 15 3818388 43.596.27
Deposits and other receivables 16 18.168.51 1546126
Other tinancial assets 17 12.723.82 6.362.12
Other current asscts 23 6.394.30 4.350.22
Total current assets 82,258.46 1,19,803.78
Total assets 1.90,723.79 2.22.916.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 24A 317621 3.176.21
Other equity 24B 73.216.76 79.379.15
Total equity 76,392.97 #2,555.36




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021
(A amounts are i Indieus rupees (3 fukhy except share dete and othenvise stuted)

Note Asat Asaf
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Liahilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrewings 25 1826 166.35
l.ease liabiliry 13C 18.625.35 20.761.85
Other financial liabilities 27 308111 49 80
Provisions 23 20304 431.62
Tutal nen-current liabilities 23017.76 21,409.62

Corrent liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 25 29.971.11 ©3.225.92
Lease liability 13C T 15754 6.249.30
Trade payables 26
Dues to micro. small and medivm enterprises 1,4%6.5:4 2510407
Dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 37.036.55 31.162.85
Other financial liabilities 27 10,882.37 12.662.02
Provisions 28 1.223.86 946.76
Other corrent liabilities 29 3.545.09 2.195.02
Taotal current liabilities 91,313.06 1,18,951.94
Total Liabilities 1,14.330.82 1,40,361.56
Total equity and liabilities 1,90,723.7% 2,22.916.92

The notes trom 1 to 38 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of
Firm Registration Number : [01049W / E300004 TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited
Chartered Accountants

A Do

Bharath X § $ Mahalingam R Dinesh
Partner Chairman banaging Director
Membership No. 210934 DIN: 00121727 DIN: (11363300

Place ; Chennai
Date 15 June 2021

Bov hmeneta o

Ravi Viswanathan 3 Ravichandran
Jomnt Managing Director Whole-tinre Director
DIN: 08713910 DIN: 01485845

/ _ p
. .‘ﬂ . |.‘ J ‘-.*L'/'lﬁf P P N [
Ravi Prakas Bhagavathula P D Krishna Prasac

{
Urpup Chief inanctal Officer Company Secretary
Ptace : Singapore

Place . Chennai
Date : 13 June 2021




TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTHONS LINMITED
Standalone statement of profit and Inss for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(A cmtenitiits arve fr fidicn ripees ($3 lakles except sheare date and othermvise stufed)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 202(
Revenue from operations 3 L24.196.49 L 42400109
Ocher incomg & 10.252 85 12.329.03
Total income 1,34.449.34 1,61,929.14
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 10,58 11.821.00
Emplovee benefits expense 7 39.827.59 0004 96
Finance costs g 591007 1.571.97
Depreciation and amortisation expense G 11.548.22 11.926.03
Other expenses 10 36.097.01 92.778.06
Total expenses 14339347 164,102,002
Loss before tax (8.944.13} (2,172.88)
Income tax expense 1
Adjustments of tax relating to prior vears 243 -
Defterred tax {308.79) {388.77
income tax expense {806.36) {588.77)
Loss for the vear (8,137.77) {1.584.11}
Other comprehensive income
frems that will not be reclussified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 109.25 187.06
[ncome (ax relating to these items {38.18) {6537
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subseguently to profic 71.07 120.69
or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax TL07 121.69
Total comprehensive income for the vear (8.066.70) (1,:462.42)
Earnings per share (INR) 21E
Basic (24.70) 14.95)
Dituted (24,70 {4.95)

The notes from 1 to 3§ form an integral pact of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

for 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Firm Registration Number : 101049W / E300004
Chartered Accountants

Bharath N §

Partner

Membership No. 210434
Place : Chennai

Date : 13 une 2021

Jor and on behalf of the board of directors of

‘TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

- R . @w\i —~£ -‘5./1;—/

$ Muhalingam
Chairman
DIN: 00121727

Ravi Viswanathan
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 03713910

Ravi/Prikash Blafavathula
Groufp .‘hiefFinal}_ ial Officer
Place/ Singapore’

R Dinesh
Managing Director
DIN: 00363300

ﬁt. W konnepta P \‘\MMW

S Ravichandran
Whole-time Director
DIN: G1485845

P D Krishaa Prasad

Company Secretary

Place . Chennai
Date - 13 June 2021
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TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LINMITED
Standalone statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2021
tAN amronnts are i Indion ropees (3) likhs except share data and othervise siated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss hefore tax
Adjustments for:

[nterest income under the etfective interest method on:
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposits carried at amortised cost
Investments in debentures carried at amortised cast
Loan to subsidiaries and joint ventures
Amortisation of financial guarantee liability

Provision no longer required written hack

Dividend income from subsidiaries

Share based pavments

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Gain on termination of lease contract

nterest income under income tax retund

Tnrealised foreign exchange differences

Rad debts written off

Provision for doubttul debts

Loss on changes in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through P&L

Provision for doubtful security depesits

(Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plan and equipment. net

Operating profit before chunges in operating assets and
Change in operating assets and liabilities

{Increase) / decrease in inventories

{Increase} / decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) £ decrease in other eurrent and non-current, financial and nen-financial assets

[ncrease / idecrease) in trade payables

lncrease /S (decrease) in other current and non-current. financial and non-financial liabilities

In¢rease / {decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations
[ncome taxes paid. net of refunds
Net cash flow from/ {used in) operating activities

Cash Dows used in investing activities

Investment in bank deposits having an original maturity of more than three months
Payments for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment

[nvestments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in body corporate

Loans (given)received to/from subsidiaries

[nierest received

Dividend income from subsidiaries

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Year ended
31 Maach 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

(3.944.13) (2.172.88)
(235.53) (113.83)
(28815 24171}

36.11) 130.82)
(562.09) (1.567.10)
iL.635261) (1.744.48)
- 16:40.31)
(108,00 1L02.00y
1.680.40 64143
591007 7.571.97

11.548.22 11.926.03
{480.34) (914.46)
1305.24) (210,86}

(2.,478.29) (2.139.96)

82.96 10.10
971.68 2.005.38

- 1.200.76

25.00 .
237 16.45
5,210.21 13,502.67
(45.52) {1.00)
9.051.43 (13.820.97)
112.023.39) 9.588.48
4.360.12 (2.159.85)
9.933.39 (6.333.46)
157.77 (258.60)
17,144.01 509.67
61035 (1.237.35)
17,754.56 (727.68)
(20.61) 6.83
(5.980.50) (3.770.12)
16513 78.23
{1.080.90) (15.393.16)
(20.00) -

42.260.61 135.486.25)
834.25 326.12
108.00 102.00
36,765.98 (54,138.35)




TVS SUPPLY CHAEN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Standalone statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2021
(A amonnis are in Indian rupees (5] fakhs except share deta and othenvise stated)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash flows from/{used in) financing activitics
Proceeds from compulsorily convertible preference shares. ineny - 17.143.30
Proceeds from issue of share warrants - 676.88
Proceeds from/(repayment) of short-term borrowings. net 13325481 50.347.72
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 43 24 3.015.98
Repayment of long-term betrewings (3,593.84) (81147
Interest paid (3.609 %6} (3.013.36)
Pavment of lease liabilities {9.580.51) (11327 35)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (52,001.73) 55,0307
Net increase / (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,518.81 165.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial vear 8.013. 14 7.847.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 11,531.93 8.03.14
The notes from | 10 38 form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R. Batliboi & Associutes LLP for and on behalf of the board of directors of
Firm Registration Mumber : 10104$W / E300004 TVE Supply Chain Solutions Limited
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TVS SUFFPLY CHAIN SOLUTEIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
40 amronses are in Indions rupees (33 lakhs excepi share deata aid vthenvise stated)

Reporting entity

TVS Suppls Chain Solutions Limated (formerly known as TVS Logistics Services Limited) ('the “ompany'y was incorporisted on 6 November
2004 and s in the business of providing suppls chain solution services, The Company has been providing the entire basket of supply chain
managettent services including aftermarker warchouse. in-plant warchouse. gfobal supphy: chain management services. domestic supply chain
management services. material handling services and services relating o installation and commissioning of telecom towers including managed
services for telecom networks and associated supply chain management of the logistics activilics for telecom service providers and OER s,

Busis of preparation
Statement of compliance and going concern assessment

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to comphy with the
requirements preseribed under Section 133 of Companies Act. 2613, tthe “Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time o time.

I view of the matters as mentioned in Note 2 F. the Compans hos assessed the vontinuing tmpact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic on availability of liguidity in its businesses and its abiliey fo repay s obligations both in respeet of borrowings and other liabilities as
and when they are due.

Across the world. lockdown rules have been substantially reduced while in Indfa. there are lemporary cestrictions in movenent of people and
resourees atfecting the business operations. The management is confident that business will resume with robust arowth in the newr Ture, The
Company alse befieves the pandemic is not expected to have any material medium to long term impact to its business prospects.

The Company has made a detailed assessment of its liquidity position and has considered the possible impact of Covid 19 on the financial
projections and commitments using available information, estimates and judgements. In borrawing arrangements. the Compamy has not
defaulted on any of the borrowings as at March 31. 2021 (refer note 253 Based oo the foregoing and necessary stress lests considering vorious
seenarios. management believes that the Company will be able 1o pay ils obligations as and when these become due in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly. the sandalone financial statements have been prepored on a going conceen basis.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 15 June. 2021,
Details of the Company s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Z). which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded-oft 1o the nearest lakhs. unless otherwise indicared.

Basis of measurcment
The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cosi basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement bagis

Certain  financizl ossets and  liabilities (including  Fair vahe

derivative instruments)

Net detined benefil (asset) / liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

Use of esfimates and judgements

In preparing these standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
acceunting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets. Habilitics. income and expenses. Actual results nxay differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis, Revisions to acoounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Current and non=curvent ¢lassification are in line with the requirements of Schedule Hl o the Campanies Act. 2013,

Judgements

Tuformation about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the mest significant eftects on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial starements is included in the following notes:

- Nofe 3 (K) & 5 - Recognition of revenue

- Note 3{D) & (E). 12 and 13 - Property. plant and equipment and intangible asseis — useful lives and inpairment

- Naote 3 (B). 20 & 37 - Allowances for credit losses for trade receivables

= Note 3 (Hy. 30 - Assets and obligations relating to employee benetits

= Note 3 (L) 13C. 31 - Lease accounting

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation ancertainties that have a significant risk of tesulting iy 3 material adjustment in the vear ended 31
March 202¢ ix included in the following notes:

- Note 3 (N} D) & 11 = recagnition of deferred tax assets: availability of future raxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be
used

- Note 30 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions
= Note 37 — impairment of fnancial assels
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Notes to the standalone finaacial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
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b}

Basis of preparation (continued)

E  Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company”™s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both Rnancial and non-financial assets
and liabilities,

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measuremant of fair values. The Company regularh reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. [F third party information. is used 10 measure fair values. then the € ompany assesses the evidence
ubtained from the tird parties to support the cenclusion thar these valuation meer the requitements of Ind AS. including the Teve! in the fair value
hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the mputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets Tor identical assets or liabilitics.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that ace observable for the asset or liabiliy, either directly {i.e.. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices). _

= Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market dafa as far as passible. [F the inputs used to measure
the foir value of an asset or a liability fall inte different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in e xame level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level inpul that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair valye hicrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Further infermation about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

= Note 37 - financial instruments

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic {declared as such by the World Health Organisation on March 11, 20203, had contributed to widespread volatility and
decrease in economic activity across geographies including Indian markets in 2020. Irs impact continues in 2021 across countries and economics.
particularly in emerging markets. This pandemic has led to disruptions to business opeartions, During the year. various governments imposed
lockdowns over a period of time depending on the severity of the outbreak. This has led to an uncertainty in the Company's ability o return to full
capacity in its operations.

A detailed assessment has been carvied out by the Company for each business segment with regards to impact on revenue. costs and other financial
statement metrics Impact due o any extended credit 1eoms. cancelled orders. change in contractual terms, prive concession request. ouerous
abligations etc. were comprehensively evaluated for any risk due to Covid-19 on revenue recognized and collectability thereot. No material impact
has been noted in this impact assessment,

In assessing the recoverability of jts assets including receivables. property. plant and equipment, intangibles. investments. goodwill etc.. the
Company has considered internal and external information up w the date of approval of these financial statements including economic forecasts.,
The Company has performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicatars of tuture economic conditions. the Company
expects to reeover the carrving amount of these assets. While the Company expects to address all challenges from the pandemic, it continues to
menitor these matters and the estimates and judgements used in the preparation of these financial statements. Given the dvnamic and evelving
nature of this pandemic, these estimates are subject to uncertainties and may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic and
consequential impact on the economy.
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
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3 Significant accounting polices

A Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional curreney of the Company. at the exchange rates af the dates of the transactions
or an average rate it the average rate approximates the actual rate ai the date of the ransaction,

Blonetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are ranslated into the functienal curreney at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-mometary assets and liabilities that arc mieasured at fair value in o foreign currency are translated into the functional cutrency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measused based on historical cost in a foreign
cureeney are translated at the exchange rate m the date of the wansaction. Exchange dilferences are tecognised in statement of profit and loss,

B Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement
Tradke receivables and debt securities issued are initialy recognised swhen they are originated. All other finanvial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instroment.

A fimancial osset or financial {ability is initially measured at fair value plus. for an item not at fair vatue through profic and loss (FVTPL,.
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition o issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent

Financial assets

On initial recognition. a financial asset is classified s measured at

= anwntised cost:

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent o their initial recognition. except it and in the period the Company changes its business model tor
managing financial assets.

A Tinancial asset is measured atl amorbised cost i it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business mudel whose objective is to hold assets o collect contractual cash Pows: and

= the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on speeified dates to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

AlL financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as deseribed above are mensured at F VTPL. This includes all derivative finoncial
assets. On initial recognilion, the Company may irrevocably designate 2 financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost a5 91 FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismateh that would otherwise arise.

Fimncinl assets: Subsequent meustrrement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses. including any interest or
dividend income. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amertised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income. foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profir or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measnrement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-
tor- irading. ar it is a derivative or it is designated as such on injtial tecognition. Finangial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses. including any interest expense. are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities ore subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are revognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a fimancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows trom the financial asset expire. or it iransfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substautially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are

transterred or in which the Company neither transters nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of pwnership and does not retain control
ot the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet. but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transterred assets. the transferred assets are not derecopnised.
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3 Significant accounting polices (continued)

B Financial instruments (continued)
iid, Derecognition (continucd}
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a fmancial liability when its conteactual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial Giability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the moditicd terms are substantially
difterent. In this case. a new tinanciat liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair valve. The ditference between the carrving amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are oftset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and enly when. the Company currently
has a legally enforceable right © set off the amounts and it intends either 10 settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settie the fiability
simubtancously,

C  Business combinations

i. Business combinations {other than common control business combinations) on or after 01 January 2011

The Company has elected to apply the relevant Ind AS. viz, [nd AS 103. Business Combirations, retrospectively to those business combinations
that oceurred on or after 01 January 2011, [n accordance with Ind AS 103, the Company accounts for these business combinations using the
acquisition methed when control is transterred to the Company. The consideration transterred for the business combination is generally measured
at fair value as at the date the control is acquired {acquisition date). as are the net identifiable assets acquired. Any goodwill thar arises is tested
annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCT and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase: otherwise the gain is recognised
directly in equity as capital reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

ii. Business combinations prior to 01 January 2011
In respect of such busimess combinatiens. goodwill represents the amount recognised under the Company’s previous accounting framework under
Indian GAAP.

iii. Common control business combinations

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the comirel of the shareholder that controls the Group are
accounted for as if the acquisition had oceurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or. if Tater, at the date that common
control was established: for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and lisbilities acquired are recognised at their carrving amowts

D Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
ltems of property. plant and equipment are measured at ¢ost, which includes capitatised borrowing costs. less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment fosses, if any.

Cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price. including import duties, if anv and non-refundable purchase taxes,
atier deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and remwving the item and restoring the site on which it is Tocated.

If significant pacts of an tem of property, plant and equipmient have ditferent useful lives. then they are accounted for as separate items {major
contponents) of property. plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss en disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised n profit or loss,

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits assoviated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.
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3 Significant accounting pilices (continued)
D Property, plant and equipment (continued}

iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is caleulated on cost of items of property. plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Frechold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate of uscful
life (in vears)

Buildings 30-60

Plant and equipment 13-14

Furniture and fixtures OL-10

Vehicles G8-10

Oftice equipment 5

Computer squipment 03-06

Leasehold improvements *

* Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the useful life of (he asset or the kease period whichever is lower.
Depreciation methed. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical
evaluation and consequent advice. the management belicves that its estimates of useful lives as given above hest represent the period ever which
management expects to use these assets and are ditferent from those prescribed in Schedule 1 of the Act.

Cepreciation on additions (dispusals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {upto) the date on which asset is ready for vse (disposed of),

E  Gouodwill and other intangibles

i. Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised and is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transtereed. the amount of any non-contralling interest in the
acquiree and the Fair value of the Company's previously held equity shares in the acquiree. over the net of the consideration date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed,

ii. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Company in a business combination are initially mensured at cost. Such intangible assets
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accuntulated impainment losses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relares. All
other expenditure is recognised in stotetment of profit and loss as and when incurred.

iv. Amortisation

Goodwill is not amortised and is tested for impairment annually,

Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets Jess their estimated residual values over their estimated usefut lives using the
straight-line method. and is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of intangible assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows;

Asset Management estimate of nseful
life
(im vears)
Brand 03
Customer relationship 07
Computer sofiware 03-10

Amortisation methed, useful lives and residoal values are reviewed at the end of each financial vear and adjusted it appropriate.
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3 Significant accounting polices (continued)

F laventories
Inventeries consist of stores and spare parts and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories s based on The
first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them o their present
location and condition.
Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less (he estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by ttem bagis,

G Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on;
- financial assets measured at amertised cost:

Al gach reporting date. the Company assesses whether financial assets carricd at amortised cost are credi - impaired. A financial asset is “eredif ~
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired inctudes the fallowing observable dara-

- significant financaal difficulty of the barrower or issuer:

= abreach of contract such as a defaul:

- the restructuring of a loan or advanee by the Company on temms that the Company would not consider otherwise:

= itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy oe other financial reorganisation: or

= the disappearance of an active market for a secuniy because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances using simplified approach, at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses -except for the following.
which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securifies that are determined to have tow credit risk at the reperting date: and

- other debt securities and bank batances for which credit risk ¢i.e. the risk of default eecurring over the expected life of the financial mstrument)
has not mcreased significamly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.,

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that resalt from all possible defaull events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. |2-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are pussible within 12
munths after he reporting date (or a shorter period il the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 monthsy. In all coses, the maximont period
considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximuom contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significandly since intial recognition and when estimating expected
credil losses. the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward- looking information,

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full. without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held).

Measurement of evpected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probabititr-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit bosses are measured as the present value of all eash shortgalls tie,
the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects fo
receive).

Presensation of affwance for expected credit losses in the halance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrving ameunt of the assets.

Write-off’

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off feither partiatly or in fully to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient

cash flows to repay the amounts subject 1o the write- off. However. financial assets that are written oft could still be subject 1o enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Compam™s procedures for recovery of omounts due.
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Significant accounting polices {continued)
linpairment {¢ontinued)

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets. other than inventories and deferred tax assets. are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether (here
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists. ther the asset's recoverable amount is estimated, Goudwill is tested for impairment
annually.

For impairment testing. assets that do not generate independent cosh inflows are grouped together into cash-generating wits (CGs), Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are Jargely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGLs,

Goodwill arising trom a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUSs that are expecied o benelit from the sanergies of the
combination,

The recoverable amount of a CGLI (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs o sell, Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flovs, discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects corrent macket assessmenis of the
time value of meney and the risks specific t the CGT) {or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impainment of a corporale asset. recoverable amount is
detenmined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrving amount of an asser or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, [mpairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carpving amount of
any goodwill allocated (o the CGU. and then to reduce the carrving amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or greup of CGUSs) on 2 pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequenthy reversed, In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in
prior periods. the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment less is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset's carrving amount dees not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation or
amortisation_if no impairment loss had been recognised.

For disclosures relating to Goodwill impairment, refer to Note 164 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

Emplovee benefits & Share based pavment arrangements
i. Short-term emplovee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related serviee is provided. A liabiliny is
recognised for the amount expected o be paid .., under short-term cash bonus. if the Company has 2 present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the empleyee. and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benetit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions info a separate entily and will have
no fegal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Employees State Insurance Scheme and an superannuation fund to Life Insurance Corporatien (LIC).
Obligations for contributions te defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the
petiods during which the related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid comtributions are recognised as an asset to the exient that a cash
refund or a reduction sn future payments is available.

iti, Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan othee than a defined contribution plan, The Compamy’s net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current
and prior periods. discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calcuiation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualitied actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calcuiation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited te the present value of cconomic benefits available in the
torm of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan {"the asset ceiling’). I order to calculate the present
value of economic benefits. consideration is given to any mininmum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability. which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any. excluding
interest). are vecognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability fos the period by
applying the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
ligbility. taking into account any changes in the net defined benetit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments.
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of 2 plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (*past service cost”
OF "past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recagnised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains
and Josses on the setilement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement aceurs.
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Significant aceounting polices (continued)

iv. Share based payment arrangements

The share options granted fo emplovees pursuant 1o the company’s Management Incentive Plan (MIP) scheme, are measured at the Eair value of
the optivns at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting
period on a straight line basis. The amownt recognised as expense n gach year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a
grant lapscs after the vesting perivd. the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respeet of such grant is transfecred to the general reserve
within equity,

Provisions {other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if- as a result of a past event. the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably.
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to sertle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 1ime volue of monev and the risks specific fo the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as tinpnee cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for,

Contiagent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for all;

- possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be contirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurtence of one or more
uncertain luture events not wholly within the contral of the Company for)

- present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an cutfllow of resources embodying economic berefits will be required
to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

In respect of contingent assets for which mflow of economic benefils are probable. the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the
contingent assets al the end of the year. and. where practicable. an estimate of their financial effect.

Revenue
i. Rendering of services

Revenue fromt contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred 1o the customet at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for (hose services. Such revenue is recognised upon the Company’s
performance of its contractual obligations and on satisfying alf the following conditions:

(1) Parties 1o the contract have approved the contract and undertaken to perform theie respective obligations:

(2) Such contract bas specified the respective rights and obligations of the parties in connection with the transter of goods or rendering ol services
(hereinatter the ~Transfer™);

(3) Such contract centaing specitic payment terms in relation to the Transfer.

{4) Such comiract has a commercial nature. namely. it will change the risk. time distribution or amount of the Company”s future cosh flow:

(5) The Company is likely 1o recover the consideration it is entithed to for the Transfer to customers.

Performance Obligations:

4) Supply chain management

The Company™s supply chain management segment generates revenue from services o its customers such as providing freight and other
transportation services, warehousing, packaging. kitting. reverse logistics and inventory management conteacts ranging from a few months o a
few vears, Certain accessorial services inay be provided to customers under their transportalion contracts. such as unloading and other incidental
services. The Company’s pertormance obligations are satistied over time as custamers simulianeously receive and consume the benefits of the
Company's services. The contracts contain a single performance obligation. as the distinct services provided remain substantially the same over
time and possess the same pattern of ransfer. The transactson price is based on the consideration specified in the contract with the customer and
contains fixed and variable consideration. [n general. the fixed component of » coniroct represents amwounts for facilie and equipment costs
incwrred to sabisfy the performance obligation and is recognized over the term of the contract.

I the case of wransportation servives. performance obligation is created when a customer under a transportation contract submits a shipment note
tor the transport of goods from origin to destination. These performance obligations are satistied over the period as the shipments move from
origin to destination and revenue is recognized proportivnally as a shipment moves and the related costs are recognized as incurred. Performance
obhgations are short-term. with transit days less than ene week. Generally, customers are billed either upon shipmeut of the freight or en a monthlv
basis, and remit payment according to approved payment terms. The Company recognizes revenue on a net basis when the Company does not
control the specific services.
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3 Significant accounting policies (vontinued)

b} Telecommunication:

Telecommunication  comtract revenue arises from  construction/ erection of towers for some of the Compam™s customers in the
Telecommunications segment. These towers are constructed based on specifically negotiated contracts with customers by outsourcing the activities
to sub-contractors.

Transaction prive includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work. claims and incentive paviments. o the
extent that it is probable that they will resull in revenue and can be measured reliably. IF the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably.
contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss over the perivd in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract, The stage of completion is
assessed by reference to surveys of work performed (output method). Otherwise. confract revenue is recognised only [o the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likeh to be recoverable.

Contract costs are recognised as expenses as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity. An expected [oss on a contract
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

¢) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of traded goods including telecommiunication goods is recognised when the control of the same is transferred to the custoner.
generally on delivery of the goods and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it is entitied for the exchanged
oods,

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms but nol billed. Revenue is measured at fair valug of
the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts. volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and services tax. ete. Accumulated expericnee is used to estimate the provision for such disceunts and sebates. Revenue
is anly recognised to the exieat that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not ocear.

Variable consideration:

Generally, the Company’s contracts contain provisions for adjustments o pricing based on achieving agreed-upon performance metries. changes
in volumes, services and market conditions, Revenue refating to these pricing adjustments is estimated and included in the consideration if it is
probable that a significant revenue reversal will not oceur in the future. The estimate of variable consideration is determined either by the expected
value or most likely amwunt method and factors in current, past and forecasted experience with the customer. Customers are billed based on terms
specified in the revenue contract and remit pavment according to approved paviment terms

Contract balances:

a} Contract assets:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goads or services transferred to the customer., If the Company performs by
wansferring goods or services to a custemer before the customer pays consideration ot before povment is due. a coniract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that i conditional,

by Contract liabilities:
A contract liability is the obligation fo transter goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or setvices to the customer. a
conteact Jiability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.
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3 Significant accounting polices (continued)

L Leases
Company as lessee
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. That is. il the contract convevs the sight to control the use
of an identificd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases. except tor short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recoenises lease liabilities to make lease paxveents and right-oft
use assels representing the right to use the underdying assets.
{i} Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-af-uze assets at the commencement date of the Jease (i.¢.. the date the underlying asset is available for use). Righi-
of-use assets are measured at cost. less any sceumulated depreciation and impairment Josses. and adjusted for any remeasurement ol lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred. and lease pavments macde
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-tine basis over the lease
fenm.

If" ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option.
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful liti of the asset. The right-of-use assets are subject to impairement.

{iiy Lease liabilities

At the commenvement date of the lease. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments o be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease inventives regeivable. vanable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guaraniees. The lease payments alse
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cerain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease. if the Jease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised s expenses (uniess they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
otcurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
aceretion of interest and reduced for the fease pavments made. In addition. the carrving amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments fe.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used fo determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlving asset. The Company’s lease
Liabilities are included in [nterest-bearing loans and bosrowings. {see note 23)

(i) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on actwal basis over the lease term.

(iv) Date of commencement of leases acquired under busintess combinations

The Company aweasures the lease liability ot the present value of the remaining lease payments as at the acquisition date as if the acguired lease
were a new lease as at that date. The Right-of-use asset is measured at the same amount as the lease liability plus or minus any asset or liability
previously recognised in the original business combination accounting for the favourable or unfavourable lease terms.

(¥) Key matters involving significant judgement

(o) Deterniining the lease term of contracts witl termination options — Company as lussee

As per Ind AS 116, termination options are to be considered in derermining the non-cancellable period. The peried vovered by the termination
option is included if the lessee is not reasonably certain to exarcise the option. Lease term is the non-cancellable periad of a lease. together with
any optional periods that the lesses is reasonably certain o use. The non-cancellable period of a lzase is any period during which the lessee cannot
terminate the contract. Consequently, any non-cancellable period in effect sets a minimum lease term. This is usually referred as “Tock-in™ period
in the lease contract. Generally. the lease contracts are cancellable once the “lock=in" period is over. and. in most cases. the teraxination option is
mutually available with minimum notice petiod requirements under the contract.

In general. since Company has made significant investments in each of the warehouse in the form of leaschold improvenents. racking equipment
ete. and the termination would lead to additional expenses {losses) for dismantling and would ead to business distuption. the managemeat in
general has concluded that there is economic disincentive for the Company o discontinue / terminate any arrangement. Accordingly. applyving
Para B34 of Ind AS L16. except for specific cases. the Company concludes that non-cancellable period generally includes the lease period covered
by the option te terminate.

(B} Determining the lease term of contracts with renewdl options — Company as lessee

As per Ind AS 116, the period covered by extension option is included if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option,

As reasonable certainty is a bigh thireshold. the Company helieves in most leases where the lease term is greater than 3 years assuming reasonable
ceriainty on lease commencement date may not be sppropriate and must be evaluated on a case to case basis, considering factors such as
investment in the property. renewul lease rates, specific modifications to property t meet customer requirements. importance of the location and
impact on overall business disruption ete.
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3 Significant acconnting polices (continued)

M Recognitivn of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company”'s right 1o receive payment is established.
[nferest meome or expense is recognised using the effective interest method
The “eftective interest rate” is the rate tha exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected Life of the financial
instrument to:
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset: or
- the amortised cost of the finangial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense. the effeetive interest rate is applied 1o the gross carrving amount of the asset {when the asset is ot
credit-impaired} or to the amortised cost of the liability. However. for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition. inferest mcome is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate 1 (he amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired. then the caleulation of interest meome reverts 1o the gross basis,

N Income tax

Incomte tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination or (o an itens recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expeeted tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the vear and any adjustment to the tax pavable o
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the Ly amount expected to be paid or received after
congidering the uncertainty. it anv_ related to income taxes. [1 is measured using tax rafes (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recogmsed amounts, and it is
intended (o realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultancausly,

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary ditferences between the carrving amounts of assets and labilities for Gnancial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Delerred tax is also recognised in respect of carvied forward tax losses and fax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of (the ransaction:

- lemperary differences related to investments in subsidiaries. associates and joint arrangements to the excent that the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 15 probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- laxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

Tax reatment of an item is considered as uncertain when there is uncertainty whether the relevant taxation authority will aceept the tax treattent
of that item or not.

[F there is uncertainty over fax treatment of an iem:

1. An entity sheuld determine an approach or method that predicts the resolution of the uneertainty. Based on the approach. the entity shall
determine whether to consider cach uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain fax treatments,

2. [t shall assess whether it is probable that the taxation authority will aceept the uncertain tax treatment. assumiag that the suthority has

full right to examine the treatment and has full knowledge of all related information.

3.1t it is probable that the taxation authority will accept the tax treatment. there will be no impact on the amount of taxable profits/losses. tax
bases. unused tax losses/credits and tox rates. [n viceversa case. the entity shall show the eftect of the uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment
on amount of related aforesaid ftems by using cither the most likely outcome or the expected outcome of the uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future txable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deterred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probablef
n¢ longer probable respectively that fhe related tax benefic will be realised.

Defierred tax is measured af the tax rates thar are expected 1o apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liabiliny is settled. based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

The mensurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, st the reporting
dare. 1o recover or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabitities.

Deferred 1ax assets and fiobilities are offset it there is a legally enforceable right fo offset current tax liabilities and assets. and they relate to income
taxes tevied by the same tax authority on the ssme taxable entity. or on different tax entitics, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.
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Sipnificant accounting polices (continued)
Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to forsign curreney borrowings (o the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustmen 1o interest ¢osts) incurred in conngetion with the borrpwing of funds, Borrowing costs directly atiributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period ol time to get ready for their intended use are vapitalised as part
ot the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense i the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaient comprise af ¢axl on hand and at banks including shori-term deposits with an original mal urity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignitiant risk of changes in value. Other bank deposits which are not in the nature of cash and cash cquivalents with a
maturity period of more than ¢three months are classified as other bank balances,

Earnings per share

Basic eaming per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the equiry holders of the Company by the weighied average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamings per share are computed by d ividing the net profit attributable 1o the equity
helders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of (ransactions of a non cash nature and any
deterrals or accrvals of past or future cash receipts or pavments. The cash fows from regular cevenue generaling. financing and investing activities
of the Company are segregated.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Amendments to lnd AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification aceounting for rent concessions arising as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemiic. As a practical expedient, 3 lessee may elect not fo assess whether a Covid-19 related rent
coneession from a lessor is a lease modification, A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the
Covid-19 related rem convession. the some way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the changes were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the | April 2020 [n case. a lessee has not vel approved the
financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment. then the same may be applied for annual reporting pertods beginiting on or
after the [ April 2019, This amendment had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.
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4 Operating segment

[n accordance with nd AS 108 "Operating Segments™, segment information has been given in the consalidared Fnancial statements of TVS Supply Chain
Solutions Limited and therelore no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these standalone financial statements

5 Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Sale of products 991 13.136.44
Sale of services
Income from supply chain management services I 1131787 1.25.683.57
Inconte frome telecom services 12511.25 [0.532043
1,23,829.12 1.36,204.00
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 35746 39.63
357.46 59.65
1.24,196.4% 149 40009
6 Other income Year ended Year endedd
31 March 202t 31 March 2020
Interest income under the eftective nerest methad on.
Cash and vash equivalents 41.68 11383
Security deposits canvied at amortised cost 28813 241.71
Investments in debeatures carcied at antortised cost EN ]| 382
Loans to subsidiaries 362.09 1.567 11
Amortisation of financial guarantee liability 1.632.61 1.744.48
Income from finance lease 193 853 204
Interest mcome on income tax refund 30524 21086
Dividend income from subsidiaries g 102,60
Exchange difference gain net 2478.29 2.226.36
Provision no longer required written back - 64131
Gain on termination of lease 480.34 91446
Business development and management services 2.890.03 3.602.03
Otler non operating income L216.44 1.022.84
10,252,335 12,529.05
7 Ewmployee benefits expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Salories, wages and bonus* 3229587 3294601
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 30 260610 2.778.03
Share based payment vosts** 1.680.40 64143
Expenses related to post-cmployment defined benetit plans (refer note 39) 408.92 453,33
Expenses refated to compensated absences 257.03 276,97
Staft welfare expenses 2.560.27 2.909.19
39.827.59 40,004.96
*Net of reimbursement of T 3484 (31 March 2020, T Nil) in respect of corporate payroll costs recharged to Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited.
FENetof T 223,90 lokhs (31 March 2020: 2223.91 lakhs) in respect of share options issued to the company’s subsidiaries.
#  Finance costs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest expenses 3.281.76 498537
Fimange cost of fimance lease obligations 232406 236447
Other borrowing costs 104.23 22213

£.910.07 7.571.97
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9 Depreciation and amortisation expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 298409 2.307.88
Amoriisation of righteofeuse assets 824,00 288570
Amortisation of intangible assets 32004 33443
11.548.22 11,926.03
10 Other expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Freight charges 40.339.60 19,295 39
Sub-contracting costs* 1041141 9.793.61
Staff transportation charges 143520 1.390.45
Material handling charges 977.83 Q0033
Casual labour charges 13,03-4.90 13.077.77
Consumption of stores and spares 132429 F08.05
Power and fuel 637.01 667.39
Rent 1.606.84 1.594.29
Rates and taxes 45722 EXr R B
Insurance 268 41 241.81
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and mzchinery 61 83 75.92
Buildings 303.37 246.72
Others 1.488.58 1.693.57
Advertisement and business promotion 118.61 13324
Travelling and vonveyance 32971 1.232.81
Communication costs 37794 415.01
Printing and stationery 498,57 3gl.66
Facloring charges 193.85 40335
Bank charges 160.33 11643
Legal and professional fees 3.801.34 3.0137.0
Security expenses 2.375.68 234758
Payment to auditors refer nate (a} below} 186.83 160.25
Bad debts written off ¢net of adjustment against provision for doubtiul debts T {0480 (31 March 2020: 2 R2.96 LR 14]
269077 1
Provision for doubtiul debits/advances o7t 68 200538
Provision for doubtiul security deposiis 2500 -
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note (b) below) 8.95 46.95
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment, net 82.37 1645
Loss on financial instruments measured ot air value through P&L 691.79 1.200.76
Miscellaneous expenses 1.806.43 449.28
86.097.01 92,778.06
* Represents cost of sub-contracting in respect of services relating to installation and commissioning of telecom towers.
1 Other expenses (continued)
{a} Details of pavment to aoditors Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

As axditor

Audit of standalone financial statements 3893 37.00
Audit of consolidated financiat statements 47.90 3800
Audil of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes™ 69.00 60.00
Tax audit 2.00 2.00
Centification fees 14.00 725
Other audit services (including certifications etc.} 15.00 -
Re-imbursemen of expenses - 1.00
I other capacities
Other services - 13,00
186.85 160,25
* Audit fee of subsidiaries for consolidation purposes includes # 2.3 lakhs relating to earlier vears
thy  Corporate social responsibility expendirure Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amount required to be spent as per section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 792 4268
Amount spent during e year on
{#) Construction/acquisition of an asset - -
(31} On purpose other than ¢i) above on
a) Remt 893 46.93
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11 Income tax expense

A, Amonnts recognised in profit or loss Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current tax (a)

Prior vear tax 243 -
2.43 -
Dreferred tax (b)
Attributable to erigination and reversal of temporary ditterences {308 79) {388 77)
(#08,79) (588.77)
Tax expense {a+h) T&I]G.&ﬁl (588.77)
B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Before tax Tax (expense) / Net oF tax Before tax Tax texpense} / Net of tax
henefit benefit
Remeasurement o defined benefit Hability £ (asset) 109.25 (38.18) 707 187.06 (63.37) 121 .69
L09.25 (38.18) T.07 157.06 (65.37) 121.69
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 3 March 2020
Profit before tax (294413 (2172.8%)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 34.94% 1312544 3d.61% (739.3(h
Effects of
Permanent disallowanges -1% 117.2% -1% 2279
Incarng pot subject 1o tax -3% 12 -16% 34955
Tax incentives 0% - 7% (149.68)
Current year loss on which DTA was not recognised -11% L0783 % -
Changes in estimate related 1o prior vears -11% 969,76 % -
Others 0% [ER ) 20, (32.13)

Effective tax rate 9% 1306.36) 27% (388.77)
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11 Income tax expense {continued)

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

a. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following :

Deferred tax assets (nct)

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Deferved tax asset

Emplovee benelits 210923 143810
Provision lor diminution in financial assets, nei 2106 86 231646
Tax ncentives l.02 306
Carvied forward tax losses 9333 4355
Driprecianon and amertisation 1.002.87 5115
Right of use asset and lease liability 1,084, 44 1065 04
Net Deferred tax asset 6,399.97 5.629.36

b. Movement in deferred tax assets

Recognised in - Balance as at 31

Balance as at Recognisedin - Recognised in  Balance asat 31 Recognised in
31 March 20§19 Profit & Loss o March 2020 Profit & Loss o0 March 2021
Enyplovee benefits 897 43 626 (=1 {63 37} 1458 1 659.3] {3818 209,23
Provision for diminution in fimancial as: 253248 1236,02) - 231640 (209 .61 - 210636
Tux incentives 310 {2 04) - 306 {20 - 1.02
Carried forward tax losses 893 33 - - 9535 - - 9335
Depreciation and amarmisation 51455 236 60 - 75145 5172 [.Qu2 87
Right of use asset and lease liability 1.040 83 (35.31} - 1,003 .04 7940 - 1084 44
Net Deferved tax asset 5,105.96 588.77 (65.37) 5,629.36 408,79 {38.18) 6,399.97

E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items. because it s not probable that Tuture taxable prafit wili be avalable against which the

company can use Lhe benelits therefrom:

31 March 2021 31 Murch 2020
Particulars e is ' is
articulars Gross amount Unrecognised Gross amount U'nrecognised
tax effect tax effect |
Tax losses 360810 {.260.82 72392 23297
|Unabsorbed depreciation 131 29 45 88 151,29 45 8%

F. Tax losses carried forward

31 March 2021

Expiry date

| 31 March 2020

Expiry date

Expiry within 3-10 vears F2392 | AL 72392 | 20282429
Expiry within 5-10 vzars 288419 | 229-2030 - -
Nuver expire 131.29 131.29

3.739.39 835.21 |
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TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
A enonnts are in findang rapees (33 fakiis except shore dota ond othenrise stated)

L3A

138

Goodwill
Reconciliation of carrying amount
Goodwill Tatal

Gross carrving amount
Balance a1 (1 April 2019 5.287.90 5287 00
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 5,287.90 5,287.9¢
Balance at (31 April 2020 5.287.90 3.287.90
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 5,287.90 5,287.90
Accumulated impairment loss
Balance at G Apeil 2019 - -
Impairment for the vear - -
Dispusals - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 - -
Balance as at 01 April 2020 - -
Impairment fer the vear - -
Disposals - -
Balance at 31 March 2021 - -
Carryving amounts (net)
At 31 Mavch 2020 $,287.90 528794
At 31 March 2021 5,287.90 5,287.9%0
Other intangible assets
Reconciliation of carrying amount

Customer Brand Computer Taotal

relationship software

Gross earrying amount
Balance at G1 April 2019 609.33 676.63 1.575.66 2.861.64
Additions - - 19938 199,58
Disposals/retirement - - {1.49) {149
Balance at 31 March 2020 609.35 676.63 1,773.758 3,059.73
Balance at 01 Agril 2020 609.33 676.63 L.773.75 3.039.73
Additions - - 103.78 105.78
Disposals/retirement - - 043} .43
Balance at 31 March 2021 §09.33 676.63 1.879.10 3,165.08
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
Balance as at 01 April 2019 135.02 459.60 1161.67 1.776.29
Amortisation fot the year 87.05 153.20 294.20 53443
Disposals/retirement - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2020 242.07 612.80 1.455.87 2,310.74
Balance as at 01 April 2020 242.07 612.80 1.4535.87 2.310.74
Amortisation for the year 87.05 63.83 169.16 320.04
Disposals/retirement - - {(25) {025}
Balance at 31 March 2021 329.12 676.63 1.624.78 2,630.53
Carrving amounts (net)
At 31 March 2020 367.28 63.83 317.88 748.99
At 31 March 2021 280.23 - 254.32 534.55




TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
A amonnts ave in Indient rupees (34 lokhs except share dotes and otherise stated)

13C  Right of usc assets

a

The leuse of buildings primarily consists of warchouses and office premises taken on lease for more than 12 months.

b Set out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised and the movements during the period

Building Furniture and Total
fixtures

Net carrving amount
Balance as at 315t March 2019 19.769.20 16.43 19.786.03
Additions 18.028.53 - 18.028.53
Reversals ¢less) 13.789.00) - {3.749.04h
Amortisation ffess) {8.877.58) (6.12) (8.883.70)
Balance as at 315t March 2020 2313115 071 23141 86
Additions 990367 - 9903 67
Reversals fless) {314 29 1638} (315067
Amortisation flesss 8.239.76} 4.33} {8.244.09}
Bulance us ar 31st March 2021 2365077 .00 2365077

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Jease liabilities and the movement during the

period

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Additions

Aceretion of interest

Payments

Reversals

Balance at the end of the year
Current

MNon - Current

The following are recongnised in the statement of profit and loss
Amertisation expenses of right of use assets

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to short term leases

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

2701015 22.224.66
9,465 20 1745283
2.524.06 2.364.47

(9.586.51) (10.327.35)

(3.631.01) (4.703 46)

25.782.89 27.011.13
7.157 54 6.249.30

18.625.35 20.761 85

31 March 2021

31 March 2020 -

224409 8.883.70
2.324.06 236447
1.606.84 1.382.27
12.374.99 1263044




TVESUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standulone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
L et wore 11 Jpfrem ripoes (3) hakii cxecpd stoare detar aid etheesise dotedy

14 Investments
A Non-carrent investments 31 March 2021 [ARTIpe

Unquoted investments in equity instruments
Investments in subsidiaries
TVS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limited {Formerly known as TVE Dynamue Global Freight Services Lumied) 7.264.14 6.5300 00

1080000 ¢ 31 March 2026 : 1.019.999) equity shares ol € 10 each fully
paid up
TVS SCS (Siam} Limited {Formerh: known as TVS Logistics S1AM Limitedy, Thailand 188 43 18R.45
L0060 {31 March 2028, 100.000) acdinary shares of 100 Babt cach
fulls paid up

TVE America Inc. iy (4 S
4900 €31 March 2420 490 shares of no par value
TVS Logistics lnvestment UK Limiled 5060544 506644

6,193,698 131 March 2020 : 6.195.69%) ordinan shares of | GBP euch
tully paid up
TVS Logistics Investments USA Inc, 3.666,.60 34666 60
61510431 March 2020 61.510) shares of no par value
FLEXCL Packaging (India) Limited 155308 936.31
G84.K22 (31 March 2020 : 526,416} equity shares of T 10 each fully
pand up
SPC Intemational (Indiay Private Limited 36149 36149
SLOU0 31 March 2020 31.600) equity shares of Z 180 each fully paid
up
TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limted 1.40 1 00
LEAGO 31 March 2020 ¢ 10.000) aguity shares of T 10 cach Fully paid
up
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pie. Ltd. {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limted;. 18.260 36 18.2600. 36
Singapore
34,840,324 (31 March 2020 . 34 849.324) equity shares of SGD | each
fully paid up

TVE Tovotn Tsushe Supply Chain Selutions Limited 124440 1 241 (i1

12000031 March 2020 ; 1,200.000) equity shares of 2 11 each fully paid up
White Data Systems India Pyt Lad 421984 421984
2107810431 March 2020 21.07.810) equity shares of T 183 each fully
paid up -

40.991.34 39.910.53

Investments in joint ventures
TV Industnal & Logistics Packs Private Limited * 137500 137500

F300,000 (31 March 2020 ; 3,500,000 equity shares of 2 10 each Fully

paid up

1.375.00 1.375,00

Unquoted investment in prefercnce shares carried at amortived cost

Cargawings Logistics Limited 2.500.(H) 25K
2300000031 March 2020 © 23 D0, redeemable preference shares
{*"R.PS"y of T 10 each tully paid up

12,5010 2504100
Unquoted imvestment in body corporate at fair value
Tamil nadu Apex Skill Development Centre For Logistics .00 -
200,000 (31 March 2020 : Nil ) equity shares of T 19 each fuily paid uwp

20.00 -

Unquoted investment in dehentures carried at amortised cost

Prasanna Purple Mobility Selutions Private Limited®**
{31 Maorch 2020: 15,80 Sevies 1 NCD- 0 1% Unsecured Nen- - 134 30
Canvertible Debentuies of T 10040 each

Prasanna Purple Mobilin: Solutions Private Limited***
(31 March 2020: 144907 Series H NCD. 4.1% Unsecured Non- - 147 21
Comvertille Debentures of T 1000 cach




TVESUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
£V conennings cre ot Indien rupees (30 Jakfs cxeept steare det i othervise stoted)

4
A

[EXY

Tnvestments {continuedy
Non-current investments (continned)

Provision for decline in fair vadue of investments
Unquoted investments in cguity instruments/ preference shares

TVS Amerca Inc. 190 04 (SR
Cargowmgs Logistics Limited 12.500.00; (23003 ()
12,590.04) (259004}
Tatal non-current investments 4229640 41, 457.00
Aggregale amount of unquated investments 4488644 HO4704
Aggregale amount of impairment in the value of investments 2.590.04 2.590.04

# The Company and TVS Supply Chain Solations Pre. Lid. (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited . Singapare (“TVS GFS”) are parl
ol an ongoing hrigation with certain munonity sharehollers of TVS GFS. the outcome of which is unlikely to impact the camying valoe of e investment. Alse
refer nate 37iii} of the cansolidated Hpancial statements of the company.

* During the year. the Company’s investment in TVS Industisl & Logistes Park Pyi. Limited diluted from 30°6 ta 31.2% on account of pricary mvestment by
€DC Uroup PLC in the form of Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares aud Compulsorily Convertible Debentures [n the consolidated financial statements
of the company. this deemed disposal las been accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 28 and the consequent zain of T 6,490 lakhs has been disclosed in the
conselidated financial statements as an exeeptional item (refer note 17 of the consolidated Financial slaiments of the COMpany)

Current investments 3 March 2021 31 March 2020

Unquoted investment in debentures carried xt amortised cost

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solutions Private Limited***
25400 ¢3) March 2020: 9.600) Series 1 NCD. 0. 1% Unsecurad Non- 25397 G Ol
Convertible Debentures of € 1000 cach

Prasanna Purple Mebility Solutions Privale Limited*+*
30.690031 March 20207 16,200} Series 11 NCD. §.1% Unsecured Non- 3M.63 162 .00
Convertible Debentures of T 1000 each

Prasanna Purple Mobility Solotions Prnvate Linsited

80,000 (3 March 202(: 80.000) Optionally Convertible Debestures of S0 i) B00.00
21000 zach .
Total carrent investments 135562 1,058.00
Aggregate ameunt of unquoted invesiments 1,355,627 105800
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of invesiments - -

#4% Series | NCD. O 175 Unsecwred Non-Convertible Debentures and Series [ NCD, 0.1% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures carries Inlerest at 0. 190 p.a
and redeemable as stated below

Series [ NCD Amount  Series N NCD Amount
31 July 2019 textended till September 2021 13500 30 November 2619 {extended till September 20215 99.90
31 Tuly 2020 textended till September 2021} 96.00 3D November 2020 {extended till Seplember 2021 162.00
31 Tuly 2621 23.00 30 November 2021 45.00

. 254.00 306,90

“77 The Optionally Convertible Debentures ¢"OCD™ which carvies minimum 20% IRR. is either redeemable or convertible into equity shares of Prasanna Purple
hdabiliry Sulutions Private Limited as per the terms and conditions set out in the sharelialder's agreement between TVS Commitation Solutions Limited and
Prasanna Purple Mobility Selulions Private Limited. The redemption conversion shall be done in two vears from ¢1 March 2016 (date of issuance). The
redemption/conversion has been extended till Seprember 2021,

Assets held for sale 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investment in equity instruments

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited 402143 402643

2.210.000 {31 March 2027 . 2.210.01%) equity shares of 2 10 each fully poid up

Less. Provision for decline in fair value of investnenis 1402143} (4.021.43)

Unguoted investment in preference shares carvied at amortised cost

Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited 2.200.52 220652
1.084.900 131 March 2020: 1.084.000) 0 0001° o cumulative. redeemable. non-convertible. pariicipating preference

shares of T 10 each**

Less. Provision for decline in Fair value of investments 12.200.32) (2. 2{0.352)

The sompany classitied its investment in Dorve India Entecprise Solutions Limited a5 assets held for sake and measured the same in accordance with Ind AS 103
"Non Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations™ at lower of its canyving amount and fair value less cost to sell. The company expects to complete
the sale in financial year 2021-22.

**The preference shares are cumulative, redeemable. non-convertible. participating preference shares Cpreference shares’). The preference shares shall cany a
preterential vight to dividends over the equity Shares. The prefevence shares shall cary a fixed rare of preferenual dividend at the rate of 0.0001%0 per annum.
The prefergnce shares shall be redeemed en demand by the sharcholder in accordance with applicable provisions oi the Companizs Act, 2013 within a maximuns
period of 20 vears fram the date of allotment of the preference shares af issue price of 203 per share.




TYS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone fimanciz| statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
1A st otfe i Didinn vapees (33 bables except sture duta ond otfiorocsse stetod)

15 Leans 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Loans to related partics

Umsecured. considered good ERTEE -1 H.506.27
IBI8RS 4459627

Luoans to others

Unsecured. congidered doubitul 10k 63 1t a3

Provision tor doubeful leans to others 1L00d.63) (1.0 63
3.518.88 44.596,27

16 Deposits and other receivables

Non-current Current N
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2021 31 Mareh 2620
Sceurity deposits
Unsecured. considered good 2373 1.973.77 P03 74 1.584.18
Unsecured. considared doubtiul - - 12192 9553
Provisien for doubsliel sacority deposils - - {12193, 196 92)
257570 1.973.77 903.74 1.584.18
Security deposit Trom related
parties
Unsecured. considered good 464 83 336.11 - 145,94
464.83 336.11 - 14594
Chher reccivables
Advances ro emplovees 1.333.30 39198
Finunce lease receivables (refer note 123 B58.97 1,192 20 30353 A7
Recevable from subsidiaries frefer nele 34) 3.981.11 - 15,4248 9 13006359
Recenvable triom others
Considered doubiful - - 180074 186074
Provision for doubiful receivables - - (IS0 74y LI80.T4
434008 1,192.20 17.264.77 13,731,014
7.880.61 1,502.08 14,168.51 15.461.26
17  Other financial assets Non-current Current
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Advances recoverabde in cash or kingd
{Jnsecured. considered good - . .35 63
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 1.02 1.93
Deposits with banks with more than 12 months matarity - 130 - -
Interest accrued on investinents 605 4 403 44 - -
Unbilted revenus - - 12702 45 633854
605,44 615.94 12,723.83 £.362.12

For ether financial assets secured against borrowings, see nota 235,




TVYSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITER
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
£Al wemonts e o Bdins vipees (4 fkln oxeept sturee dhate amd ofhornvise sigted)

20

2t

22

23

Other no=¢urrent assets

Capital advances

Unsecured considered good
Unsecured considered doubttul
Pravisian fer ungecured doubtiul

Advance for supply of goods and services
Unsecured considered wood

Others
Prepand expenses

inventories

Stores and spares

For inventories secured against boowings, see note 25
Trade receivables

Unsecured. considered rood

Credit impaired

Less: Allowanee for expected credit loss
Less: Allowance for ciedit risk

Mon=currznt
Currem

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

94 68 561.98
106 40
(.1165) {42
9468 561.98
140,00 155 00
140,00 155.00
1458 -
14358 -
24926 716.98

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

176,03

13051

176.03

130.51

31 Muarch 2021

31 March 2020

29.45(.80 39582 86
1.504.82 393314
(490482, (3.933.14)
2945180 39.582.86
63236 -
2881934 30.582 86

The Compam’s exposire ko credit and eurrency risks. and loss allowances related 10 trade receivables are diselosed in note 37,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balange wath bunks
O current avcounts
Deposits with otiginal maturity of less than three months

Other bank balances

Deposits with original malurity of maore than three months less than 12 months

(her current assets

Advance related to supply of zoods and services to parties other than
related parties
Unsecured considersd zood

Unsecuved considered doubiiul
Provision fur doubttul advances

Advance for supply of goods and services to related parties
Unsecured. considered good

Other current assets

Frepaid expenses

Balances with povermment authorities
Others

For other current assets seenred againss borrowings, se¢ noe 25

31 March 202}

31 March 2020

L1664 10,43
1041143 7.492.91
109.81 10980
10,531.95 8.013.14

1t March 2021

31 March 2020

2mn.m

249,44t

270.01

219.40

31 dlarch 2021

31 March 2020

3.276.60 1393 41
1.710.60 1.710.46
{1.710.60) (171046
3.276.60 1.593.41

136,46 49.67
136.46 49.67
269 35 33503
2,706 .81 216723
488 433
2,981.24 2,707.14
65.394.30 4.350.22




TVESUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
LA amionntis cive v Indlvar apees (33 dakfise cxcept stane detor amf otheriose stated)

2474 Share capital

Authorised share capital 31 March 2021 3t March 2020
343000003 1 March 2020: 34800006 equity shares of 2 10 each 343000 380,00
L2000 (3T March 2020: 1. 200.000) preference shares of Z 10 cach 12000 120,060
1180000131 March 2020: Nily preference shares of Z 100 sach 1,100.00 1160 00
Issued

Lty shuires

13810401 €31 March 2020: 13,810,401 equity shares of 2 19 each at par 138004 1.381.04
5.066.800 (31 March 2026 5.066.80) equity shases of T 10 each at a premium of Z [83.72 per share 30668 56,68
3223194431 March 2020: 3,223, 194y equity shares of 2 10 each at a premium of % |85 per share 32232 3232
275800 (31 March 2020: 275 800) equity shares of Z 10 cach at a premnum o € 63 per share 2758 2758
+.456.816 131 March 2020: 4.456.816) equity shares of T 10 each at a premium of 2 424.92 pet share 44568 145,68
1.798.607 431 harch 2020 1,79%.607) equity shares of 210 cach a1 a premium of T 685 per share 179 36 179.86
3163315431 March 2020 ; 3.163.513) equity shares of Z10 each at a preminm of 7 940 per share 31633 316.33
95000 (31 March 2020 : 93.000) equity shares ef 210 ¢ach at a premium of T 940 per share 950 9.50
Total issned eapital Lig2.01 3.189,01

Called, Subseribed and Paid up
Fonitv shorrcs

31.730.133 (31 March 202 3).730.133) equity shares of 2 10 gach ERVAR] 317301
Add: Ameunt paid up on 160.600 431 March 2026 160.000) equity shares forteited at 2 2 320 320
each

317621 317821

# 15351 (31 March 2020: 15,351 0.0001% cumuiative. redeemable, non-convertible, partivipating preference shares have been classified as 2 financial lability
(sew nots 254

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at end of the reporting period

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Nos Tin lakbs Nos Zin lakhs
Equity shares
At the beginning of the vear 30730133 317621 31635133 3lon71
Shares issusd during the vear - . G5.000 .50
Qutstanding at the end of the year 3,17,30,133 307621 317.30,133 3.176.21

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equaty shares having face value of 2 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vole per share. The C ompany
declares and pays dividend in [ndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

Annual General Meeting,

¢. Terms/rights sttached to preference shares

The preference shares shall be cumulative. redeeimable. non-convertible. participatitg preterence shares ( "mreference shares’). The preference shares shall cany a
preferential right to dividends over the Equity Shares. The preference shares shall cary a fixed rate of preferential dividend at the rate of 0.0001%5 per annum. In
addition to the fixed rate of dividend. the preference shareholders shall. at their discretion. be entitted 10 additional preferential dividend and carry a preferential
right to dividends over the equity shares . The preference shares shall be redeemed. from fime 1o time as may be requited by the preference shaveholilers at Face
value plus the redemption premiom pavable thereon no Tater than 20 years tiom the date of allotment or longer period as may be prescribed by law,

The holder of preference shares have a nght to vote only on resolutions placed betore the cempany which directly affect the righis attached 1o preference shares
and. any resolution for the winding wp of the company or for the repayment or reduetion of iz equity or preference share capital and voting right on a poll shall be
in proportion to the share in the paid-up preference share capital of the company. On winding up er repayment of capital. the preterence shareholders shall camy a
preterential right of repayment.




TYSSUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financisl statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
£ N cimbotiets e i foudieny sigpees (3 Lok exvopt shore detar and seenvise st

240 Share capital {continucd)

4B

4. Details of sharchalders holding more than 3% shares of a class of shares in the company

31 March 202y 31 March 202¢
Number of Y holding Number of shares ¥ holding
shires -
Equity shares of T 10 each, fully paid up
T ¥ Sundram hvengar & Sons Prevate Limited 1.07.27.343 3381% L0727 343 3381%
CDPM) Private Equity Asia Pte Lrd 1.21.36.492 38350, 121,36 892 38.25¢,
Dinram Eegistics Services LLP B 0000, 2058214 G330,
Omega Te Holdings Pte Lud, Singapore 13,835,847 3000, 2348863 74T,
DRSR Logisues Services Private Limited 3750214 11.82% - AL
0.0001% Cumulative, redecmable, noneconvertinke, participating
preference shares of T 10 cach. fully pail up
Tata International Limired 7677 041" FATT R RS
Tota lodustries Limited 7.674 49,990, 7.674 49,997,
G.0001% Non- comulative, participating. compulsorily convertible
preference shares of ¥ [00 each, flly paid up (Series A)
Mahogany Singapare Campany Pte. Lid 1023350 100,007 14,23 330 100000 4
G.000H%  Non-  Cuwmulative,  Non-Participating, Compulsorily
Convertible Preference Shares of T 10 cach, tully paid up
David Robbins 390908 21.05%, 39.99% 21.05%,
MS Krishinan 3.992 5.20% 9,992 5260
Suehow Prv Lid 12003 327, 12,004 6.32%
R Dinesh 2996 1.58%, 2.994 1.58%,
Sanjive Sharma 4002 2105, Jie L2 21415%
Tarun Khanna 45006 23.69%, 3 110 33.69%
Andrew Jones 400602 21.03% Hu? 214057

Other Equity
Securities premium

Secunlies premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares, T is utilised in accordance with the provisions for the Companies Act. 2013

Capital reserve

During prior vears. the Company had ressued the shases forfeited. The protit on reissue of such forfeited shares has been tronsferred capital reserve,

Capital redemption reserve

Durtng the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company had redeemed preference shares issued to Tata International Limited and Tata Industries Limited, out of
profits of the Company. A sum equivalent to the neminal amount of the shores redeemed had been ransferred ta capital redemphion reserve in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013

Share warrants

On June 8. 2018 and Augost 22, 2018, the Company issued 30.000 and 63,000 share wamants respectively. at a price of 2 954 per share warrant 1o identified
persons on a preferential basis for a aguregate consideration of T 902,54 lakhs with a nght te apply and gt allotment of equity shares af the Company ranking
pani-passu with the existing equity shares. in the ratio of 1:1 within a period of 12 months from the date of issue of share warrants wr carhier at the option of the
Beard. During the vear ended March 31, 2019. the Company had recerved T 22563 lakhs {23% of the issue price as at balance sheer dates, During the previous
sean ended March 31,2020, the company had recerved T 676.87 Lakhs (balance 73%5 of the issue price) and accordingly the compamy had alloted 93,000 eguity
shares at a face volue of T 14 per share at T 940 per share premium.

Share options

The company has Management Incentive Plan {MIP) scheme under which share options are granted to emplovees which has baen approves by the shareholders
of the company. In accordance with the tenns of the plon. eligible emplovees may be granted options 1o purchase squity shares of the company if they are in
service on exercise of the grant Each employee share oplion converts into one equify share of the company an exercise af the exercise price as per the scheme.
The aption carry neither nghts to divideod nox voting rights, Options can be exercised at amy time from the date of vesting o the date of thewr expiry.
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Other Equity {continued)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares

On June 8. 2018 and August 22, 2018, the Company has allotted 13,340 and 25660 Non- Comulative. Non-Participating. Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares ("CCPS™y of T 10 each respectively. al a premium ol F 340 each to identified persens on a preferential basis For a consideration of Z 126 73 fakhs and 2
243 77 lakhs respectively. CCPS cany a dividend of 0,001 s per annum asd the dividend rghts are nen- cumulotive, On November 20, 2014, the Company has
issued bonus shares of 151,000 w the shazehe!ders of CCPS in the ratio of 1:3.87 and the securities preminm aceound was unhised b the extent of € 13140 lakhs
fov the issue ol suid bonus shares. The preference shares to be converted mto egual mumber of equity shares ranking paci-passu with the existing equity shages,
after the end of four vears frem Ihe date of 1ssne or carlier at the option of 1he Board. In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion of preference
shares. the hoklers of preference shares will have priovity over equity shares in the repayment of capital.

On Febroarny 7. 2020, the Company has allotted 10.23.350 Series A Compulsorily Cenvertible Preference Shaves *CCPS™y of # 100 each, at a premium of &
L& 11+ 7 gach to Mahogany Singapere Company Pte. Lid -CCPS Holder™ ) on a preferential busis, for 2 consideration of approx. € 1735 Crore, Each CCPS camies
a minimum preferennal dividend rate of 000G and in addition to and after povment of such preferennal dividend, the CCPS Holder would be entitled 1o
participate pari-passu in any dividends poud to the halders of shares of any other class rineluding equity shates) or series on a pro rata, as-if-converted basis. Each
CCPS would be converted into fully paid-up equiny shares ranking pari-passu with the existing equity shates. in the ratio of 1:1 {subject to sucl adjusiments as
contemplated in the subseription agreement dated January 22. 2020 executed by and amongst inter alia the Company and the CCPS Holder £7S5A ). on the
earlier of (1) expiry ot a period of 18 teighteen) months from the closing date {as detined under the SSA) (Febsuary 7. 20203, and 1) the date when a prospective
shareholder (as delined under the SSA) (including such prospective shareholder's affiliales) acquires equity shares or equity secunties convertible into equiry
shares representing, in the aggregate. at least 7°» {Seven percent) of the then share copital of the Company fon a fully diluted basis) (in ohe or More KANSHCHIONS)

Dividends
After the reporting date. the following dividends texcluding dividend distitbution 1ax) were proposed by the direciors subject to the appreval al the annual general
meeting: the dividends have not been recognised as habilines. Dividends would atrract dividend distribution tax when declared or paid.

in F fudkch 3 March 2021 31 March 2020
T MNil per equity share (31 March 2020:  Nil per equity share; - -
Other items of 0C)

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability {asset) 3t March 2021 31 March 2020
Opemng balance 23.46 (9833
Remeasutements of detined benefit liability rasset) (net of taxes) 71.07 121.69
Clusing balance 94,53 23.46

Remensurements of dofined benefit Hability (usset)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability {asser} comprises actuarial gams and losses and retwn on plan assets (excluding interest income),

Capital manaigement
The Cotmpany's policy 1s to maintain a streng capital base so as 10 maintam investor and creditor confidence and e sustain future development of the business.

The Company monners capual using a ratio of 'debt’ to 'equiny’. For this purpose. debt is defined as 1atal debt. comprising ineresi-bearing loans and borrowitgs
and ebligations vnder finance leases. Equity comprises ali compuonents of equity.

The Company’s debt to equity ratio is as follows:

31 March 2021 38 March 2020

Mon-current borrowings 208 206 16633
Currem boerrowings and current maturities of non-current borrewings 300823 68,951,530
Debt 30,292.48 69.097.85
Towl eluity 7639247 8255536

Debt to equity ratio 0,40 0.84
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24E Earnings per share

(i)

25

{a

thh

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The caleulabions of protit attribotable to equity shareholders and weighted averuge number of equity shares ouistandmg for purposes of basic and diluted eamings

per share caleutarion are as Fellows;
Profit (loss} attributable fo equity shoreholders

Profil tloss) for ihe voar. attributable to the equity holders

Weighted average numiber of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shores

Add - Number of shares relating to compulsorily convertible preference shares

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the caleutation of basic cormings per share
Adjustmients for dilutrve effect

= Number of shares relating to Management lncentn ¢ Plan

- Number of shares relating to share warranis

Weighted average number of equity shates used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

Borrowings

Nen-current borrowings
Secured term loans from banks
Secured term loans from financial institutions

Total non-carrent berrowings
Current borrowings

Term loan from linancial institution
Secured
Unsecured

Term loaw from banks
Unecured

Cash eredit from banks
Unsecured

Loaus repavable on demand
Secured
Unsecored

Bills discounting
Unsecured

Redecmable preference shaves {unsecunred)

Current pertion of non-current borrowings
Unsecured termi loans from banks
Secured term logns fram banks: financial institutions

Less: Amount tncluded under ‘Other financial liabilines’
Tetal current horrowings

Information about Compam’s exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks 15 included w note 37

31 March 221

31 March 2020

(813790

31 March 2021

{18411

31 March 2020

307.30.133 31647311
12.13.354 338190
3.29.43 483 31985 50
1.32.352 61,728
1,380 1.203
LMHLTF7A3 32047432

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

20736 16d 07

.90 228
208.26 166,35

- FO200000

- SOR0)

- 1. 200000)

2365

s 4 0003 {1}

22504 41.7320]

85447 325776

291,60 591,60

2997111 63.225.92

. 506923
E13.01 636.35

113.11 570558

3008422 6%,931.50
1301 15,705 38)
2097111 6322592
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25 Burrowings (continued)
A Terms and repayment schedule
Terms und conditions of outstanding borrawings are as follows:
Carrving amount as at
fr daklrs of (NI Currency Nominal  Vear of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Interest cate

Secured Term foan from banks

HOFC Bunk Limived NR T 63% 40334, 2123 32047 233,29
} 32047 23329
Lnsecured Term loan fron binks
Axis Bank Limited INR G109, 220 - 300000
HDFC Bank Limited INR 7.50%5-8 35, 2024 - 1,200 00
- 620000
Secared terin loan from Financial institations
Tata Capital Finnncial Services Linrexd INR t1.50%q 2021 - 7020 00
Tata Capital Financial S¢rvices Eimited INR 10259, 2021 - (2301
Sundaram Finance Limijted INR  975%-10.946°, 2020 - 13.63
Other tinancial mstitutions INR (190
030 7.658.64
Unsecured term loan froms Financinl institutions
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited INR 11.50% 2021 - o 080,00
- 5.080.00
Unsecured cash credit facifities from bunks
Axis Bank Limited INR 7.5%-7.8% - 23.63
- 2365
Bill discoumiing - Unsecared
DBS (paying agent) INR 6.50%¢ 2021 440,35 -
Axis Bank Linnted [NR 7.85% 2020 - 333776
TREDS-Invoicemart INR 6.95%0-7.93% 2021 414.12 -
85447 3.257.76
Secured lonns repavabie on destand
DBS INR OB L - 1 {hitr 00
Swate Bank of lndia INR 7.48%5-8.73%, . - 300000
- 4,014.00
Unsecured lonns reparable on demand
Related party - Drive India Enterprise Solutions INR FO0¢ -0 000 20 L3435 1.392 8
Related party » White Data Systems Incha Py Lid INR U 2021 L1500 -
Related party - TYS 8CS Glabal Freight Salutions INR 2021 1.330.00 -
Limited {Formetly known as TVS Dvnamic Global
Freight Services Limitedy 7230,
Standord Chartered Bank INR 649 8. 7000 021 540000 14,001 00
IDFC INR 7.00%, 2021 133000 -
HDFC Bank Limited INR 61K 07 F0 2021 1065000 2.500.00
DBES INR T30 09 U000 020 - 4.000.00
Axis Bank Limited INR 3730 0-8.000, a2 6.380.00 9.850.00
Axis Bank Limited INR 7.80% 2021 - 10.02
28,225.04 41,7521

Redeemable preference shares (unsecured)

Unsecured [NR O0001%, 8016l 891.60
891.60 BYL.60
10.292.48 69,697.85

B Secured boans

Secured term Toan Jrom banks

Tem loans from HDFC Bank Limited ace secured by hy pothecation of vehicles acquired out of the loan,

Secured foans repavable on demand from banks

1. Working caputal loan from State Bank of India was secured agamst the debtors of the company. This is repaid in the current year

2. Working capital loan from DBS Bank was secured upto Rs. 10 crore against the debtors of the company. This is repaid in the current year,

Secured rerm loan froms financial institntions

L.The Tem loan of 11.30% is from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited. The total facility is for Rs, 200 crore of which Rs 8U crove is secured against the
company’s plant and machinery. furniture and fixtures. computer equipaments and affice equipments. This is repaid in the cureent vear.

2. Temm Loan at 10.23% inferest rate from Tuta Capital Finanetal Servives Limited is secured by an exclusive mertzage of immovable property located at Mumbai
and fitst and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on identified movable fixed assets. This is repaid in the current veat.

3 Tent loans from Sundaram Finance Limited are secured by hiypothecation of vehicles and equipments acquirsd out of the loan. This 1s repard in the current
veqr.

C  Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has cumulative. redeemable. non-convertible. participating preference shares, These preference shares have been classitied as a liobilit Lt tights.
preferences and restmictions anached to peeference shares atached 1o these preference shares refet nate 24,
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26 Trade pavahles 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade pavables w related parties (refer note 34 1,707 42 397176
Dues to micro. small and medivm enterprises (refer node 33} 1.4%6.54 234007
Other trade pavables 3532013 1009

353309 3367292

27 Other financial liabilities

Nun-current portion Current portivn
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Derrvatives - Fornard contract pavables - - . 1203 60
Current maturities of long term borrowings . - 11311 270558
Interest accrued but not due on bosrowings - - 6376 289,61
Pavablz to factor - - 64376 80447
Capital creditors - - 199.01 gl4.42
Amount due e emplovees - - 7.339.65 345508
Financial puarantee fiability 3981.11 49 80 1.387.30 BIl.14
Dues to subsidiaries - - 43348 585
Others - - 30 (30
3.981.11 49.80 10.582.37 12.662.02
28 Provisions Non-current portion Current portion
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provisiens for emplovee benefits
Liability [or gratuity - - 336.21 5015
Liabiliy tor cvnpensated absences 203.04 431.62 687.63 433.22
203.04 43162 122386 946,76

29 (rher current liabilities 3{ March 2021 31 March 2020
Statutory dues vthers 2044, 19 1.309 20
Advance from customers 37622 872,93
Other current liabilities 24.68 12.89

3.545.00 2.195.02
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30 Emplovee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Compuny makes comributions. determined as a specified percentage of emplovee salories. in respect of qualifiing emplovees towards Provident Fund
(PFy and employees' state insueance (ESI) scheme which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no ebligatiens ofler than o make the specified
contributions, The contributions are charged to the stalement of profit and loss as they acerue The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution o
Provident Fund and ESI for the year aggregated w 2 2.606.10 lakhs (31 Mareh 2020 # 2.77% 43 lakhs)

Defined benefir plans Non-current Current
30U March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for gratuity - - 336.21 51154

For details sbout the related emplovee benefit EXPENSEs. 3¢ note 7

The Company has a defined benetit gratuity plan in India {the Plan). governed by the Payment of Gratwity Act. 1972 The Plan eniitles an emplovee. who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service. o graity al the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of
six months. based on the rate of wages last drawn by the emplovee at the time af retirement. death or termination of emplovment.

These defined henefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market tinvestment} risk.

A. Funding

The grawity plan of the Company is a partially funded plan with the Company making periodic contributions to a fund managed by Lile Insurance
Corporation (LICY and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ lia bility
The tollowing table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o the closing balances tor the net defined benefit (asset) liabilitv and its components;

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 218948 207066
Benetits paid (182 5% 1221.21;
Current service cost 17709 421.63
[erest cost 11743 135,16
Actnanial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income g

- changes in demographic assumptions - 43.56)
- changes in financial assulmptions 4204 {30,921
- experience adjustiments (139.18) {110.30)
Balance at the end of the vear 1.384.87 2,189.48

Reconciliation of the Iair value of plan asscts

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the yeor 1.677.94 112541
Contributions paid into the plan 275,00 690,08
Benefits paid 1182 59) 122121
Interest meome $6.20 7348
Actuarial gains / (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income (7.89) (.28
Balance at the end of the vear 1.848.66 1.677.94
Net detined benefit (asset) / liability 836.21 S11.54

. Expense recognised in profit or loss

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Current service cosy 37769 4263
[nterest cost 11743 103.16
Interest inconie 186.20) {7348

408.92 453.33
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30 Ewmployee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 31 March 2021 31 March 2024

Actuarial {gain) / loss on defined benetit obligation (117,149 1186.78)

Actuarial (gain} / loss on plan assets 7.89 (0.28)
(199.25) (187.06)

E. Plan assets

Plan assets comprise of the following: 31 Marveh 2021 31 Muarch 2020

Insurer managed funds t.848.66 167794

LB48.66 1,677.94

F. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Principal actiarial assumpiions at the reporiing date were:

Discount rate 3.13% 5.33%

Future salary growth 2.00% 8.00%

Attrition rate 58.40% 38.00%

Expected return on plan assets +4.13% 3.33%

li. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes ot the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding ather assumptions constant, would have affecied the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inerease Deerease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (3022 3124 {80.11) §7.58
Future salary growth (1% movement) 29.73 (2933 73262 {67.93)
Attrition rate (1% movement) (7.3 757 iL15.6%) 16.78

Although the analvsis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity
of the assumptions shown,

Share based payments

The company has Management lcentive Plan (MIP) scheme under which share options are gronted to emplovees which has been approved by the
shareholders of the company. [n accordance with the terms of the plan. eligible empleyees may be granted optivns to purchase equity shares of the company if
they are in service on exercise of the grant. Each employee share option converts into one equity share of the company on exercise at the exercise price as per
the scheme. The option carry neither rights to dividend nor voting rights. Options can be exercised at any time from the date of vesting 1o the date of their
expiry.

The following are share based payment arrangements:

Fatr value at

Option sevies {Refer note below) Number Grant date Exercise price srant-date
MIP [ [1.62.791 2(-Nov-18 930.00 964.00
MIP [ - Pool A & Pool B 8.97.008 2(-Nov-18 950,01 964,00
MIP IT - Pool A & Pool B 111984 16=-hay-19 930.00 1,193 80
MIP 1T - Pool A & Pool B 14,768 (H-Jul-19 930.00 1.193 80
MIP 1.75.00G 14-Feb-20 3006 1.531.30
MIP [ 82460 20-Noy-20 G30.00 141890
MIP [ 13,537 09-Feb-2 | 050100 {41890
Note:

Under MIP I. the vestmg of options granted is linked to time.
Under MIP IT - Pool A & Pool B. shares vest as per the terins of the scheme with an eption life of 3 vears after vesting.
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30 Employvee benefits {continued)

Share based pavments {continued)

Fair value of share options granted during the year
The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during the financial vear is T 6128 (MIP T (Previous vear: 2 6509 (MIP ) & T 276.0 (MIP 1),
Options were priced using 2 Black Scholes option valuation model & Monte Carlo simulation model for MIP [ and 11 respectively, Where relevant. the
expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management's best estionae for the effects of non-transferability. excreise restrictions and
behavieural considerations. Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility of guideline companies in developed and developing countries.

Inputs in te the model:

MIP U -Posdl A MIP 11 - Poal A

MIF [1-Poal &

MIP I Mip ] MIPI MIPT & Pool B & Pool B & Pool B
Grant date share price * 964,00 1331540 1.418.90 1.418.94) 96400 1.193.80 119380
Grant date 20-Nov-18 [4-Feb-2  20-Nov=20) ®-Feb-21 20-Nov-18 Lo-May-19 O1-lul-19
Exercise price Q300 930,00 93000 23048} 030.00 Q30,00 05100
Expected volatility 32% 364 523% 32.3% 33.10% 36.23% 36.23%
Option lite 2.36 years 1.13 years I year | year 1.6l years 3.13 years 3 vears
Dividend vield 0 15% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.00%%
Risk free interest rate 7.28% 5.10% 3.80% 3.80% 7.50% 644" 644"
* Before adjustment of lack of marketability
Movements in share options during the vear
Year ended i Year ended L
MIP 1 March 31, 2021 a\‘e::;;‘g:'::fciw March 31, 2024 a\‘c::;:'g::::'lcisc
Number of L ) Number af -
Options price Options price
Opening at the beginning of the year 13.34.883 93000 11.69.79( 930.00
Crrantted during the year 93697 050.0:0 1.75.000 950100
Exercised during the vear - - - -
Forfeited and expired during the vear 18.957 950,44 9008 950,00
Balance at the end of the vear 14,18.923 450,00 13,34,883 350.00
Year ended " Year ended L
MIPII-PonlA& B SAErER S EvE a\'e::;:lg:::'rjcise SIMIER SISt ave::::-g:::fcise
Number of | Number of =
Options price Options price
Opening at the beginning of the year 10.23.760 930.00 9.30.838 54,00
Granted dusig the year - - 1.26.828 Q3400
Exercised during the year - - - -
Forteited andl expired during the vear 94.631 950,00 45.906 Q3000
Balance at the end of the year 9.25.129 G50.00 10.23.760 950.00

Share options vested but aot exercised during the vear - Nil
Share options vutstanding at the end of the year - MIP T- 14,101,923 & MIP [1-9,25,129
The share opticns outstanding at the end of the year had a weighted average exercise price of T 950 ond a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.19

years
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31 Leases

A Finance leases as lessor

The Company’s leasing arrangement represents the certam forklifts and other assets given 1o customers which have been classified under Ind AS 116 on
Leases as Finance lease. The lease term covers the substantial peried of the assets and all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferced to the lessee.
The Company records disposal of the propern concemed and recognizes the finance income as part of Other income.

The reconciliation between the gross investment in the lease at the end of the reporting period. and the present value of minimum lease pavments
receivable at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 Mareh 2021

31 March 2020

Gross investment [.592.35 1,9%2.79
Unearned finance income (430.83) {49502
Net investment L1615 1.467.77

Finance leases are receivable as follows:

Gross investment

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Recervable within one year 468.07 422,96
Receivable between one and five vears 1.008.89 1.399.73
Receivable after five years 55,37 140. 10
Taotal 1,592,133 1,962.79
Present value of minimum lease payments

Recervable within one vear 302.53 27557
Recervable between one and five years 206 13 1.336.02
Recewvable atter five vears 52.82 156,18
Total 1,161.50 1,467.77
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32

33

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital a6 16 88304

advances) and not provided tor

Cerntingent labifities:
Emplovee related matters* 218339 2.204.9]
Corporate guarantee# 1.58.720.74 $.114.57
[ncome tax related matters - 12.51
Bank guarantees issued 7243 -
Service tax related matters 119033 81346
Sales 1ax related matters 14,58 FILIR
GST related matters 28537 285,37
Claims not acknowledged as debt 55274 40614

From time to time. the Company is involved in ¢laims and legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business, Management is not currently aware of
any natters that will have a material adverse effect on the financial position. resulis of operations, or cash fows of the Company.

* The Company has challenged the demand orders from PF authorities amounting 1o Rs 2,183.59 Lakhs for the periods April 2011 to February 2013 on
the grounds that provident fund on certain allowances need not be included for calcwlation of the Provident Fund contribution, as the same is not
universally paid to all the employees of the Company.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid to the elployees
should be identified for inclusion for the purposes of computation of the Provident Fund contribution. Consequently, the Company has filed a review
petition to Regional Provident Fund Commissioner to review the demand order in the light of the Supreme Court decision. The Company has also
obtained an interim injunction from Honourable High Court of Madras pending disposal of the Company’s petition. Based on legal advice ebiained.
the Company is of the view that no provision is required for the dispute in the firancials as at March 31. 2021,

# During the previous vear. the corporate guarantee provided by the Company 1o the lenders, against the term {oan availed by the Company's step down
subsidiary was revoked as the term loan was repaid during the previous vear ous of a refinancing arrangement, The fresh corporate guarantee for the new
refinanced tacility has been effective from 24th April 202¢ The amounts outstanding as at March 31. 2020 pertained to corporate guarantee given ta
ANZ bank for the working capital faciliny availed by TVS SCS (Aus0 Prv. Lid.. Australia (Formerly known as Transtar International Freight { Aust) Pty
Lid}. step-down subsidiary which is revoked during the current vear as the tacility is repaid entirely {refer note 34).

Due to micre, small and medivm enterprises

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which quality under the definition of micre
and small enterprises, as defined under hicro, Smakt and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, Accordingly., the disclosure in respect of the
amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2021 has been made in these standalone financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company. to the extent identified by the management.

31 March 2021 31 March 2024

The amounts remaining unpaid to micre and small suppliers as at end of the accounting

vear

Principal 1.496.34 230,09
[nterest due thereon 6370 92351
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act. 2006 (MSNED Act. 2006)

The amount of payments made to the micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day 2.911.86 277341
during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which 83.86 ol.64
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the

interest specified under MSNMED Act. 2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear 180,73 179.63

The amownt of further interest remaining due and pavsble even in the suceeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises
for the purpose of disallowance as a deduetible expendiure under the MSKED Act. 2006
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34 Related party disclosures

A, Enterprise having sigmificant influence TV Sundram Isengar & Sons Private Limited
CDPO Private Equits Asia PTE. LTD.

B. Subsitarics TVS 5CS Globai Freight Solutions Limited (Formaerly known as TVS Dynamie Global

Freight Servaces Limited)

TWS 8CS i Siam) Limited (Formerly knewn as TVS Logistics SIAM Limited). Thailand
TVSE Logistics Investment UK Limited

TVS Logistics imestiments USA Inc., USA

Dnive Indin Enterprise Solutions Limited

FLEXfL Packaging {India) Limited

TS Supply Chain Sohurions Pre. Lid (Formerly kiown as TVS-Asianics Supply
Chaim Selutions Pie. Limited). Singapore

TVS Packaging Solutions Private Limited

SPC International Tndia Private Linnted, India

White Duta Systems India Private Linniled. Tndia

TVS Tovota Tsusho Supply Chain Selutions Limited

C. Step down subsidiaries TVS Supply Chain Selations Limited. UK
BESys Software Solutions Limited, TIK
Multipart Limited, UK
TVS Loistics Iberia S.L.. Spain
TVS Autosery GmbH, Germany
TVS Supply Chain Solutiens GmbH. Germany
Peter Thomas & Ce (Returbishing) Limited. UK
Rico Logistics Limited, UK
Ricochel Spain. Spain
Rico Logistique. France
Rico Lowgistics Ptv Lid. Ausrealia
Circle Express Limited. UK
Tri - Tee Computer Support Linuled. Northern Irekind
Tr = Te¢ Support Limeted., Ireland
SPC [nternational Limited. LK
TWS SCS Rico Itaha SRL
Triage Holdings Limited
Eltee IT Services 5.L.1J
Nubsrefurres of Trionse Holdurgs Limitod
Triage Service Linited
OpderLogic Limited
Stafrseclrories of P hiternastomad Lamied, T8
SPCINT Limited. UK
SPC International t Engineering} Limited, UK
Pitcomp 171 Limited. UK
SPC EBT Truskees Limited. UK
SPC lmerpational Ing,. USA
SPC Intemational s.a.5. France
SPC Internativnal 5.1.0.. Slovakia
TVS America lnc.. USA
TVE Supply Chain Selutions North America Tne.. USA
(formerly known as Wainwright Industries Ing 1JSA)
Waintrans LLC. USA
TVS Supply Chain Solutons De Mexico S.A de C.V . Mexico
TVS Packaging Solutions [nc., USA
Suhsecluirws of VS Stppdv Clen Seditions Pre. Lid tFovinerdv fovnci as P15
Axicores Sopplv Chearn Sadutions Pre. Limded, Soiguporey
TVS 508 International Freight (Spain SLU (Formerly known as Nadal Forwarding
3.Ly Spain
Seehsudiaracs of TVS SCS fteentnonod Frosgdht (Spoan SLE
Lingxs Regulares XXI, 81
TS SCS ternational Pre. Ld (Fornterly known as Pan Asia Logistics
International P, Lid)
T¥35 5C5 Singapore Ple. L1d {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics Simgapare Pre,
Lid}
TWS Supply Chain Solutions t Thailand} Limited { Formerly known as TVS
Asianics. Thailand
Stehstedtorion of TUS Sippdy Chraine Solivions (Fhardands e ad
TVS 5C5 Logistics Management Co. Lid (Formerly known as TLM Logistics
Management Co,, Lid}
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34 Related party dischosures (continued)
", Step down snhsidiaries teontinued)
Subsreluertes af TN SCS Nigepore Pre. Fad thewerly ki ux Poir At
Lantsercs Swutapore Prec Lk
Pan Asia Logistics Limited. Shangi
TVS 5CS i Koreay Lid (Formerly known as Pan Asia Logisties International
(korea) Ly
TVS 3CS Logisties ( Thailanl; Limited {Formerly known as Pan Asia Logistics
{Thamland: Lid
TVS SCS Hong Kony Limned {Formerly know as Pan Asia Fredght-Forvarding
& Logistics Hong Kong Ltds
Pan Asia Contginier Line Pte Ltd, Hong Kong
TYS SC5 Deustschland Gmbh tFermerly known as Pan Asia Logstics
Dentschland GmbH)
Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia Sdn Bhd
TV5 5CS Vietnam Company Limited (Formetly known as Pan Asia Logtstics
Vietnam Company Lid)
P Pan Asia Logistics Indonesia
TVS SCS Taiwan Limited {Esrtwhile known ss Pan Asia Logstics Taiwan Lid)
Pon Asia Freight-Forwarding & Logistics Indta Pvi Lid
T¥S Supply Chain Solunons Australia Holdings Prv Ltd (Formerly known as TVS-
Astanics Anstraiia Heldings Pty Led)
Subsrctuirtes of FIS Suppdv Cliie Softdtons dnstrudra Huldiggs Pov Fnd
T.1.F Holdings Py, Ltd.
Substelratrtes of L1 Hotdings P, L.
TVS SCS fAust) Py, Lidi Formerly known as Tanstar Interatisial Freight
{Aust) Pty Lid. Australia}
TVS SCS New Zealand Linnteds Formerly known as Transtar [nternational
Freight Lintited, New Zeuland)
Kahbn Mominees Prv Lid. Austialia
Transtar International Freight Limited, Hong Kong
TVS 5CS Intemationa] Freight « Singapore) Pre. Ltd (Formerly known as
Transtar International Freighr ( Singapore) Pre. Limired. Singapore)
Transar [nternational Freight {Shanghai} Limited, China
TVS 5CS International Freight { Thaland) LimirediFormerly koown as
Transtar International Freight Linited. Thailand i
Teanstar Internarional Freight (Malaysias SD Bhd. Malaxsia

D. Subsidiaries of TV Sundram Ivengar & Sons Privaie TVS Motor Company Linited
Limited Sundaram Clayion Limited
Lucas=TVS Limited
Sundaram Indusirees Private Limited
Lucas Indian Service Limited
Sundaram Auvte Components Limited
TVS Training and Services Limited
Sundram Precision Components Limited
TVS Distribution & Services Middle East FZE
TVS Electronics Linvited
Sundram Fasteners Limited
E. Joint Ventures TVS Industrial & Logistics Parks Private Limited (formerly known as TVS
Infrastructure Private Limited:

Linfex TVS Solutions Prv Limited, Austraha
F. Associates Mlontara Verpacken mit System GbH. Germany
Stihicfitrres of Mentural 2epucken miSysten GmhH.( SN
Meontara North America Corporation, USA
Maontara Tndia Private Limited, India
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34 Relnted party disclosures {continued)
G, Kev management personoel (KMP) M R Dinesh, Managing directer
Rl Rovi Viswanathan, Joimt Managi
Rir. & Ravichandvan. Whole-ime direcior

H. Entitics controlled by KMP ar relatives of KMP of the Dwram Logisties Services LLP
Company DRSR advisory Senviees LLP
TVS Srichakra Limited
Transactions during the vear Venr emled Year ended
31 Mareh 2021 38 March 2020

Income frim logistics serviecs

Lucas-TVS Limited 1.081.74 1.2829%
Sundarom Industries Private Limired 94,22 113,62
TVS Mator Company Limited 8 330000 744265
Sumdaraen Clavten Lumited 96.42 22112
T % Sundram [vengar & Sons Prisvate Limueed 39467 3420
TVE Tovela Tsusho Supph Chain Solutions Limited 1330 1440
FLLXOL Packaging fIndiay Limited 725 1419
Drvve India Enterprise Solutions Limited 3538 Rir33
TVS 5CS Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dyname Globat Freight Sevvices 747 761
Limited;

Sundram Fasieners Limred 118.09 121.56
TVS Trainmg And Services Limited 947 42 39
TVS Srichakra Limited 2980 86 473784
Lucas Indian Service Limired 193 6203

Sale of Goods
Sundatam Clavton Limited 0.Gy .

Other income

TVS SCS Globul Freight Solutions Limited i Formerly known as TVS Dvnamic Global Freight Seivices H2.00
Limited) 5152

TVS Tovora Tsusho Supply Chain Selutions Limire) 127.76 7332
T¥S Supply Chain Selutions Nerth America Inc USA 36343 RO
TVS Lagisties Investment UK Limited 917 B4 172937
Rica Logistics Limited, LK 175139 211799
TVE Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK 1.334 39 132943
Drive india Enterprise Solutions Limited N8 6719
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pre Lid (Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Selutions Pre, 803 84

Limieed. Singapore)

White Data Systems India Private Limited 1231

Dividend income

TV SCS Global Freight Solotions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dy namic Global Fecight Services 10800 HI2.00
Limikeds

[nterest income

TVS Logistics Investments USA Ing.. 1USA 40.24 180,25
TVS 5CS (Siam) Linuted (Formerly known as TVS Logistics SIAM Linmtedy, Thailond 3551 34107
TVS Legistnes Investment UK Limited 46758 1306 04
TVS Supply Chain Selutions Pre. Lul (Farmerh known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutiens Pre. 10,43 46.64

Limited. Smgapore)
Expenses incurred on behall of

Crive India Enterprise Selutions Limited 193 1.93
T ¥ Sundram [vengar & Sons Private Lunited - EIRLY
TVS Logistics Investment UK. Limited v Ra 2278
T¥S Supply Chain Solutions Limited, UK 152.17 10355
TVS Supply Chain Selutions Pre. Lrd (Formerly known as TVS-Astanics Supphy Chain Solutions Pte. 153341 10.38
Limited. Singapore)

TS Supply Chain Solumons North America Inc. USA 13412 4106
Rico Logistics Limited. UK 190,42 84.01
White Data Svstems India Private Limited 24183 -
FLEXOL Packaging i India} Lid 143 1.93
TVS Tevera Tsusho Suppls Chain Solutions Limited 193 1.93
T¥S Packaging Selutions Private Limited 260 -
Interest expense

Drve India Enterprise Solutions Limited 114.67 114.36
TVS 5CS Global Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Freight Services 4088

Limited)

White Data Svirems India Private Linted M
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34 Related party disclosures {(cantinued)
Transactions during the yvear (continued) Year eided Year ended
31 Mareh 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Purchase of spares., fuel, others

T ¥ Sunciam Tyvengar & Sons Private Linited - 369
Sundaram Industries Private Limited 49.41 4509
Sundram Fasteners Limited - 01
TVS SCS Global Freight Solutwns Limited (Formerly known as TYS Ds namic Global Freicht Services 2118 347
Limited

TVS Industial & Logisties Park Limited ¢ Formerdy known os TVS Infrastructure Pyt Ll 309 22
Freight, packing and forwarding expenses

FLEXOL Packaging tIndia) Limred 1G7.03 161.39
T V Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limited 5330 243
TVS 5C5 Global Frzight Solutions Limited { Fermerly known as TVS Dynamic Glabal Freight Services 216.66 8228
Limiteds

TVS Electronics Limited 0.47 .69
White Daia Systems India Private Limited 357.89 637349
Rent

TVS Industrial & Logistucs Park Limited ¢Formerls known as TVS Infrasteucture Pyl Lidy 91944 RO 14
TV Sundram hvengar & Sons Private Linuted 172,93 17243
Lucas-TVS Limited 1.80 1.80
TVS 5CS Global Freight Solutions Limited tFormerly known as TVS Dvnamic Global Fretght Services . 233
Linnited )

Repairs and malntenance

T ¥ Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limvited - 4.93
TVS Industrial & Logstics Park Limated { Formerly kuown as TVS Infrastructare Pve Lids g52 6.25
Expenses incorred by and reimbursed o

TVS Supply Chamn Solutions Pte. Lid (Formerly known as TVS=Asianics Supphv Chain Solutions Pre - 8531
Limited. Singapore|

T V Sundram Ivengar & Sons Private Limited 2048 -
TVS Logstics [nvestment UK Linvijed 55,83

Other expenses

T ¥ Sundram bvengar & Sons Private Limited - 7322
TVS 5C8 Global Freight Solutions Limited { Formerly known as TYS Dynamic Global Freight Services - 15.32
Limited:

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited (Formerh known as TVS Infiastrieture B Lids - 3270
White Data S stems India Private Lintited 10.26 -
Sale of Fixed Asset

TVS Tovotn Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited 643

Purchase of fixed assets

FLEXOL Packaging (India} Limited 16785 22990
TVS 8CS Global Freight Selutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dwnomic Global Frewght Services 6,10 -
Limited;

T V Sundram lyengar & Sons Privatz Limited 18.9% -
Dive India Enterprise Solutions Limited 934 26,62
Sundaram Fasteners Limized 11.82 7.57
TVS Mator Compony Limited - 14.82
Lucas India Service Limited : 342 6.27
Purchase of Leasehold Emprovement

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Limited ( Formerly known as TVS Infrastructure Pyt Lidy 1.35 058
Investment in equity shares

FLEXOL Packaging tIndia) Linited 616.77 -
TVE SCS Global Freighr Solutions Limited + Formerdy known as TVS Dnmamic Global Freight Services -
Limired) 464.14

TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Pie. - 15393517

Limited. Singapere}
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34 Related party disclosures (continugd)
Transactions during the year (continued Year emdil Year ended
3 March 2021 3 March 2020
Loans and advances
Given diring the year

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited - 3TU82 90
Repuyments received dusing the year

TWVS Logistics Imvestment UK Limited 33961.78 159674
TVS Logistics Invesments 1JSA lne. USA S40811 -
TVS Supply Cham Selunons Pre. Lid tFormerly knowr as TVS-Asiames Supplhv Chaie Solutions Pre. SR A0

Limited. Smgapore)

Faken during the year

Dirve India Enterpnse Solutions Limited 13213 S79.06
White Data Svstems India Private Limited 115000 -
TYS SCS Global Freight Solutions Limted { Formerly known as TVS Dynamic Global Frenght Services 550,00 -
Limitady

Remuneration to Kev Managerial Personnel

Salarigs. wages and bonns to whole-time director {including contribution to provident and other funds) 19274 457.65
Salaries, wages and bonus 10 jeint managing director fincluding conrribution to prevident and other funds) 440,62 220156
v et 14th Feb 20203

Remuneration 10 managing director 200,00 400.00

1. As the future liabilitics of gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company a5 a whole. the amounts periaming (o the
EMP is not ascenainable separately and therefore not included above.

2. Total employee stock compensation expense for the vears ended Murch 31, 2021 and March 31. 2020 meludes a charge of T 1363.20 lakhs and 2
298,43 Jukhs. townrds KMP respectively.

Vear end balnces: 3 March 2021 31 March 2020
Loans to related parties

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited. UK 338186 3774232
TVS Lagistics Investiments USA Inc., LJSA - 544814
TVS 8CS iSiam) Limited (Formerhy known as TS Logisties SIAM Limited). Thailand 437.02 44821
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Lil, {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited, - G937 61
Singapore

Receivables

Lucas-TVS Limited 7215 95 H
Sundaram Clavten Limited 11.20 30.84
Sundaram Indusiries Private Lintited 24 .45 20,27
TV5 SCS Glebal Freight Selutions Limited (Formetly known as TVS Dynamic Glabal Freight Services 3640 227
Linuted)

TVS Logistics [nvestment UK Limited 334161 3.426.03
TVS Lagistics Investments LSA Inc.. USA &1.10 28620
TV5S Motor Company Limired 1 467 37 3308
TVS Supply Chain Solutions North America. Inc.. USA 1.384.07 24587
FLEXOL Packaging {India) Limited 13 66 2374
TVS Supply Chain Selutions Pte, Ltd. (Formerly known as TVS-Asianies Supply Chain Solutions Limited), 1.132.38 167.00
Singapore

TVS 3CS 1 Siam) Limited { Formerly known as TVS Logistics $IAM Limited). Thailand 158.14 121.03
TVS Torota Tsusho Supply Chain Solutions Limited 136.38 2300
TVS Supply Chain Solurions Limited, UK 1,708 49 240633
Rice Logistics Limated. UK 2672.17 262504
T ¥ Sundram lvengar & Sons Privare Limited 1889 142.63
TVS Logistics Iberia 5.L.. Spain - -
Sundiam Fasteners Limited 1911 2578
TVS Srichakra Limited 17271 750,94
TVE Traiming And Senvices Limated 11.18 2637
Drive India Enterprise Solutions Limited L16742 1.084.51
Lucas Indian Service Linuted 128 21.8¢
White Data Systems lndia Private Limited 214.63 -
TV35 Packaging Salutions Private Limited 236 -

(ther receivables - Unbilled revenue

Locas TVS Limited 2583
Lucas Indian Servies Limited -

Sundacamn Clayton Linvited 5403
Sundaram Fastners Limited 2.09
T ¥ Sunduram lvengar & Sons Private Limited ol
TVS Motor Company Litnited 246 77
TYS-Stichakra fimited ¥67.23
FLENOI-Packuging | Indin} Lid 0.66

Sechirity deposity
TN ndushiab & | ogines Park Limited (Formerly kivown as TVS Infrastructare Pyt Lid s 789 66
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34 Related party disclosures (continued)

Year end bulances {continued): 31 March 2021 31 March 220
TVS Industriat & Logistics Park Limted 1 Formerly known as TVS lofrastrucore Pyt Lids 3000 w43
Drive India Eurerprise Solwtions Limited - B3R
TV Sundaram Tvengar & Sons Private Limited 7746 21.23

Unsecored borrowing repayment sn demand from related party

Drive India Enterprise Solutiens Limited 154504 130280
White Data Svstems India Private Limited L. ES8) -
TVE SCS Global Freight Solutivns Limited 1 Formerly known as TVS Dyvoamic Globa! Freight Serices 133000 -
Limited:

Pavables

T ¥ Sundram Iyengar & Sons Private Limited 3373 3321
Sundaram Indusivies Private Linvited 1804 1443
Lucas Indiar Service Limited 1.29 1.096
FLEXOL Packaging rinia} Limited B4.38 63,099
TV'S SC5 Globul Freight Solutions Limited (Formerly known as TVS Dynanue Global Freight Services 3841 H.e
Lenited)

TVS Industrial & Logistics Park Lumated {Formerly known as TVS Tnfiastructure Py Lids 9854 10.34
TVS Supply Chain Solunons Noith America. Ine.. USA - B
TS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Lid. {Formerly known as TVS-Asianics Supply Chain Solutions Limited ;. 54.56 500
Singapore

TVE Mator Company Limited - -
Lucas-TVS Limited 17 .16
Deive Indin Enterprise Solutions Limired 27926 167.81
Sundram Fasteners Lirited ER- 219
T¥S Packaging Solutions Private Limited 1o 1 oir
Rico Logistics Limited. UK 95 30 G013
White Dala Systems ludia Private Limited 131444 i/ ix W H
TV5 Logistics Iberia S L., Spain . 1.94
TVS Logishics invesiment UK Limited LR 289]
Guarantecs

TVS Logistics Investment UK Limited %6, 10383 -
TA'S Supply Chain Solutions Pte. L} (Formety known as TVS-Asianres Supply Chain Solutions Linwted ). 62.6259] R114.37
Singapore

Pavable to Key Managerial Persounel

Salaries. wages and bonus to Whole-tinw diveetar - 20,4
Salaries. wages and honus to Jomt managme director 200 Doy 1 &Ll

Commissien to Managing director 20000 040,400
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35 Transfer pricing

3o

The Company has international transactions with related parties. The management confirms that all such transactions are in compliance with the provisions
of Income-tax Act. 1961, The management also confirms that it maintzins documents as prescribed by the Income Tax Act to prove that the international
and domestic transactions are at arm's length and the aforesaid tegislation will not have any impact on the standalone Financial statements, particularly on
the amount of tax expense and that of provisien for taxation.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 “Revenus from Comntracts with Customers™:
A, Disaggregated revenue information

Segment 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

[ndia Outside India Total India Ouwtside India Total
Type of goods or service
Revenue from sale of products 991 - 9.9t 13.136.44 - 13.136.44
Revenue from supply chain management services 1.11.317.87 - 1.11.317.87 1.25.68357 - 1.25.683.57
Revenue fron; telecom services 1251125 - 12.511.25 10520043 - 10.520.43
Total revenue from contracts with custemers 1.23.839.03 - 1,23,839.03 1.49,340.44 - 1.49,340.44

B. Summary of contract balances

Particulars J-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Trade Receivables 34.356.62 43.516.00
Contract assets {Refer note below) [2.702.45 633854
Advance from Customers 57622 47293
Note:

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue camed from supply chain management services as receipt of consideration is conditional on successtul
completion. Lipon completion and acceptance by the custoner. the amounis recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

C. Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price

Particulars ‘ 3t-Mar-21 Jl-Mar-20
Revenue as per contracted price 1.24.114 5] 1.50.204.02
Less: Trade discounts, volume rebates ete. 27548 863.38

Revenue as per statement of protit and loss 1.23.839.03 1.49.34044
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure 1o the tollowing risks arising from financial instriments:
- credit risk:

- liquidity risk: and

- market risk

i Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Comipany’s risk management framework, The
board of ditectors along with the senior management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company”s risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identifv and analvse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and 1o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk managenient policies and svstems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in warker
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through #s training and management standards and procedures, aims te maintain 2
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all empleyees understand their roles and obligations.

f. Credir risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the ompany i a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers: loans and investments,

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk is managed through eredit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of custoniers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Conipany establishes an allowance for doubiful debts and impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of the Company’s trade receivables. certain loans and advances and other Gnancial assers,

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follaws;

Carrving amount
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Trade receivables 29 451,80 39.582.86
Imvestments 1.375.62 1.319.51
Cash and cash equivalents 10.531.95 3.013.14
Other bank balances 27001 249 46
Loans 381838 44.53%6 27
Deposits and other receivables 2604912 18.963.34
Other tinancial assets 13.329.26 6,978.06
Total 84.826.64 1,19,702.58

Traule and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach customer. The demographics of the customer,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates. also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determing incurred and expected credit
losses. The impairment loss at the reporting dates relates to several customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Company and are not
expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due 1o economic circumstances.

The Company determines credit risk based on a variety of factors including but net limited to the age of the receivables. cash flow projections and
available information about customers from internalextermal sources, The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its
estimate of expected losses in respect of trade receivables,
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management {continued)
it. Credit risk (contd.)

The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired as at the reporting date was:

As at 31 March 2021

Gruss carvving

Weighted-

amount  average loss rate

Loss allowance

Not due & Past due 1-90 dayvs 26.566.54 2 6% {700.45)
Past due 91-180 dayvs 145832 13.1% {190.75)
Past due 181-365 days 1.5362.37 44.9% {700.84)
Past due for more than 365 days 4.769.39 69 3% (3.312.78)
Total 34.356.62 {4,904.82)
As at 31 March 2020

Gross carrying Weighted-  Loss allowance

amaeunt average loss rate

Not due & Past due 1-90 days 3408040 2.34% (797.3%)
Past due 91-180 days 384830 22.27% (857.00)
Past due [81-363 days 2.650.29 16.24% (430.43)
Past due for more than 363 days 2.936.81 62.94% (1.848.32y
Total 43,516.00 (3,933.14)

Movenents in the allowance for impairment in respect of irade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of rrade receivables is as follows:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 393314 4.618.63
Add : Provision tor the vear 971.68 2.003.38
Less: Provision withdrawn against bad debts written off - (2.69087)
Balange at end of the veny 4.904.82 303314

Cast and cash equivalents and other bank baiances

The Company holds cash and bank balances of 2 10.801.96 Jakhs as at 3 March 2021 (31 March 2020: £ 8.262.54 lakhs). The credit w

such banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good,

Deposits and other receivables

The Company has Deposits and other receivables of € 26.049.12 lakhs as at 31 March 2021 ¢31 March 2020: % 18.96
deposit given in relation to leaschold premises occupied by the Company for carrying o its operations and receiva

Company does not expect any losses from non-perfarmance by these counter-parties.

Loans. livestments and Other financied assets

orthiness of

3.34 lakhs) Tt consists of
ble from subsidiaries. The

The Company has loans. investments and other financial assets of Z 47.975 56 lakhs as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: ¥ 52,893.82). The credit

waorthitiess of such parties are evaluated by the management on an ohgoing basis and are prov

are considered to be good,

i, Ligeeidive risk

ided wherever necessary and the remaining balances

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach 10 managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
acceptable losses or risking damage

liquidity 1o meet its liabilities when they are due. under both normal and stressed conditions. without incurring un

1o the Company’s reputation.

will have sulficient
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37 Finanrcial instruntents - Fair values and risk management {continued)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
Exposure to ligurcdio: risk
The following are the remaining contraciual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. and
include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting ageeements;

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Taotal 1 vear or less 1-5 vears More than 5
amount years

31 March 2021
Nonm derivative financial liabilities
Curremt amd won-curre st borrowings
Seeured term loan from banks 32047 320047 11311 207.36 -
Secured ferm loans  from  financial 0.90 n.90 .90 - -
instittions
Secured finance lease oblizations 2378289 3154968 914476 17.194.53 328037
Unsecured loans repavable on demand 28.225.64 2822504 2823504 - -
Unseeured Bills discounting 83447 85447 854,47 - -
Redesmable preference shares 891.60 %91.60 891.60 - -
Others
Trade payables 38.533.09 38.533.09 38.533.09 - -
Other financial liabilities 14.750.38 14.750.37 10.769.26 3.981.11 -

1,09,358.84 1,15,125.62 88,532,123 21,383.02 521037

Contractual cash flows

Total Total 1 year or less 1-5 vears . More than &
Years

31 March 2020
Non derivative financial liabilities
Curreat and nos-cuerent borrowings
Secured term loan from banks 23330 23330 6695 166,35 -
Uinsecured term loans from banks 6. 204300 6, 200000} 6. 200.0¢ - -
Secured term loans  from  financial 7.580.40 7.622.52 7.618.65 3.87 -
institutions
Unsecured term Toans from financial 514925 514923 514923 - -
Secured finance lease obligations 27.4H1.15 3335252 8.378.73 18,468.47 8.505.13
Unsecured loans repavable on demand 41.752.91 41.752.91 41.752.91 | - -
Secured loans 4.000.00 4.000.00 4 000,00 - -
Linsecured Bills discounting 325776 3.257.76 325776 - -
Unsecured cash credit from banks 2365 23.635 23.65
Redeemable preference shares 291.60 891.60 891,60 - -
Others
Trade pavables 3367292 33.672.92 33.672.92 - -
Other financial liabilities 7.006.24 7.006.24 695044 49,80 -

1.36,788.16  1,45,162.45 1,17,968.34 15,68%.49 8,505.13
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

v, Market risk (continued)
Crrreney risk (contined)

Sensitiviey analysis

A reasonably possible sirengthening (weakening) of the T against the respective currencies noted below at 31 March would have affected the
measurement of financial instruments denvminated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit o loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables. in particular inferest rates, remain constant and ignores any impacl of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or {loss)

Equity, net of fax

Weakening  Strengthening Wenkening  Stremgthening

31 March 2021

Ulnited States Dollar 1% movement) 18.51 (18.51 - -
Great Britain Pound { [%s movement) 131.36 {13138 - -
Singapore Dollar (1% movemem) 11,32 (LL32) - -
Thailand Bhat (1% movement) 1,38 (L3% - -
31 March 2020

{Inited States Dollar { 1% movement) 72.94 (72,94 - -
Great Britain Pound ( 1% movement) 434066 {430.66) - -
Singapoere Dellar (1% movement) 939 (930 - -
Thailand Bhat ¢ 1% movement) 1.21 {1.21}) - -

Inrerest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Variable instruments
Financied Liabilities

- Loans repayable on demand

- Unsecured Bills discounting

- Cash credit from banks

Fixed rate instruments
Fusncial assets

- Loans

- Deposits with banks
Financial Liabilines

= Term loans from banks

= Term Joans from financial institutions
- Finance lease obligations

- Loans repavable on demand

- Vendor bill discounting

- Redeemable preference shaces

Fair vahue sensitivine analvsis for fived-rate wstruments

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

540000

3.818.88
37982

320047
.94
23782 89
22.825.04
83447
891.60

39.330.00
3.25776
2363

44,596 27
369740

6433.30
12.738.63
270113

6.402.91

291.60

A reasonably possible change ot 100 basis points in inferest rates at the reporting date would not have any impact on the reported profiv or Joss or
equity as these fixed rate instruments iloans given. investments made and borrowings) are carried at amortised cost. any changes in interest rates are

not considered for subsequent measurement.
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38 Subsequent events

There arc no significant subsequent events that have eccurred atter the reporting period till the date of this standalone financial slatcments.

As per our teport of even date attached

Jfor 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Fitm Registration Nomber @ 1010493 / E300004
Chartered Avcountants

Bharath N 5§ § Mahalingam
Partner \ Chairman
Niembership No. 210034 | DIN: (0121727
Place : Chennai
Date ;15 June 2021

Ravi Viswanathan
Joinf Managing Director
DIN: 08713%10

2

pAe Y
R!wi "rakash l, hagavathula
tJro 1 Chief Financial Officer

/

Plate : Singapore

Sfor and en behalt ot the board of directors of
TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

— (1{) . Q).Q,_L,QL

R Dinesh
hlanaging Director
DIN: 00363300

Fopo Mo smnata 0 Mcw -

S Ravichandran
Whole-time Director
DIN: ¢1485845

-
{\J{‘ {._] Gl I

P 1} Krishaa Prasa
Company Seeretary

Place : Chennai
Date : 13 June 202}



TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Seventeenth Annual Report of the Company together with
the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Amount INR in crores)

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Revised Revised
Revenues from operations 1344.49 1619.29 6998.83 6792.76
(including other income)
Profit before tax from continuing (21.72) (243.45)
operations (89.44) (166.09)
Profit/ (Loss) after tax from (81.37) (15.84) (72.29) (248.02)
continuing operations
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (2.43) 0.04
from discontinued operations -
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (2.43) 0.02
from discontinued operations )
Profit/(Loss) for the year (81.37) (15.84) (74.74) (248.00)
Other comprehensive income, net of 0.71 1.21 0.96 (8.87)
tax
Total comprehensive income (80.66) (14.62) (72.72) (256.02)

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The world economy was very significantly impacted in financial year FY21 due to Novel Coronavirus Covid-
19 with impacts to human health and life. The impacts in Q1 depressed the global GDP for the year, even
though gradual re-kindling of the economy from Q3 onwards helped to bring growth back leading into
calendar year 2021. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecasted growth of 5.5% in CY 2021
leading up to 4.2% in CY 2022. Rapid global vaccination programs along with economic aid programs
implemented and announced in countries like USA, UK, Japan and Europe are helping to cement the
turnaround of the world economy.

Growing tensions between China and the USA as well as re-orientation of global trading blocs are pushing
countries towards a ‘China Plus One’ policy as part of de-risking their global supply chains. This is resulting
in some shifts to production centres in other low-cost South East Asian countries including India, Vietnam,
Indonesia and Thailand. Major economies like Japan (US$2.2 Bn) and South Korea (US$95 bn over 5 years)



have allocated significant funds to support their industries relocate to the home country or other South East
Asian countries.

With health taking centre stage, Covid-19 has also given an unprecedented push to the health care and
pharmaceutical sectors with increased government spending globally, led by the US (increase from 2% of
GDP in 2020 to estimated 7% in 2021). The spends on vaccine logistics as well as sourcing and logistics of
of Personal Protective Equipment (PPEs), ventilators, medicines, etc throw up new business opportunities
for world trade and logistics.

The global Auto sector has also seen a bounce back, with an increased focus on sustainability initiatives.
With governments in North America, parts of Asia and the European Union focussed on climate change,
support for new generational electric vehicle technology is giving a much-needed boost to the Auto sector.

The world has now adjusted to the new normal with Work from Home (WFH) becoming a permanent change
in most organisations. This has thrown up new operating models of organisations relying heavily on
technology platforms, negating the need for human intervention. Companies are now actively dealing with
challenges like digital technology and automation which were earlier on the backburner in the pre-pandemic
world. For most companies it has now become imperative to create resilient and shock-proof models as part
of their pivoting strategies in a post Covid world.

GLOBAL LOGISTICS OUTLOOK

The pandemic helped to underline the fact that connected supply chains was the answer to creating resilient
operating models. Continuous disruptions to global supply chains resulted in sweeping changes to production
planning wherein decentralisation of manufacturing was key to creation of new logistics centres. Reports by
leading financial institutions indicate that 56 large global companies have already moved some part of their
manufacturing base from China to other countries, while companies in most major sectors in US and APAC
have either implemented or announced plans to relocate at least a portion of their supply chains out of China.
These changes to global supply chains throw up significant opportunities to logistics companies who have
large networks as well as a strong Asia presence.

New opportunities have also been thrown up for logistics services through an increase in online sales of
automobiles, direct to home and direct to consumer distribution of FMCG and durables. Hyper-local and in-
city services have seen exponential demand with consumers preferring to procure essential commodities
from the comfort of their homes. These newer operating models seen in India, USA and part of Europe
include decentralised and localised approaches through tech enabled delivery platforms which also combine
demand forecasting and inventory management technology and service modules. The pandemic has also
accelerated growth trends in both the domestic and international express markets globally, driven by both
B2B and B2C (e-commerce) shipping.

The Global shipping industry saw a mismatch, especially in the fourth quarter, between container capacity
and demand, thereby creating a pressure on prices which have continued in the first half of CY21. This has
led to increased demand for air cargo services, especially for e-commerce movements of goods and medical
supplies. These disruptions have stressed the need for technologies that provide increased visibility and
track and trace services as it equips freight movers to react to disruptions in a timely manner.

As a result of the changes that have taken place in the last 4 quarters, the global logistics sector is expected
to grow between 4-5%, with a substantial portion of the growth forecasted to be in the APAC region.

INDIAN ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The Indian economy saw positive marginal growth in Q3 during FY21. However, the looming rate of
infections as part of a second wave along with fears of a possible third wave threaten to impact the Indian
economy through FY22. With stringent lockdowns in place in various parts of the country, the earlier year
on year double digit GDP growth forecasts have been re-adjusted by the various rating agencies to between
9-9.5% for FY22 followed by 6.5-7% growth in the next year.



The Indian government announced in its annual budget a Rs. 35000 Crore allocation for Covid-19 vaccine
alongside a 137% growth in the allocation for the Health sector, to help the country recover expeditiously
from the effects of Covid-19. To give a boost to the economy amidst the pandemic, the government has also
announced Rs 50000 Crore liquidity push for MSMEs in the healthcare sector. In this scheme banks can
provide lending support to vaccine manufacturers, suppliers, medical equipment manufacturers and even
patients.

The Government has announced an economic package worth Rs. 2 lakh crores for Infrastructure
development which will directly positively impact the Logistics sector. The budget also outlays the highest
ever allocation for Road and Highways development at Rs. 1.18 Lakh Crore. Priority has been placed on the
completion of the Dedicated Freight Corridor Network to boost connectivity and industrial warehousing in
India. There has also been a push for the development of digital technology through a Rs. 1500 crore scheme
for digital payment network development across the country. The budget also focusses on green energy
initiatives like Hydrogen Energy Mission aimed to reduce petroleum use, greenhouse gas emissions, and air
pollution, and contribute to more diverse and efficient energy infrastructure.

INDIAN LOGISTICS INDUSTRY SCENARIO

Despite the challenges during Covid-19 and the slowdown seen in the last year, advanced digital
technologies, government reforms, growth of e-commerce and changing customer preferences is
transforming the Indian Logistics Industry.

The logistics industry has adapted quickly in the year to new trends of hyperlocal deliveries with tech enabled
delivery platforms, rapid adoption of same day delivery services and pivoting opportunities in consumer
goods and essential commodities. New focus on last mile deliveries and Direct to Consumer disruptive
business models are driving the sector forward. These opportunities necessitate important business
transformations towards Agile Operating models, increased adoption of digital platforms and higher
penetration of automation, robotics and loT in logistics services and operations. With continued FDI
especially in the Tech and Logistics sectors, new age companies threaten to disrupt traditional logistics
organisations not quickly transforming themselves. The Indian express industry has continued to grow
rapidly on the back of GST implementation as well as opportunities in the B2B distribution and e-commerce
spaces in the last few years.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Your Company continues to take various initiatives to improve its growth, operating margin, and profitability
in the coming year, with focus on transformational initiatives and technological developments to operate in
the changing post Covid environment.

Your Company has established operations in over 30 countries covering major markets across Europe,
APAC, America and India. Further, the Company has also engaged delivery partners in major countries in
Africa and Latin America as part of service fulfiiment for the Global Forwarding business. This is part of
establishing a global network serviced through direct operations as well as agency business.

Your Company also recorded multiple significant milestones — TVS Supply Chain Solutions Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore recorded its highest ever monthly revenues in its history in the last quarter of FY21, growing 1.6
times over last quarter of FY20. A similar such benchmark was set in the courier operations in TVS Rico in
UK, with the business crossing its highest ever weekly revenues closing the year with a growth rate of 8% in
a muted year.

Operations:

Your Company continued to strengthen its offerings in the end-to-end supply chain services. The capability
led strategy of Integrated Supply Chain Solutions, Last Mile Solutions and Freight Management Solutions
were considerably strengthened through new senior management hires, especially Business Development,
Technology and Financial organisations. A global initiative on Process Excellence was kicked off with a
through audit and review of all the ISCS businesses and the Global Forwarding business. This initiative will
continue through the next year encompassing every aspect of your Company.



An Economic Profit evaluation exercise of all our businesses was undertaken in the last year with an objective
to review all our businesses and determine actions to improve profitability and cash flows. The output of the
study helped to derive strategic actions towards operational efficiency improvement and business
transformation. 46 high impact initiatives were identified of which 95% were completed in FY21, with the
balance planned for completion in FY22. The conclusion of these actions will result in significant cost saving
through both P&L and Balance sheet impacts.

Overhead cost containment and reduction was a major focus area, taken up across all the businesses.
Technology interventions, process excellence actions and activity integration resulted in significant Reduction
in Force (RIF) and manpower rationalisation. The global Centre of Excellence at Madurai scaled up through
capacity build up (160 seats across two centres) for additional activities including data entry, data
management and reporting analytics, thereby increasing business support.

One TVS culture initiatives undertaken during the year included TVS Asianics migrating to the TVS SCS
brand with the service definition changed to Global Forwarding Services (GFS). Senior level global
communication programs were kicked off with global leadership teams and their reports directly
communicated to by various members of the top management.

Business development:

Your Company has successfully implemented global CRM Salesforce across the business across the
business . This has enabled all businesses to report pipelines in similar fashion thereby leading to greater
control and monitoring.

A Global Sales approach has been kickstarted through creation of a Global Sales council to drive
collaboration, cross-selling and focus on select global accounts. As a pilot start, 6 global majors have been
identified for potential collaboration, cross selling and encirclement opportunities.

A common global website for your Company was rolled out integrating all businesses into one website.
Through this, an efficient Search Engine Optimisation (SEO) has been rolled out, leading to competitive
positioning and increased lead generation.

Despite negative sentiment on account of Covid-19, your Company performed exceedingly well on new
business development, adding 412 new client accounts with accrued revenues in this year alone at Rs. 508
crores and annualised revenues more than Rs. 750 crores at a consolidated level.

Business Transformation:

With the changing market landscape, your Company is pro-actively adding to its diverse capability portfolio
and technological edge to stay ahead: Business transformative actions have been put in place to ensure its
leadership position and competitive edge in its various markets.

Future Ready Positioning: Your Company has made significant progress towards building on its auto sector
capabilities by adding expertise and customers in the Electric Vehicles (EV) segment. Capabilities have
been built up in strategic sourcing, parts assembly and battery handling, to helping to manage inventories of
parts and feeding manufacturing lines with sub-assemblies. The support to EVs was taken forward through
aftermarket spare parts logistics support to provide repair and handling services. The Company also supports
EV charging stations with installation, maintenance and repair services. The Company has also developed
special SOPs to handle batteries under the UN Dangerous Goods handling guidelines.

Your Company has also established itself in another future ready business of the Utilities sector through
Smart Metering solutions for both electricity and water metering. Your Company works with Utility service
providers across UK to provide tailormade software on the web and logistics solutions thereby supporting
installation and maintenance of these devices. Using loT, the software then pushes the request to the
Engineers for field execution. This technological solution has the potential to be extended to various sectors
in the coming years.



Digitalisation and Technological Advancements: Your Company has taken a pivotal step to position itself a
technology leader in logistics by investing in digital platform technologies, which are scalable, replicable and
cost efficient. The legacy TRACE Warehouse Management System has been upgraded into a world class
system “Visibility?, with the advantages of being the easiest to use, install and update amongst its
competitors. This system further enables complete inventory visibility, mobile enabled scanning for quick turn
around and seamless integration with the client systems. The system also has the ability to consolidate and
optimise based on the customer’s requirements coupled with easy implementation. The system is being
further enhanced with predictive analytics and Al based decision making for faster operational processing.
With over 100 installations, Visibility also recorded a first through a sign up with a global metals major as a
SaaS (Software as a Service) paving the way to be sold as a standalone platform.

Courier Alliance is another technological advancement that the Company has rolled out as part of its portfolio.
The solution enables platformisation and uberisation of the Sameday delivery network. Available jobs are
posted on the open platform which creates a job alert on the system, which is responded to by various route
couriers, thereby avoided the need to dispatch services, as well as saving operation costs through low cost
sourcing. This platform has been completely rolled out in UK and implementation in India is in the works.

Our platform technologies reduce human intervention, enable cost efficiencies and can be implemented in
every sector across every geography. This platform approach has now become a distinguishing factor for
the Company which enables seamless end to end supply chain management.

Your Company will also be reviewing structural re-organisations to take forward the business transformation
journey in a post Covid-19 connected world.

The annual people survey to measure employee satisfaction and net promoter score was expanded to
include all the significant businesses and subsidiaries, with the Global Forwarding Solutions group
participating for the first time. Branded “Vibe”, the survey was actively promoted to our participation
employees across Asia- Pacific, India, Europe and North America through video communication messages
from the entire leadership group. The Company also decided to invest in a global unified HRM system, pilot
trials of which commenced in India during the year.

Acquisitions:

During the year under review, no new acquisitions were undertaken by your Company.
Financing Initiatives:

1. Project SS (Comprehensive overseas financing facility for acquisition & revolving credit) update:

a) During the year, your Company pro-actively renegotiated the financial covenants for the period FY 21 to
FY 23 to address the business impact on revenue & cashflow due to COVID-19. This initiative ensured
that liquidity has been secured while ensuring covenant compliances.

b) At the request of the lenders, despite COVID impact on the business, your Company tied up appx. 75%
of syndication target and thereby substantially met the commitments to the underwriting banks.

2. Hedging strategy update:

a) During the year, your Company hedged 76% of its GBP/USD denominated long term borrowings through
Principal Only Swap derivative instruments which ensures no cashflow impact on foreign exchange
fluctuations. Balance 24% exposure is kept open and is under watch.

b) As a continuing hedging policy, your Company follows natural hedging as its core policy whereby the
earnings and pay-outs are typically mapped in the same currency by operating entities in US, UK and
rest of Asia.

3. Other updates:

a) Towards meeting the objective of de-leveraging, your Company reduced its gross indebtedness level by
28% compared to previous year which included repayment of high-cost Indian debts.

b) During the year, your Company reduced the working capital in excess of ¥ 200 Crores compared to
March 20 due to higher operational efficiency and treasury initiatives

c) Towards a sustained financing initiative, your Company tied up with A-TREDS (a RBI driven initiative for
MSME vendors) and set-up a line of credit which eases liquidity issues for such vendors and improves
sales margin for the Company.



DIVIDEND

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, and to build up reserves and considering the business
plans of the Company, no Dividend was declared for the current financial year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves during the financial year.

PROSPECTS

Your Company had taken various steps to strengthen the business development team. These measures are
expected to enable the Company to achieve higher turnover and profits in the years to come.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No material changes and commitments have occurred affecting the financial position of the Company after
March 31, 2021 till the date of this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules, the audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and of all subsidiary and joint venture companies are enclosed.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

A separate statement containing the salient features of the audited financial statements of all the subsidiary
and joint venture companies is attached to this Report.

The Company will make available the Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies and the
related detailed information to any member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the same.
The Annual Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies will also be kept open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company and that of subsidiary companies concerned. The Consolidated Financial
Statements presented by the Company include the financial results of its subsidiary companies.

The details of investments made in various subsidiaries are provided as part of the Financial Statements for
the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no changes have occurred in the issued, called, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Company.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of your Company based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
appointed Sri S Ravichandran, (DIN 01485845) as Executive Director ( designated as Whole Time Director)
of the Company, for a period of one year from 15.11.2020, subject to the approval of the shareholders.

During the year, Sri Suresh Krishna has resigned as Chairman and Director of your Company with effect
from 27.11.2020 due to personal reasons. Sri. Suresh Krishna was the Chairman of your Company since
inception. The Board wishes to record its sincere appreciation for the guidance and support extended by Sri
Suresh Krishna during his tenure as Chairman. Sri. S Mahalingam was appointed as Chairman of your
Company with effect from 27.11.2020.

The term of Sri Anantha Nageswaran as an Independent Director on the Board of your Company expired on
18.03.2021. The Board wishes to record its sincere appreciation for the guidance and support extended by
Sri Anantha Nageswaran during his tenure as Director.

Sri. Gopal Srinivasan (DIN: 00177699) and Sri. R Dinesh (DIN: 00363300), Directors are liable to retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.



Your Directors recommend the appointment and re-appointment of above Directors.
STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Members at their 14t Annual General Meeting appointed M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the 14! Annual General
Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 19t Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year, M/s. KPMG (Registered), was appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company to conduct
the Internal Audit of the Company and its subsidiaries.
BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, the Board of Directors of your Company met four times.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return is annexed to this Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had
appointed Mr. K Venugopalan, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the year ended 315t March, 2021. The Secretarial Audit Report is attached to this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists Sri. S Mahalingam, Chairman, Sri. C K Ranganathan and Ms. Anita George
as members. During the year under review, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of the
Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In accordance with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a Vigil
Mechanism and has a Whistle Blower Policy for the employees to report genuine concerns in such manner
as prescribed.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Sri. C K Ranganathan, Chairman,
Sri. S Mahalingam and Ms. Anita George, Members in terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has framed a policy on the director's appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, Independence of a director and other matters provided under Section 178 (3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of Sri. C K Ranganathan,
Chairman, Ms. Shobhana Ramachandran, Sri. S Mahalingam and Ms. Anita George, Members. The
Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy pursuant to Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rule, 2014 and the
Report on CSR Activities as required thereunder is attached to this Report.

DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Acceptance of Rules, 2014. No amount on deposits was
outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.



LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans, investments and guarantees covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
given in the Notes to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered by the Company during the financial year were during the ordinary
course of business and at arm’s length basis. The details of the transactions with related parties are provided
in the accompanying financial statements.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Sri. C K Ranganathan and Sri. S Mahalingam were re-appointed as Independent Directors on the Board of
your Company, for a period of five years, with effect from June 29, 2018 and August 30,2018, respectively.

The Company has received the declarations of Independence from them pursuant to Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

EVALUATION OF BOARD /BOARD COMMITTEES

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out performance evaluation of
its own performance, the directors individually as well as evaluation of the working of the Committees of the
Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A statement containing the information as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached to this
Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has well defined and adequate internal financial controls and procedures commensurate with
its size & nature of its operations. This is further strengthened by the internal audit done concurrently and
periodical reporting to the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Periodic risk assessment of business risk environment is carried to identify significant risks to the
achievement of business objectives of the Company. Key risks are reported and evaluated at appropriate
forums and levels within the Company.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There has been no order passed by any Regulators or Court or Tribunal impacting the going concern status
and future operations of the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that:
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
that there are no material departures;



(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates that have been made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on that
date;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

(f) proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

The Company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or technology absorption.
The details of the foreign exchange earnings and outgo are:
(INR in crores)
Foreign exchange earnings - 69.29
Foreign exchange outgo - 9.72

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PLAN

During the year under review, the Company has granted 95,997 stock options to the employees under the
Management Incentive Plan. The disclosures in compliance with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules 2014 are set out in Annexure and forms part of this Report.

THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
RDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of the captioned
Act and Rules made thereunder. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints
regarding sexual harassment. The Company has not received any complaint during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants and various
Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Company’s activities during the year
under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the promoter company, the members and the
subsidiary/ joint venture companies for their support and confidence reposed on your Company.

Your Directors would also like to place on record their appreciation of the dedicated, individual and collective
contribution of all the employees in the overall growth and progress of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Chennai

Date: 15.06.2021 S Mahalingam
(DIN: 00121727)
Chairman
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FORM AOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub section 3 of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014]

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES / JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATES

(All amounts are in Indian rupees (°) except share data and otherwise stated)

PART B - JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATES

Sl.no

Name of the Joint venture/Associates

TVS Industrial and
Logistics Private limited

1 Latest audited / unaudited Balance Sheet Date 31 March 2021
2 Share of Joint venture/associates held by the Company on the year end

date

No.

Amount of Investment in Joint Venture/Associates 13,75,00,000

Extent of Holding 31.2%| 50% on non-dilutive basis
3 Description of how there is significant influence No significant influence
4 Reason why the joint venture/Associates is not consolidated Not applicable
5 Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 4,19,37,30,114
6 Profit for the year (21,33,383)
i Considered in consolidation (6,65,615)
ii Not considered in consolidation -
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahalingam Sethuraman
Chairman

S Ravichandran
Whole-time Director

Place:

Date:

Chennai

R Dinesh
Managing Director

Ravi Prakash Bhagavathula
Group Chief Financial Officer

Ravi Vishwanathan
Joint Managing Director

P D Krishna Prasad
Company Secretary
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2021
(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

1 |CN

U63011TN2004PLC054655

2 | Registration Date

16.11.2004

3 | Name of the Company

TVS SUPPLY CHAIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

4. | Company

Category/Sub-category of the

Public Company

5. | contact details

Address of the Registered office &

10, Jawahar Road, Chokkikulam, Madurai-
625002, Ph no. 044- 66857777

6. | Whether listed company No

Name, Address & contact details of the
7. | Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

NIL

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing

10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated):

S. No. | Name and Description of main

NIC Code of the

% to total turnover of the

products / services Product/service | company
1. Supply chain Management 492 92.37
.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
HOLDING/ % OF
SINo | name & Address of the CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ | SHAREs | ARPLICABLE
pany ASSOCIATE | HELD
TVS SCS Global Freight
Solutions Limited
1. (formerly known as TVS U63010TN2007PLC064282 Subsidiary 90 2(87)
Dynamic Global Freight
Services Ltd, India)
2. | FLEXOL Packaging (India) U74990TN2010PLCO76131 |  Subsidiary 88.11 2(87)
Limited, India.
TVS Toyota Tsusho Supply -
3. Chain Solutions Ltd, India. U74999TN2014PLC098233 Subsidiary 60 2(87)
4 Etgv‘fn'gi‘;'a Enterprise Solutions | - 75900TN2000PLC104165 |  Subsidiary 100 2(87)
5. | SPC International (India) Private | ;755011cA2008PTC048570 |  Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Limited, India.
6. | VS Packaging Solutions U74999TN2017PTC116321 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Private Limited, India.
TVS Industrial & Logistics Parks
Private Limited (formerly known Associate
£ as TVS Infrastructure Private U45200MH2005PTC154628 (Joint Venture) 29.71 2(6)
Limited), India
g. | White Data Systems India U72200TN2015PTC129978 |  Subsidiary 51 2(87)

Private Limited, India




TVS Logistics Investment UK

9. Ltd, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS SCS (Siam) Limited
(formerly known as TVS -
10. Logistics Siam Limited, NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Thailand)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as -
11. TVS- Asianics Supply Chain NA Subsidiary 93.5 2(87)
Solutions Pte. Ltd., Singapore)
TVS Logistics Investments USA -
12. Inc.. USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions -
13. North America Inc., USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
14, 'LI'J\éS Supply Chain Solutions Ltd, NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
15. | TVS Autoserv GmbH, Germany NA Subsidiary 51 2(87)
16. | RICO Logistics Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 97.47 2(87)
17. | TVS Logistics Iberia S.L, Spain NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions -
18. GmbH, Germany NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Australia Holdings Pty. Ltd
19. | (formerly known as TVS- NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Asianics Australia Pty. Ltd,
Australia)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions de -
20. Mexico S.A. de C.V., Mexico NA Subsidiary 9 2(87)
21. | TVS Transport Solutions USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
22. | T.I.F Holding Pty. Ltd, Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
23. | Ricochet Spain S.L., Spain NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
24. | Rico Logistique, France NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
25. | SPC International Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
26. | Rico Logistics Limited, Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
27. | Circle Express Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 95 2(87)
Tri- Tec Computer Support Ltd, -
28. Northern Ireland NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
29, | TMi-Tech Support Limited, NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Ireland
TVS SCS (Aust) Pty. Ltd
(formerly known as Transtar -
30. International Freight (Aust) Pty NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Ltd, Australia)
31, | KANH Nominees Pty Ltd, NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Australia
TVS SCS New Zealand Limited
30 (formerly known as Transtar NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

International Freight Limited,
New Zealand)




SPC International (Engineering)

33. Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
34. | PITCOMP 171 Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
35. | SPC EBT Trustees Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
36. | SPCINT Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
37. | SPC International INC., USA NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
38. | SPC International s.a.s, France NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
30, SPC In_ternatlonal s.r.o., NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Slovakia
Transtar International Freight -
40. Limited, Hong Kong NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS SCS International Freight
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
41. | (formerly known as Transtar NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
International Freight (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. Singapore
TVS SCS International Freight
(Thailand) Limited
42. | (formerly known as Transtar NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
International Freight (Thailand)
Limited, Thailand)
Transtar International Freight -
43. (Shanghai) Limited, China NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Transtar International Freight -
44, (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Peter Thomas & Co -
45| (Refurbishing) Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
46. | MSys Software Solutions Ltd,UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
47. | Multipart Limited, UK NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS SCS Forwarding S.L.U.
48. | (formerly known as Nadal NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Forwarding S.L.U.)
49. | Lineas Regulares XXI, S.L NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS SCS International Pte. Ltd.
50. | (formerly known as Pan Asia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics International Pte. Ltd)
TVS SCS Singapore Pte. Ltd.
51. | (formerly known as Pan Asia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics Singapore Pte. Ltd)
TVS SCS Logistics Ltd.
52. | (formerly known as Pan Asia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics Limited, Shangai)
TVS SCS (Korea) Ltd.
(formerly known as Pan Asia -
53. Logistics International (Korea) NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Ltd)
TVS SCS Logistics (Thailand)
54. | Limited (formerly known as Pan NA Subsidiary 49 2(87)
Asia Logistics (Thailand) Ltd)
TVS SCS Hong Kong Limited
(formerly known as Pan Asia -
55. Freight-Forwarding & Logistics NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Hong Kong Ltd)
56. Pan Asia Container Line Pte NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Ltd, Hong Kong




TVS SCS Deutschland GmbH
57. | (formerly known as Pan Asia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics Deutscheland, GmbH)
58 Pan Asia Logistics Malaysia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
" | Sdn Bhd
TVS SCS Vietnam Company
Limited (formerly known as Pan -
59. Asia Logistics Vietnam NA Subsidiary 95 2(87)
Company Ltd)
60. | | Pan Asta Logistios NA Subsidiary 90 2(87)
ndonesia
TVS SCS Taiwan Limited
61. | (formerly known as Pan Asia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics Taiwan Ltd)
Pan Asia Freight-Forwarding & -
62. Logistics India Pvt Ltd U63040MH2011FTC213986 Subsidiary 99.99 2(87)
63. | TVS America INC. NA Subsidiary 51 2(87)
64. 'Il;\éS Packaging Solutions Inc., NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
65. | TVS SCS Rico ltalia SRL NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
66. | Eltec IT Services, S.L.U NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
67. | Triage Holdings Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
68. | Triage Services Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
69. | Order Logic Limited NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
TVS SCS Logistics
Management Co., Ltd.
70. | (formerly known as TLM NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Logistics Management Co. Ltd,
Thailand)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions
(Thailand) Limited (formerly -
71. known as TVS-Asianics NA Subsidiary 49 2(87)
Thailand)
TVS Supply Chain Solutions
Holdings Limited (formerly
72. | known as Transtar International NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Freight Holdings (Thailand)
Limited)
: . Associate
73. | Linfox TVS Solutions Pty Ltd NA (Joint Venture) 50 2(87)
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i) Cateqgory of Share Holding:
Category | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As [/
of year[As on 1-April-2020] on 31-March-2021] Change
Sharehol during
ders the
ear
Demat Physical | Total % of Pemat Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A.
Promoter
s
(1) Indian
a)
Individual/ - - - - - - - -
HUF




b) Central
Govt

c) State
Govt(s)

d) Bodies
Corp.

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

33.81

e) Banks /
Fl

f) Any
other

Sub-total
(A) (1)

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

33.81

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

33.81

(2)

Foreign

a) NRIs —
Individual
S

b) Other -
Individual
S

c) Bodies
Corp

d) Banks /
Fl

e) Any
other

Sub-total
(A) (2)

Total
sharehol
ding of
Promoter
(A) = (A)
(1) +
(A)(2)

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

33.81

1,07,27,343

1,07,27,343

33.81

B. Public
Sharehol
ding

1.
Institutio
ns

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks /
Fl

c) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e)
Venture
Capital
Funds

f)
Insurance
Companie
S

g) Flls

h)
Foreign
Venture




Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutio
ns

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian

39,84,203

39,84,203

12.56

39,12,366

39,12,366

12.33

(0.23)

if)

Overseas

1,45,05,757

16,000

1,45,21,757

45.77

1,45,77,594

16,000

1,45,93,594

45.99

0.22

b)
Individual
s

i)
Individual
sharehold
ers
holding
nominal
share
capital up
toRs. 1
lakh

42,416

1,34,994

1,77,410

0.56

42,416

1,34,994

1,77,410

0.56

i)
Individual
sharehold
ers
holding
nominal
share
capital in
excess of
Rs. 1 lakh

11,96,680

8,17,228

20,13,908

6.35

12,30,082

7,83,826

20,13,908

6.35

c) Others
(specify)

Non
Resident
Indians

20,000

33,395

53,395

0.17

53,395

53,395

0.17

Overseas
Corporate
bodies

Foreign
Nationals

2,38,000

2,38,000

0.75

2,38,000

2,38,000

0.75

Clearing
Members

Trusts

14,117

14,117

0.25

14,117

14,117

0.25

Foreign
Bodies




Corporate
's

Sub-total

(B)(2):- 1,97,63,173

12,39,617 | 2,10,02,790

66.19

1,98,29,970

11,72,820

2,10,02,790

66.19

Total
Public
Sharehol
ding
(B)=(B)(1)
+(B)(2)

1,97,63,173 | 12,39,617 | 2,10,02,790

66.19

1,98,29,970

11,72,820

2,10,02,790

66.19

C.
Shares
held by
Custodia - - -
n for
GDRs &
ADRs

Grand
Total
(A+B+C)

3,04,90,516 | 12,39,617 | 3,17,30,133

100

3,05,57,313

11,72,820

3,17,30,133

100

ii) Shareholding of Promoter:

S | Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year %
N | Name year change
No. of % of total | %of No. of % of total | % of in
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares Shares of | Shares sharehol
the Pledged / the Pledged / | ding
company | encumbe company | encumber | during
red to ed to total | the year
total shares
shares
1. | T.V. Sundram
lyengar & Sons 1,07,27,343 33.81 - 1,07,27,343 33.81 - -
Private Limited

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): No change

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and holders

of GDRs and ADRSs):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the Year
No. of % of No. of % of total
shares total shares shares of
shares the
of the company
company
At the beginning of the year 1,90,25,969 59.96 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in 27.11.2020 -
Shareholding during the year specifying Change in
the reasons for increase /decrease status of 0.52 1,91,90,900 60.48
(e.g., allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat Directorship
equity etc.): 1,64,931
At the end of the year 1,91,90,900 60.48 1,91,90,900 60.48




v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative
and each Key Managerial of the year Shareholding during the
Personnel Year
No. of shares % of total | No. of % of total
shares of | shares shares of
the the
company company
At the beginning of the year 8,32,059 2.63 -- --
Date wise Increase / Decrease in 27.11.2020 &
Shareholding during the year 18.03.2021
specifying the reasons for increase - Change in status
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / of Directorship (0.58) 6,47,128 2.04
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 1,64,931 shares &
20,000 shares
At the end of the year 6,47,128 2.04 6,47,128 2.04

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not

due for payment (Rupees in lakhs):

Secured Loans
Particulars excluding Unf ecured Deposits Total
. oans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 11,892 57,206 69,098
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 290 290
Total (i+iiiii)
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition 88 5,257
* Reduction 11,659 32,491 44,150
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 321.38 29,971.10 30,292.48
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 66 66
Total (i+iiiii) 321.38 30,037.86 30,358.24
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors/ Manager:(Rs. in crores)
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount
. . Sri Ravi Sri. S.
Sr&:ng;?:;h’ Viswanathan, Ravichandran,
. Joint Managing Whole Time
Director . .
Director Director
1 Gross salary -
(a) Salary as per provisions - 2.64 3.22
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s - 1.45 0.50
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961




(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

2.46

10.11

1.07

w

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

4.00

Others, please specify
-Contribution to Provident

fund
- Others

0.09

0.11

0.08

0.62

Total (A)

6.46

14.40

5.49

Ceiling as per the Act

*Minimum remuneration.

B. Remuneration to Other Directors: (Rs. In lakhs)

SN

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

1

Independent
Directors

Sri. C. K. Ranganathan

Sri. V. Anantha
Nageswaran*

Sri. S Mahalingam

Fee for attending
board/ committee
meetings

2.25

3.50

3.75

9.5

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (1)

2.25

3.50

3.75

9.5

Other Non-
Executive Directors

Sri. Gopal
Srinivasan

Sri. S. Ram

Ms. Shobhana
Ramachandhran

Sri. Suresh
Krishna*

Fee for attending
board/ committee
meetings

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.50

6.00

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (2)

1.50

1.50

1.50

1.50

6.00

Total (B)=(1+2)

15.50

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD: (Rs. in crores)

SN

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

1.00

0.18

tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

0.25

0.08

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961




Stock Option

0.28

0.10

Wl N

Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

5 Others, please specify
-Contribution to Provident Fund
-Others

0.05
0.06

0.02
0.12

Total

1.64

0.50

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL




Form - MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
M/s TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by TVS Supply Chain Solutions Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under so far as they are made applicable;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; (not
applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to the extent of the
equity shares held in dematerialized form;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is
unlisted)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;(not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is

unlisted)



d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,

2014; (not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,

2008; (not applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (not applicable to the

Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (not

applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not

applicable to the Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted);

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) (not applicable to the Company during audit

period since the Company is unlisted);

(vi) As identified, there are no laws which are specifically applicable to Logistics Industry viz. a viz. to the

Company

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) as prescribed
under Section 118 (10) of the Act have been complied with.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) (not applicable to the

Company during audit period since the Company is unlisted);

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors before schedule of the Board/ Committee Meeting(s), agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further

information and clarifications on the agenda items for meaningful participation at the meeting(s).

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out unanimously at the
meeting of the Board of Directors / Committee Members and there were no dissenting members view

recorded in the minutes.



| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and nature of operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,

rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place : Chennai
Date : 15.06.2021 K. Venugopalan
Company Secretary in Practice
CP No. 6015
FCS No. 2526



Annual Report on CSR for FY 2020-21
(Annexure to Board’s Report)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Abriefoutline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed

to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

As an integral part of contribution to the society, the Company believes in actively assisting in
the improvement of the quality of life of communities around through its CSR endeavours. The
Company undertakes CSR projects/activities as per its CSR Policy, which is aligned with Schedule
VII under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s CSR initiatives are being
carried out under the CSR Policy adopted by Company. The Board based on the recommendation
of CSR Committee, approved to spend for providing education and skill development to the
economically weaker/underprivileged sections of the society during the year ended on March
31, 2021.

The Composition of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee comprises of Sri. C. K. Ranganathan, Chairman, Sri. S. Mahalingam,
Ms. Shobhana Ramachandran and Ms. Anita George, as the members of the Committee.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: INR 395.78 Lakhs
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 7.92 lakhs

Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: INR 7.92 Lakhs;

(b) Amount unspent, if any : NIL;

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. CSR project | Sector in which | Projects or [ Amount outlay | Amount spent on | Cumul | Amount
No | or activity | the project is | programs (budget) project | the projects or | ative spent:
identified covered or programs | programs expen | Direct or
(1) Local . .
wise diture | through
Area or Sub Heads: .
up to | implemen
other . .
(1) Direct | the ting
(2)Specify Expenditure  on | reporti [ agency
the State projects or| ng
and district programs period
where
. (2) Overheads:
projects or
programs
was
undertaken
1 | Vocational | Sector (ii) Chennai, INR 7.81 INR 8.95 lakhs Same Direct
Training Tamil Nadu lakhs as (6)
Total INR 8.95 lakhs




6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending
the amount in its Board report: Not Applicable

7. We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy (“Policy”) of the Company as approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company is monitored by the CSR Committee and the CSR activities have been
implemented in accordance with the Policy.

R. Dinesh S Mahalingam
Managing Director Chairman - CSR Committee
(DIN: 00363300) (DIN: 00121727)

Place: Chennai
Date: 14.06.2021



Disclosure pursuant to Employee Stock Option Scheme:

Details for the FY 2020-21

(a) options granted : 95,997

(b) options vested :13,29,463

(c) options exercised : Nil

(d) the total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options : Nil
(e) options lapsed - Nil

(f) the exercise price  : NA

(g) variation of terms of options : to accommodate grant of options to eligible employees of TVS Supply
Chain Solutions Pte Ltd, Singapore, a subsidiary of our Company in line with regulatory requirements
under the law of Singapore.

(h) money realized by exercise of options : Nil
(i) total number of options in force : 24 24,670
(j) employee wise details of options granted to ;-
(i) Key Managerial Personnel :

R Dinesh, Managing Director (2,68,464), Ravi Viswanathan (1,75,000), S Ravichandran, Whole Time
Director (3,16,000), Ravi Prakash Baghavathula, CFO (83,019) and P D Krishna Prasad, Company
Secretary (30,000)

(ii) any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five percent
or more of options granted during that year: Nil
(iii) identified employees who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent

of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant
: Nil
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